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"We have audited the accompanymg financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining &nd mformation of the Ouachita Parish School 
Board (the School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively 
comprise the School Board's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. The 
prior year partial comparative information has been derived jfrom the School Board's June 30, 
2011 financial statements and, m our report dated December 30, 2011, we expressed 
unqualified opinions on the respective financial statements on the governmental activities, 
each major fimd, and the aggregate remaining information. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
Umted States of America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform Ihe audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An. audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting pnnciples used and significant estimates maide by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fimd and 
the aggregate remaining fimd information of the Ouachita Parish School Board, as of June 30, 
2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash Sows, where appMoable, 
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards^ we have also issued our report dated 
December 20, 2012 on our consideration of tihie School Board's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, peguHations, 
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of mtemal control over financial reporting and compliance and (he results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an mtegral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 

1100 North 18th street Monroe, Louislsna 71201 
Tel (318)387-2672 • Fax (318)322-8866 • Website www afUllservfcecpafimi com 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Independent Auditors' Report 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison Information, the Schedule 
of Employer Contributions for Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan and the Schedule of 
Funding Progress for Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan, as listed in the Table of Contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
required part of the basic financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with ai^ting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufEicient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying information listed as supplemental information in the Table of Contents is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic fiuancial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. OfEice of Management and Budget Circular 
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a 
required part of the financial statements. The Supplemental Information (includuag the Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards) as listed in tihe Table of Contents are the responsibility of 
management and were derived fix)m and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. This information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directiy to the imderlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The 
supplementary information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of tiie basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

December 20,2012 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30,2012 

Management's discussion and analysis of the Ouachita Pansh School Board's financial perforxnance provides aa 
overall review of the School Board's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 The intent of this 
discussion and analysis is to look at the School Board's financial performance as a whole. The reader should read this 
discussion in conjunction with the mformation provided in the letter of transmittal, financial statezaents and the 
accompanying notes, which are all included in this report, to enhance their understanding of the Ouachita Parish 
School Board's financial performance and condition 

Financial Highlights 

Key fmancial highlights during the 2011-12 fiscal year are as follows: 

« Statement of Net Assets - The assets of the Ouachita Parish School Board exceeded its liabilities at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year by $90,484,801 (net assets). Included in this amount is an unrestricted aet hability of 
$21,922,394, which means there are no unrestricted net assets available to meet the government's -obligations to 
students and creditors if all obligations matured and became due and payable on June 30, 2012 

• Statement of Activities - The total net assets of the Ouacliita Parish School Board decreased by $4,978,628 for the 
year ended June 30, 2012 This is a 5.2% decrease from last year and is largely due to the significant increases in 
employer rates for employee benefits of $7,138,312. 

• Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Ouachita IParish School 
Board's governmental funds reported a combined endmg fimd balance of $69,861,340, an increase of $8,476,907 
in comparison with the prior fiscal year. This increase is due to a balance of bond proceeds at year end from the 
sale of $19 3 million in bonds during the fiscal year for facility construction and improvements m East Ouachita. 
The majority of this fund balance is comprised of approximately (1) $H.9 milhon for spending withSn the General 
Fund, (2) $14.5 million committed for dedicated spe^ng purposes m the District #1 Mamtenance amd Operations 
Sales Tax Fund, (3) $12.5 mOIion restricted m a new Capital Projects Fund for the East Ouachita 2011-2012 
Construction Fund, a major fimd, for spending on planned construction projects in East Ouachita, (4) $14.3 million 
for spending in other Special Revenue Funds which includes the sales tax salaiy supplement funds, the West 
Ouachita sales tax fiind, school food service, and grants, (5) $12.5 million is restricted for the payment of 
outstanding bond issues withm the Debt Service Funds, and (6) $1.2 million which is restricte<l for specific 
construction projects whhin the Capital Projects Funds. 

• Governmental FUnds Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Total revenues for the 
year ended June 30, 2012 for the govenunental funds of the Ouachita Parish School Board amounted to 
$214,146,151. Approximately 96.5% of this amount is received from four major revenue sources: (1) $117.4 
million from the state Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) formula (2) $39.4 million from local &ales taxes, (3) 
$28.2 million from federal, state, and local grants and contributions, and (4) $22 4 million from looal ad valorem 
taxes. 

o General Fund's Ending Fund Balance - At the end of the current fiscal year, fimd balance for the General Fund, a 
major fiind, was $14,888,916, or 10.8% of total General Fund expenditures. Approximately $625,000 is restricted 
in use to guarantee the payment of workers compensation claims to the stat^ $715,351 is committed for major 
equipment rq)lacement, $423,204 is assigned by managem^it to be used for various instructional programs and 
student scholarships, while $13.1 million is unassigned and available for spending at the Board's discretion. 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30,2012 

* Capital Assets - Total capital assets (net of depreciation) were $232,108,877 or 63.2% of the total capital assets 
The School Board uses these assets to provide educational services to children; consequently, these assets are not 
available for fliture spending. 

o Lonm-Term Debt - The Ouachita Parish School Board's total debt increased $10,804,532 (7.6%) durmg the current 
fiscal year. This was due to $19.3 million m new general obligation bonds issued during the year. Also, three 
revenue bond issues and the final two ceatificates of indebtedness were paid off during the fiscal year The school 
system outstanding debt at June 30,2012 mcludes General Obligation Bonds of $83.9 million and Rejvenue Bonds 
of$68 9 million. 

o Ad Valorem Tax Revenues - Collections fiom local property taxes m the General Fund mcreased by $681,194 or 
4 4 % due to increased prop^ty assessments throughout the parish and is a refiection of historical trending. 

o Sales Tax Revenues - Collections of local sales tax revenues continue to increase beyond collection levels prior to 
the recessionary decline experienced m the 2009-10 fiscal period. Collections are up by $1,788,635, or 4 7%. 

o Education Jobs Funds - Stunuhs fimds authorized under the federal Education Jobs Bill totaling $2,855,790 was 
received to fimd employer retirement increases for school site-based staff. 

• ^mer/cfl/i Reinvestment and Recovery Act Funds (ARRA) - Received $226,814 in federal stimulus fundmg under 
ARRA for Title I and Special Education-IDBA B programs This exhausts all ARRA fundmg awarded to the 
school board through Septembo- 30,2011. 

Using this Comprehensive Annaal Financial Report (CAFR) 

The management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Ouachita Parish School 
Board's basic financial statements The School Board's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) 
govamnent-wide financial statements, (2) fund fiboancial statements, and (3) notes to the fmancial statements. This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Govemmen1>-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers 
with a broad overview of the Ouachita Parish School Board's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
There are two government-wide financial statements presented to report on the overall governmental activities of the 
School Board. 

o The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Ouachita Parish School BoardI*s assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases m. net 
assets may serve as a usefiil indicator of whether the financial position of the Ouachita Parish School Board is 
improving or d^eriorating. 

« The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the School Board's net t iss^ changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash fiows. Thus, revenues and e}q>enses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will only result in cash fiows m future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes 
and earned but unused vacation leave). The change in net assets reported in the Statement of Activities is an 
important indicator because it tells the reader whether, for the School Board as a whole, the financial position 
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of the School Board improved or declined. The causes of this change may be the result of many fectors, some 
financial, some not Non-financial factors affecting the School Board include the parish's sales and property 
tax bases and the state and federal government's continued fundmg 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Ouachita Pansh School Board, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The 
fond financial statements r^or t on the specific governmental activities of the School Board. These statements provide 
more detail than the Government-wide Financial Statements about the services financed in the short-term as well as 
what remains for future spending m the School Board's more significant fonds as well as all other nonmajor funds. 
The General Fund is the Ouachita Parish School Board's most significant fund. 

All of the funds of the Ouachita Pansh School Board are cat^orized into one of eleven fund types. Each fimd type and 
the numbca: of individual funds operated by the Ouachita Parish School Board for fiscal year 2011-12 are listed in tibe 
chart below. Only the fund types under which the School Board's funds are operating are further discussed. 

Governmental Fuhds 

General Fond 

11Walor Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 
1 Major Fund 

10 Nonmajor Funds 

Debt Service Funds 

2 f̂ont7)a]or Funds 

Capital Projects Funds 
1 Major Fund 

3NonmaH)rFunds 

Pennanent Funds 

None 

Proprietary Fiinds 

Enterprise Funds 

None 

Internal Service Funds 

1 Nonmajor Fund 

F l d i ^ c i a r y F u n d s 

Penston (and Other 
Post-ernplpyment 

Benefits) Trust Funds 
Nohe 

Investment Trust Funds 

None 

Private Purpose 
Trust Funds 

None 

Agency Funds 

2NonTnalorFunds 
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« Governmental funds. Most of the School Board's activities are reported as governmental funds, which focus on 
how money flows into and out of each fund and the balances remaining at year-end available for spending in future 
periods. These funds are reported using the modified-accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all 
other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially 
the same functions xeporicd as governmental activities in the govermnent-wide financial statements. However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund fmancial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Ouachita Pansh School Board near-term financing 
requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
stat^nents, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar mformation 
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the School Board's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
funds Balance Sheet and the governmental fimds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances provide a reconciliation to &dlitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 

The School Board uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these 
goveaiunental fund financial statements focus on the School Board's most sigoiflcant fiinds. hifoimation is 
presented separately in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental fimds Statement of 
Revenues, EJ^enditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for (I) the General Fund, (2) the District M Sales Tax 
Special Revenue Fund, and (3) the East Ouachita 2011-2012 Construction Capital Projects Fund, which are 
considered to be the only major funds. Data for the other 18 governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental fiinds is provided in the 
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

Changes in mcgor funds. In the previous year the West Ouachita 2009 QSCB Construction Capital Projects fimd 
was rq>orted as a m^or fund yxi the governmental fund financial statements. Due to paying off die previous year's 
interfund payable with available investments as they matured throughout the fiscal year, this fimd is no longer 
classified as a majorftmd in 2011-12. However, the East Ouachita 2011-2012 Construction Capital Frojects'Fund 
is a newly established capital projects fund and is also r^orted as a new major fund in the governmental fimd 
financial statements this year due to the sale of $19.3 million in general obligation bonds during the fiscal year. 

The School Board adopts an annual operaUng budget for its G^ieral Fund and for each Special Revenue Fund. 
Annual adopted budgets are not required for Debt Sovice Funds and Capital Projects Funds under tthe Louisiana 
Local GovernmoDt Budget Act. Budgetary comparison statements have bees provided to demonstrate compliance 
with these budgets. 

o Pivprietary jund. The Ouachita Parish School Board maintains one fund within the Proprietary Fund Internal 
service funds are an accounting fund type used to accumulate and allocate costs internally amon^ the School 
Board's various fiinctioss. The School Board is self-insured for workers' compensation and general liabihty claims 
and maintains policies with large deductibles for prq)erty and fleet vehicle insurance. A summary of the School 
Board's insurance coverage at June 30, 2012, has been inchided in the Statistical Section in the schedule tided 
'Insurance Coverage Data". Transactions related to meeting the claims incurred in these areas are accounted for in 
the Lalernal Service Proprietary Fund. Expenses in the Internal Service Fund are recognized as claims are 
incurred. Liabilities are recognized for incurred but unpaid claims. The Internal Service Proprietary Fund 
transactions are r^orted in a separate section consisting of a Comparative Statement of Net Assets; a Comparative 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and a Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 

ID 
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Because this service predommantly benefits govCTnmental fimctions, it has also been included with governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements 

© Fiduciary fiinds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resoiirces held for the benefit of parties outside 
the Ouadiita Parish School Board. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Ouachita Parish School 
Board's own programs. The School Board maintains two Agency Funds. The School Board is the 
trustee, or fiduciary, for its student activity funds and State Equalizatbn Local Funding Transfers to 
Other Educational Providers. 

The MFP formula adopted by the state legislature now requires a portion of the School Board's state 
MFP fonding representing a per pupil allotment of the School Board's local tax revenue be deducted and 
transferred to other local education agencies (LEA). This occurs when a qualifying student who resides 
within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Ouachita Parish School Board attends another state approved 
educational provider outside of the jurisdictional boundaries of the School Board. These fonding 
transfers are accounted for in the Agency Fund for State Equalization Local Funding Transfers to Other 
Educational Providers. 

All activities of these Agency Funds are reported m a separate Comparative Statement of Fiduciary 
Assets and Liabilities. The School Board is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these 
funds are used for their intended purposes. 

Notes to the basic financial statements. TTie notes provide additional information that is essential to a fiill 
understanding of the data provided in ttie govemment-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other mformation. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the School Board's compliance with budgets 
S)r its major funds. The combining statements for nonmajor governmental fiinds are presented immediately 
following the required supplementary information. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In 
the case of the Ouachita Parish School Board, assets exceed liabilities hy $90,484,801 at the ctose of the 
2011-12 fiscal year. The School Board's net assets decreased by $4,978,628 fi:om last year's balance. Of the 
$90.5 million of net assets at June 30, 2012, $19.1 million were restricted by the School Board, Restricted 
net assets are reported separately to show legal constraints fix)m debt covenants and enabling legislation that 
limit the School Board's ability to use those net assets for day-to-day operations. 
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The following analysis focuses on the net assets and change in net assets of the School Board's governmental 
activities. 

Ouachita Parish School Board's Governmental Activities 

Stafemeaf of Net Assets 

June 30> 2012 June 30, 2011 

Current and other assets $ 101,510,446 $ 93,359,235 
Capital assets, net of depreciation/amortization 232,108,877 230,954,184 

Total assets 333,619,323 324,313,419 

Cunrent and other Uabihties 27,588,275 26,918,530 
Long-term liabiUties 215,546,247 201,931,460 

Total liabilities 243,134,522 228,849,990 

Net assets. 
Invested m capital assets, net of related debt 93,275,754 103,257,268 
Restricted 19,131,441 19.585,376 
Unrestricted (21,922,394) (27,379,215) 

Total net assets $ 90,484,801 $ 95,463,429 

The negath^e balance of $21,922,394 in unrestricted net assets at June 30,2012 represents the accumulated results of 
all past years' operations. In &eory, it means that if we had to pay off all of our bills today includiiig all of our 
noncapital liabilities, such as compensated absences and unfunded other post-employment benefits, and sold all of our 
assets at their cunrent value, we would not have enough funds to pay off all of our debt by $21.9 million. This negative 
unrestricted net asset decreased by $5,456,821 ov&c this past year. 

A portion of the Ouachita Parish School Board's total net assets, $93,275,754, reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those a^ets. As you 
can see, net assets invested m capital assets exceed the total of all net assets held by the School Board at June 30, 2012 
The School Board uses these capital assets to provide educational services to children and adults; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending or payment of obligations. Although the School Board^s investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, h should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities 

The results of this year's operations for the School Board as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities The 
following table summarizes the Statement of Activities in a different format so that total revenue for the year can be 
more easily identifiable. 

12 
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Ouachita Parish School Board's Governmental Activities 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Opiating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
State Minimum Foundation Program 
Interest on investments 
Other genearal revenues 

Total revenues 
Expenses: 
Instruction: 

Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Vocational programs 
Other instructional pmgrams 
Special programs 
Adult/continuing education 

Support savices: 
Pupil support services 
Instructional staff support services 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Non-instructional services: 
Food services operations 
Community services programs 

Long-term obligations* 
liiterest on long-term obligations 

Total expenses 

Decrease in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

June 30,2012 

$ 2,377,939 
30,576,016 

27,738 

22,375,690 
39.402.765 

117,404,761 
436,428 

1,760,196 
214,361.533 

$ 85,247,327 
19,081,018 
2,060.638 
8.433.690 
4,748.497 
1,307,125 

12,064.420 
15,249,486 
2,117,165 

12.936,711 
3.096381 

20,558.751 
11.091.742 
3319,011 

12.247,610 
77,809 

5.702,780 
$219,340,161 

(4,978,628) 

95,463,429 

$ 90.484.801 

June 30,2011 

$ 2.422,850 
34.514.499 

154,875 

21.274,013 
37,614,130 

112.675,404 
463.259 

1,336364 
210,455.394 

79.618.359 
20,7^7,905 
2,525,521 
8,964,146 
5,094.185 
1,304.667 

11,889,305 
13,066,081 
2.585,952 

12.117,437 
3,116.489 

22,640.998 
10.435.400 
3.235.562 

11,244,768 
75.104 

6,087,093 
$ 214,258,972 

(3,803.578) 

99,267.007 

$ 95,463,429 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ (44,911) 
(3,938,483) 

(127.137) 

1.101,677 
1.788,635 
4,729,357 

(26,831) 
423,832 

3.906,139 

5,628,968 
(1,176,8«/) 

(464,883) 
(530,456) 
(345.688) 

2,458 

175,115 
2,183,405 
(468,787) 

819,274 
(20,108) 

(2.082,247) 
656,342 
83,449 

1,002,842 
2.705 

(384,313) 
$ 5,081,189 

(1.175,050) 

(3,803,578) 

($4,978,628) 
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As stated earlier the net assets of the School Board at June 30 2012 deci eased by $4 9 milhoii from the pnor year It 
should also be noted that expenses increased by $5 1 milhon (2 37%) and levenues increased by $3 9 JTiJllaon (1 BGYo) 
The mcrease in the cost of governmental activities far outrcached the increase in revenues to fund these activities 
Revenues increased largely due to increases m. local tax revenues and state funding thi ough the Mnumum Foundation 
Program rormiila However operating expenses also rose at a much faster pace Tins is due to two signiiiicant 
increases m fixed costs that impacted the cost of all governmental activities m 2011 12 

(1) Retirement Cost The employer contribution rate for participating members of the Teacher s Retnement System of 
Louisiana (TR.SL) and the Louisiana School Bmphjyce s R.etircu'ieiit Sysleiia (LSERS) on average :mcreased by 
more than 17% These state adimnistered retu'ement plans are a denned benefit plan and due to the poor 
performance of the markets over the last couple of years contribution rates were adjusted actuarially to ensure 
continued fundmg for future benefits to be paid by the plans The employer contribution rate for "IRS L increased 
S-oni 20 2% of eligible payroll to 23 7% The employer contribution rate for LSERS mcreased from 24 3% of 
eligible payroll to 28 6% Collectively these mcre-ases in lettrement contribution rates ccx;t the Schoal Board an 
additional S-'l 1 million (or 1 9% of total expenses) m 2011 12 to operate Us programs 

(2) Group Health Insurance Premiums The employer current insurance premium paid for group health and life 
insurance benefits provided to active and retired employees increased ovei $2 457,928 dunng the 2011 12 fiscal 
year Tbs is laigely due to the State Office of Group Benefits program imposing tv/o rate increases dmnng the 
fiscal yeai' to mcrease employee and employer health uisurauce premiums In July 2011 premiums increased 
an>'̂ vhere fi-om 5 7% and then agam by another 7% December 2011 Total he-alth insurance costs mcreased by 
approximately 13 1% over the previous year 

Revenues by Source - Govci nmenf al Activities 

Total revenues of the Ouachita Parish School Board have increased by $3 906 139 (I 9%) over the prior year This 
mostly due to the mcrease m state MFP fiindmg for student growth in sales tax and ad valorem taix collections 
continuing its upward trend 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30,2012 

« Minimum Foundation Program (MFP") Pimdme. The largest revenue source for the School Board is state 
equalization funding awarded through the MFP at 54.8% of total revenues. This is the funding formula adopted by 
the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education and approved by the Louisiana Legislature to 
equitably distribute state appropriated funds to public school systems throughout the state. These funds hdp to 
pay for employee salaries and benefits and general operations. The State does not appropriate funds to public 
school systems for building schools or retiring debt. The distributions made through the MFP formmla are driven 
by student enrollments and donographics as of a certain date. The following is a summary of MFP Funding 
received by the School Board over a three-year period and student enrollment counts for reference. 

Fiscal Year 
2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

October 1^ 
Student 

Enrollment 
18.864 
19,186 
19.264 

State MFP 
Fnndine,Net 
$111,412,589 
$112,675,404 
$117,404,761 

Percentage 
Increase 

(Decrease') 
(2.14%) 
1.13% 
4.19% 

State MFP 
Reductions 

For Transfers of 
Local Funds 

$0 
$25,189 
$99,467 

Federal Stimulus 
Received to Fully 
fund the MFP 

$3,454,350 
$2,323,286 

$75,164 

The Ouachita Parish School Board was allocated $117,404,761 in state equalization fimding through the MFP 
funding formula, net of reductions made by the state for transfers of local funding to other state-approved 
educational providers who have enrolled studoits who live within the school zones of the Ouachita Parish School 
System. Of this annual MFP allocation received by the School Board, a deposit of $1,439,682 of was made to the 
School Food Sravice Special Revenue Fund. Also, a portion of federal stimulus iunding through the Education 
Jobs Bill in the amount of $75,164 was appropriated and passed through the Louisiana Department of Education to 
the School Board m order to provide level MFP fonding. This stimulus funding is combined with other Education 
Jobs awards funded apart fiom the MFP and is reported in the Education Jobs Fund as a separate nomamjor Special 
Revenue Fund in the Fund Financial Statements. 

Sales Tax Revenues: Sales taxes are the second largest revenue source for the School Board at 18.4% of total 
revenues. The School Board has four separate sales tax rates levied upon the sale and consumption of goods and 
services diroughout die parish and one school district for public schools. Each is accounted for in a separate 
governmental Special Revenue Fund: 

Fiscal 
Year 
TajtRatK 

2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

Major Fund 
District #1 
Sales Tax 

0.5% 
$ 5,761,805 
$ 6,130,045 
$ 6,429,472 

1968 Sales 
Tax-Salary 
Snpplemenfs 

0.5% 
$ 8.622.288 
$ 9,101.919 
$ 9,460,970 

1995 Sales 
Tax-Salary 
Supplements 

1.0% 
$ 11.684,435 
$ 12,428,471 
$ 12,984,223 

West Ouachita 
Bistrict 

Sales Tax 
1.0% 

$ 9,287,183 
$ 9.953,695 

Total 
Combined 

3.0% 
$35,355,711 
$ 37.614,130 

Percentage 
Increase 

tfDecrease) 

(6.21%) 
639% 

$ 10,528,100 $ 39,402,765 4.76% 

Sales tax revenues increased by $1,788,635 over the prior year. As the above chart indicates, the Scliool Board's 
collections have rebounded &om the recessionary decline in sales tax collections than occurred m 2009-10. This is 
largely due to tax payers resuming normal spending patterns. 
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Operating Grants & Contributions: The third largest revenue source for the School Board is operatuig grants and 
contributions at 14.3% of total revenues. Operating grants and contributions totaled approximately $30 6 million. 
and Federal grants represent approximately $24 9 million or 81.4% of this total v/hile state grants represent 
approximately $1.7 million or 5.5%. These grants and contnbutions are specifically restricted to certam programs, 
and therefore^ are netted against the costs of these programs to show a true net cost m the Statement of Activities. 

Fiscal 
Year 

2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

Tide I 
Programs 

% 7,105.095 
$ 7,709,105 
$ 6.081.855 

Special 
Education 
IDEA-B 

$ 5,854.764 
$ 7,443,098 
% 3,946,030 

School Food 
Service 

$ 6,404,244 
$ 6,413.579 
$ 7.139,633 

Other 
Operatii^ 
Grants & 

Contributions 

$12,991,382 
$12,948,717 
$13,408,498 

Total 

$ 32355.485 
$ 34,514.499 
$ 30.576.016 

Percentage 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

17.86% 
6.67% 

(11.41%) 

In the 2011-12 fiscal year, the School Board experienced a detsrease of $3,938,483 in operating grants and 
contributions over the prior year. Title I, Special Education IDEA-B, and School Food Scsrvice make up $17.2 
milhon (56.2%) of total operating grants and contributions. Decreases in operating grants and contributions are 
the result of reduced spending of stimulus fimding available to Title I and Special Education Programs through the 
Amo-ican Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009. 

It should be noted here that only $226,814 m ARRA funds were received in 2011-12, as compared to $4.31 million 
received in the previous 2010-11 fiscal period. These funds are passed throng the Louisiana Department of 
Education to the School Board for spending in specific program areas such as Title I and Special Education IDEA-
B. This is the thnd and final year of sthnulus fundmg under ARRA and the award period ended on S qptember 30, 
2011. These funds are included as operating grants and contributions in the above chart and in the Statement of 
Activities 

Ad Valorem Tax Revenues: The fourth largest revenue source for the Sdiool Board is ad valorem taxes at 10.44% 
of total revenues. Ad valorem collections are based upon the number of nulls autiiorized by taxpayers and levied 
annually by the School Board and the taxable assessed value of property (established by the Ouachitta Parish Tax 
Assessor), in accordance with the laws set-forth for this purpose by tfie Louisiana Legislature. The following chart 
lists the ad valorem tax revenues for the past three years. 

FiscalYear 
2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

IVTills 
29.33 
29.33 
29 33 

General Fnnd 
(Major Fnnd) 
$14,719,159 
$15,499,401 
$16,180,595 

Mills 
30 0 
30.0 
30 0 

East Ouachita 
Bond Debt 

Service Fund 
$5,290,132 
$5,774,612 
$6,195,095 

Total 
$20,009,291 
$21,274,013 
$22,375,690 

Percentage 
Increase 

COecirease) 
11.25% 
6.32% 
5 18% 

Ad valorem tax revenues increased by $1,101,677 (5.18%) over the prior year. 

Ad valorem tax collections continue to show modest growth especially in recently years attributed to increases in 
assessed property and public service utUities. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
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June 30,2012 

Cost of Services - Governmental Activities 

Program expenses and program revenues for governmental activities are classified by function (or program). Program 
revenues are comprised of (1) specific charges for services, and (2) operating and capital grants and contrihutions. The 
table below presents the total cost of services of each of the School Board's 9 largest fimctions. as well as each 
function's net cost (total cost less program revenues generated by the activities). Net cost shows the financial burden 
that was placed on the School Board's taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing this information allows readers 
to consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that function. 

Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Other mstruclional programs 
Pupil support services* 
Instructional sta^support senrices* 
School administration 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Food service operations* 
Subtotal 

All other programs 
Total 

For Year Ended 
June 30,2012 

Total Cost 
of Services 
$85,247,327 

19,081,018 
8.433,690 

12,064,420 
15,249,486 
12,936,711 
20,558,751 
11.091,742 
12,247.610 

183.974,044 
35,366.117 

$219,340,161 

Net Cost 
of Services 
$81,537^06 

18,133,593 
6.655.299 
9.356,548 
9331,624 

12358,671 
19,567,589 
10.653,438 
3.053,073 

170.647,070 
15,711398 

$186358^68 

For Year Ended 
June 30,2011 

Total Cost 
of Services 
$79,618359 

20.257,905 
8.964,146 

11.889305 
13.066.081 
12,117,437 
22,640,998 
10.435,400 
11,244.768 

190.234399 
24.024,573 

$214,258,972 

Net Cost 
of Services 
$77,160,160 

17,149,281 
6,515,873 
8.801.685 
6.592.187 

U.725.660 
2l.5'02,184 
10,1^395 
2.837.483 

162.3=88,908 
16,089,591 

$178,478,499 

For tiie 2011-12 fiscal year, total program ê qpenses of approximately $219.3 million exceeded total program revenues 
by approximately $186.4 million. This net cost of services was funded with other general revenues of the School 
Board. (^ Food Service Operations continues to be the highest funded program followed by InstTUctionaS Staff 
Support Services, and Pupil Support Services. 
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2 6 0 / .. 

Nonmstructional 
Services 

5 G-JS/ •-•} 

Inslniction Expf-nses for regular programs special education vocritKina) other mstructiortal progtaras special 
programs and adult education programs are considered to be mstruclional services and represent the direct 
expenses of providing instruction to students Jxtsli'UcUon services for the fiscal year 2011 12 cost more tlian $120 
million and represents 55 1% of total governmental activities The foUowmg chart shows the cost of instruction 
over the past tliree years 

Fiscal Year 
2009 10' 
7010 11 
2011 12 

Instnichon 
$115 659 405 
$117 764 783 
$120 878 295 

Percentage 
Inci ease 
(Decrease) 
(9 18%) 
1 82% 
2 64% 

Percent of Total 
Governmental 

Activities 
56 41% 
54 97% 
55 11% 

As shown in the chart above instruction services increased approximately S3 1 rmHion over the pxevious year 
The mcrease is associated with tv/o inajor costs Increases m (1) employer contributions to state defined benefit 
letirement p]an m excess of 17% ovei tJie previous ye îr and (2) an average increase of 13 1%> m employer 
premiums for group health and life insurance 

Support Sef\^ices Support services account for approximately $80 4 million or 36 7% of all govcniaienlal 
activitie.s These sei-yjces include Vupil Support Services (includes nursmg and counseling services) Instructional 
Staff Support Sen'iccs (includes media and library services staff ti*ammg and professional development and 
curriculum support) General Adrnmislralion of the School Board School Administration Business Services Plant 
Services Student Transportation and Central Sei-vices 
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fiscal Year 
2009-10 
2010-n 
2011-12 

Support Services 
$71,947,593 
$79,087,224 
$80,433,667 

Percentage 
Increase 

Pecrease) 
(9.18%) 
9.92% 
1.70% 

Percent of Total 
Governmental 

Activities 
35.09% 
36.91% 
36.67% 

Support services increased by $1,346,443 or 1.70% over the previous year mainly due to the same two costs: (1) 
Increase m employer contributions to state deiined benefit retJremoit plan in excess of 17% over the previous year, 
and (2) an average increase of 13.1% in employer premiums for group health and Me insurance 

Non-Instruotinpal Services: Activities concerned with providing non-mstructional services to students, staff or the 
communities are defined as Kon-Instructional Services. These services in this category include Food Service 
Operations and Community Service Programs. Non-Instructional Services account for $12.325,419« or 5.62% of 
total governmental activities. 

FiscalYear 
2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

Non-Instructional 
Services 

$11,439,472 
$11,319,872 
$12,325,419 

Percentage 
Increase 

(Becrease^ 
(5.77%) 
(1.05%) 
8.88% 

Percent of Total 
Governmental 

Activities 
5.58% 
5.28% 
5.62% 

Non-instructional services mcreased by $1,005,547 or 8.88% from the prefvious year mamly due to increases in 
employer contributions to state defined benefit retiremrait plan in excess of 17% over the previous year in Food 
Service Operations. 

• Long-Term Obligations: This activity covers interest expense and recurring e?qpenditures to service outstanding 
debt, such as fees paid to paying agents and legal fees. The cost of activities related to long-term obligations, 
which is primarily interest expense, was $5,702,780 or 2.6% of total governmental activiUes during the 2011-12 
fiscal year. 

FiscalYear 
2009-10 
2010-11 
2011-12 

Non-Instructional 
Services 

$5,982;204 
$6,087,093 
$5,702,780 

Percentage 
Increase 

(Detreasel 
(7.95%) 
1.75% 

(6 31%) 

Percent of Total 
Governmental 

Activities 
2.92% 
2.84% 
2 60% 

Expenses for long-term obligations decreased $384,313 or 6.31% fi-om the previous year mainly due to the normal 
decline in scheduled snmual interest payments for maturing long-term debt obligations. 
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Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds 

Afi noted earlier, the Ouachita Pansh School Board uses fimd accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-rdated legal requirements and to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. Thet focus of the 
Ouachita Parish Sdiool Board's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources and to help the reader to determine whether the School Board is being accountable for 
the resources ta:?q>ayers and oth^s provide to it In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a usiefiil measure 
of a School Board's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

A$ of the close of the current fiscal year, the School Board's governmental fiinds reported a combined ending fimd 
balance of $69,861,341, an increase of $8,476,908 in comparison with the pnor fiscal year. The key fectors of this 
increase are as follows* 

• General Fnnd - The General Fund, the principal operating iund of the School Board, operated with an overall 
deficiency of $930,407 for the 2011-12 fiscal year and ended the year with a fimd balance of $14,888,916. This 
represents a 5 8% decrease in fiind balance. The major revenue sources in the General Fund are state Minimum 
Foundation Program fimding and ad valoron tax revenues. The School Board adopted a formal policy that stated 
that the General Fund's iund balance should be maintained between 10 and 15 per cent of General Fund 
expenditures. The current balance of 10.8% is within the fiind balance limits set by the Board. The followmg chart 
shows the fimd balance and operating history of the General Fund for the past two years and 2011-12: 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
6/30/2010 
6/30/2011 
6/30/2012 

Revenues 
$128,777^96 
$131,559,114 
$136.892385 

Expenditures 
$126,377,463 
$133,041,354 
$137,385,577 

Other 
Sources 
gjses) 

($2,900,876) 
($9,820) 

($437,215) 

Excess 
(Pefldencv) 
$2,400,033 

($1,492,060) 
($930,407) 

Balance 
$17.311383 
$ 15.819.323 
$14,888,916 

Fund Balance 
as a 

Percentage of 
Eaipenditures 

13.70% 
11.89% 
10.84% 

Revenues. Overall General Fund revenues in the General Fund had a net increase of about $5.3 million. Ad 
valorem taxes were up $681,194 for the year. The increase in ad valorean taxes was due to an increase in property 
assessment values and assessments on pubhc utility services. State MFP fimding increased by $4.7 million afi^ 
the state restored state appropriated fiinds to the MFP fi)rmula that were previously substituted with stimulus 
fimding through the Hducation Jobs Bill and for mcreased student enrollment. Only $75,164 in jfederal fimds 
through the Education Jobs Bill (stimulus) were used to make up the short fall in state appropriations: for the MFP 
for this year. Earnings on our investments continue to lag with no increases dns year, mainly in depressed short-
term mterest rates for maturities up to 3 years out. 

Expenditures. General Fund expenditures increased by about $4 3 miUion or 3.3%. The major increases are due 
to the following: (1) an increase of over 16% in our employer costs for retirement benefits over the previous year 
for all state retirement system plans combined. This is about about $2.5 million in additional retirement 
expenditures Total retirement plan contributions made fiom the General Fund in 2011 -12 was $ 18 million (2) In 
addition, employer pension of premiums paid for employees participating in the state group msurance plan 
increased a total of $1.785,112. or about 10%. This increase is largely due to two premium increases fi>r health 
insurance implemented by the school board's group health insurance plan. Total cost of insurance premiums to the 
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General Fund in 2011-12 was $19.1 million. Other increases in expenditures came m increases in dransportation 
fiiel costs and normal employee salary step increases 

Other Financing Uses, Total other sources (uses) increased by $427,395. The main reasons for this increase were 
transfers made to the District #1 Mamtenance & Operatmg Special Revenue Fund to cover overages in fimds 
committed for maintenance and equipment repair, and a one-time transfer of fiinds to support the Internal Service 
Fund to ensure the payment of fiiture workers compensation and general liability claims. 

District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund The District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund is a major fimd of 
the School Board. The proceeds from this tax are committed for the following specific purposes: (1) Instructional 
support - 36%, (2) capital improvements - 23%, (3) facility and equipment support - 15%, (4) salary restoration -
12%, and (5) mandated costs - 14%. The fimd balance decreased by $952,251 or 6.2% as compared to the 
previous year The District #1 Sales TaxPund ended the year with a fond balance of $14,477,447. 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
6/30/2010 
6/30/2011 
6/30/2012 

Other 
Sources 

Revenues 
$5,812,862 
$6,166,113 
$6,765,669 

Expenditures 
$2,911,986 
$8,045,295 
$7,850,520 

$ 
$132,600 

Excess 
fl>eficiency) 
$2,900,876 
($1,879,182) 
($952,251) 

Ending Fund 
Balance 

$17,308,880 
$15,429,698 
$ 14,477,447 

Percentage 
Increase 

flPecreaye) 
20,13% 

(10.86%) 
(6 17%) 

Revenues, The primary revenue source for this fimd is the collection of a 0.5% sales tax levied on sal*es and use of 
goods and services throughout the parish, excluding the City of Monroe. The levy of this sales tax was renewed 
by voters in April 2011 for an additional 10-year period In 2011-12 revenues mcreased by $599,556 or 7.5% over 
the previous year. 

Expenditures. Expenditures decreased in 2011-12 by $194,775, or 2.4%. This is primarily due to reducing the 
number of buses purchases from 14 in the previous year to only 10 this year. Also, project expenditures of $1.4 
million in the prior year to replace of airhandlers in older heating units in school facilities throughout the district 
was suspended this year, and this reduction was offset by mandated costs for payment of salaries and b^efits for 
teachers who w«re on sabbatical leave during the fiscal year of approximately $1.1 milUon. Sabbatical leave 
e;tpenditures were charged to the General Fund in the previous year, and was transferred to the District #1 
Maint^sance and Operating Fund to reduce General Fund expenditures. 

Ea«t Ouachita 2010-2011 Construction Capital Projects Fund. The East Ouachita 2011-2012 Construction 
fimd is a new major fimd in 2011-12 and a new established Capital Projects Fund. The primary revenue source for 
this fimd is the receipt of $19.3 million in general obligation bond proceeds for two bond sales that took place 
during the fiscal year and any interest earned thereon. The remaining fimd balance in this capital projects fimd is 
to be used for &cility construction and improvement projects in the bond district during the year. C>>nstruction 
prefects are projected to be completed by June 2014. 

Noxixnajor Other Governmental Funds. The nonmajor Other Governmental Funds accounts for ail other 
governmental fiinds of the School Board which are not considered major iunds. These fimds are presented in the 
fecial Revenue Fimds, Debt Service FUnds, and Capital Projects Funds combioing financial statements. Other 
Govenunental Funds ended with a $28,012,094 fimd balance at June 30, 2012. This increase of $1,5 million 
(5.7%) over the previous year's fimd balance is primarily due to increased reserves in the Debt Service Fimds and 
reductions in spending in the Special Revenue Funds. 
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Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds mcludes non-raajor fiinds for two sales tax salary supplement 
fimds, the West Ouachita district sales tax fund, school food service, and all other federal, state, andl local grants 
Special Revenue Funds ended with a iimd balance of $14,330,935 for the year which is an increase of $1,527,540, 
or 1.19%, fiom the prior year's ending fiind balance. This is mainly due to increased collection of sale tax 
revenues in all sales tax fimds and the suspension of new project expoxditures in the West Ouachita Sales Tax 
Fund fijr school fecility repairs, mamtenance and improvements in order to reestablish fiinds fi>r fiiture projects. 
Total revenues decreased by $2,652,438 primarily due to the expiration of federal ARRA stinmlus fiinds m Title I 
and Special Education IDEA B Funds. Total expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds decreased by $4,493,052 
in the current year, primarily due to suspending new projects exp^iditures in the West Ouachita Sales tax Fund 
and the endmg of federal ARRA sthnulus fimds for Title I and Special Education IDEA B Funds on Septeniber 30, 
2011. State Grants mcreased its fimd balance by $217,549 for its Medicaid programs that provide medical and 
health related services to students. 

Debt Service Funds. Debt Services fiinds includes fiinds for the payment of maturing d^ t in the East Ouachita 
Bond Fund and the West Ouachita Bond Fimd. The primary fimding sources for these debt service fimds are a 
transfer of sales tax proceeds from the West Ouachita Sales Tax Fund to the West Ouachita Bond Fund and a 30.0 
mill ad valorem tax approved by voters in the East Ouachita Bond Distnct and levied by the board annually. The 
Debt Service Funds ended the year with a fimd balance of $12,466,180 which is an increase of $82S,676 over the 
prior year, hi accordance with state law, the fimd balance in debt services fimds should be maintained at a level 
not to exceed the next year's required principal and interest payments. Also, the debt service related to the West 
Ouachita 2009 QSC3 Revenue Bonds requires annual principal payments to be invested and held in trust fi>r the 
future payout of $10 million to bond holders at maturity. Therefore the Debt Service Fund fimd balance will 
increase annually until the $10 million in QSCB Revenue Bond principal fiiUy matures in 2019. 

Capital Protects Funds. The Capital Prefects Funds account for the fi>llowmg non-major fiinds in 2011-12: West 
Ouachita 2009 QSCB Construction, West Ouachita 2008 Construction, and East Ouachita Construcuon. The 
Capital Projects Fund ended the year with a $1,214,979 fimd balance. This is a $4.5 million redmction in fimd 
balance as compared to the previous year*s ending fiind balance. This is primarily the result of alll construction 
projects drawing near to a completion in 2011-12. The West Ouachita 2008 Construction fimds are nearly 
depleted at year-end. The West Ouachita 2009 QSCB Construction fimds were used to start constwction of the 
Science Technology Engineering and Math buildmg at West Monroe Higji School and remaining fimds will be 
used to finish the project in the next fiscal period. East Ouachita Construction fimds were used for the renovation 
of the Sterlington Middle School gym which is also will be completed in the next fiscal period. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The School Board, in accordance with state law. must adopt a budget on the General Fund and all Special Revenue 
Funds by September 15* each year. State Jaw provides the School Board xnay have variances of five-percent of total 
revenues or expenditures in a fimd before it is legally required to am^d the budget. The School Boaa:d adopted its 
2011-12 original budget on Sq>tember 13, 2011, and revised the budget on April 3, 2012. Differences between (a) the 
origmal and final budget and (b) the final budget and actual data of the General Fund are as fi>llows: 

Revenues (Final Budget) Original revenues budgeted in the General Fund were increased by $572,403 or 0.4% in the 
final budget primarily due to final adjustments made during the year to state equalization fimding for increased student 
enrollment. The Louisiana Department of Education issues a state MFP fimding letter in July each year that estimates 
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the state MFP ftinding to be provided to school districts in the state for the fiscal year. This letter is later revised for 
during the fiscal year for mid-year adjustments m December and March to account for adjustments in student 
enrolhnent as of October l" and February 1*̂  durmg the school year Based on the July fimding letter^ the original 
budget fi)r MFP fiinding was estimated to be ̂ proximately $115 3 million to fiie General Fund When the final MFP 
budget letter was received m March 2012, adjusting our fiindmg upward for student growth dunng the year, the final 
budget fi>r state MFP revenues was mcreased by $695,008. 

Revenues (Actual Data). Actual General Fund revenues exceeded the final budget by $875,734. This was primarily 
due to the followmg (1) underestimating ad valorem tax revenue collections by $280,595. (2) underestimatmg earnings 
on investmMits by $144,608 due to the book-to-maricet at year end, and (3) underestimating payments from school 
Agency Funds for reimbursement of substitute costs, printing, and bus field trip charges of approximately $393,872 at 
year-end. 

Ej^nditures (Final Budget). The original budgeted expenditures in the General Fund increased on the final budget by 
$834,229 or 0.6%. The primary reason fox this increase is the second rate increase in health insurance premiums by the 
state Office of Group Benefits that occurred in December 2011. This increased premiums by another 6% which is 
approximately $1.0 milhon m additional cost projected to be incurred throng year-end. Also, rising fiiel prices 
increased otir original estimates fiir diesel and gas by approximately 26%. 

Expenditures (ActualData). Actual esipenditures came in under budget by $1,798,499. or 1.3%. This is primarily due 
to the actions taken by the School Board at mid-year to begin unplementuig a partial hiring-fieeze to avert the fiscal 
cliff management has projected for the next fiscal period. The intent of the partial hiring freeze was not to replace stafi* 
positions through attrition with permanent fiill tune staff. FuU-tune teaching staff were replaced wEth temporary 
certified teacher substitutes, and classified sta£f were not replaced, except in critical situations. 

Other Financing Sources (Final Budget and Actual), Theare were no Otha: Sources m the original budget However. 
the budget was amended to inchide $38,000 in proceeds from the sale of assets. The actual proceeds from the sale of 
assets during the year were $42,785. 

Other Financing Uses (Final Budget and Actual). The orighial budget of $250,000 was made in anticipation of 
overruns m the dedicated portion of the District Ul Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund for facility maintenance services. 
as had occurred in previous years. The budget was later revised to increase this transfer to $480,000 as it was 
projected this fimd would exceed the budget aheady set At year-end. the actual transfer to the District if J Sales Tax 
fecial Revenue Fund was only $132,600 as overruns were not as anticipated, and management transferred the 
remaining $347,400 to the Internal Service Fund to support the payment of workers compensation claims. 

Deficiency of Revenue over Expenditures (Final Budget and Actual). A deficiency of $3,051,347 was originally 
budgeted, and with the final revision this estunate was mcreased by $375,676 to $3,427,023 The actual deficiency 
was $930,407 for the year which is less than final budget by $2,496,616 due to the changes in jevenues and 
expeuditures noted above. 

Capital Assets 

The Ouachita Parish School Board*s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2012 amounts to $232,108,877 {ndt of 
accumulated depreciation and amortization) as reported on the Statement of Net Assets. This uxvestment in capital 
assets includes land and improvements, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, intangibles, and 
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construction m progress, and reduced by accumulated depreciation and amortization expense fiom the current and 
prior years. The table below shows the values of each category for two years. 

Ouachita Parish School Board's Governmental Activities 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation and Amortization) 

June 30, 
2012 2011 

Land $ 6.160.668 $ 6.148,660 
Land unprovements 2,614,136 2,268,097 
Buildings and improvements 205,654,064 192,449,540 
Furmture and equipment 8,797.276 9.665,030 
Construction in progress 7,614,996 19,048,762 
Intangible assets 1,267,737 1,374,095 

Total $ 232,108,877 $ 230,954,184 

At June 30, 2012. sst capital assets increased by $1,154,693 million or 0 5% during the current fiscal yeair. Net capital 
assets were increasing on an average of $25 million per year from the year 2000 until about 2005 wheo construction 
slowed down and net capital assets started increasing by approximately $1 million per year. Then construction started 
again as the result of selling additional general obligation bonds and revenue bonds in 2007-08,2008-09. 2009-10. and 
2011-12. As a result, net capital assets have been increasing by an average of approximately $12.8 miHion each year 
in the three years prior to 2011-12 However, that has now slowed m 2011-12 since the majority of these projects have 
been completed in prior years. Renovations and construction projects were the main reason fi)r the $1.1 million 
increase in net capital assets. 

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following: 

e Purchased 10 buses for the fleet at a cost of $756,765 
• Purchased two small tracts of land adjacent to West Monroe High School - $12,008 
B Completed construction and renovation projects of in excess of $ 19 million as follows* 

• Roof rq)lacement at Mamtenance/Annex Facihty - $393,574 
•" New Sterlington Elementary School - $12,418,094 
" Four new classrooms at Robinson Elementary and renovations - $769,640 
• Recovered parkmg lot at Shady Grove - $54,139 
" New greenhouse at Ouachita High - $71,400 
" Batting cages and storage shed at Ouachita Junior High - $17,139 
" Road entrance and front building canopy at C^tral Elementary - $272.147 
» Two new classrooms at Good Hope Middle - $415,204 
B Covered walkway, new secure building entrance and remodeled classrooms at Boley Elementary - $64,299 
" New secure building entrance, update flooring and installed parking lot gates at George Welch - $122,354 
• Renovate bathrooms, update flooring and conference room at Kiroli Elementary - $158,729 
o New cafeteria and six-classroom wing at Woodlawn Elementary - $2,823,065 
» Renovate auditorium and restrooms at West Monroe High - $548.188 
o Baseball field improvements at Ouachita High - $54,250 
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» Baseball outfield fence and battmg cage cover at Sterimgton High - $162,397 

9 The following capital improvement projects were still in progress at June 30. 2012 

» Total renovation ofgymatSterlingtonMiddle School (old AL. SmithSchool) -$1,954,171 
o Enclose outside entrances and relocate school office at Crosley Elementary- $538,885 
" Construct outdoor classroom and secure building entrance at Riverbend Elementary - $198,219 
" New Science, Technology, Engineering and Math buildmg at West Monroe High - $828,964 
= New multipurpose building/gym at Lakeshore Elementary - $294,020 
• Renovate bathrooms at Ouachita High -$151,496 
0 Update flooring at Swartz Lower Elementary - $89,219 
» New maintenance shop at East Transportation Garage - $580,425 
» Three new turf athletic fields at Ouachha High, Richwood High and Sterlington High - $2,215,157 
° Renovations to science labs and replace basketball bleachers at Ouachita High - $89,047 
» Resurfece road to the baseball field at Ouachita High - $184,785 
• New multipurpose building/gym and renovate dressing rooms at Ouachita Junior - $ 120.485 
" New vocational building at Richwood High - $4,950 

Dq)reciation expense of $9,295,827 and amortization expense of $223,875 for the current fiscal year lowered all 
capital asset vahies by a total of $9,519,702. 

For additional mformation regarding capital assets, see Note 1 J. and Note 7 in the Notes to the Basic Financial 
Statements section of this report 

Debt Administration 

At June 30, 2012, the School Board had $152,903,556 in bonds outstanding, net of deferred amount of refiinding. The 
table below summarizes the outstanding debt for each bond district at June 30,2012 and for the prior year. 

Ouachita Parish School Board's Govermnental Activities 
Outstanding Debt 

June 30, 
Debt Instrument 2012 2011 
General obligation bonds - East Ouachita $ 83,950,000 $ 67,650.000 
Revenue bonds - West Ouachita 68.953,556 72,379,024 
Certificates of indebtedness - West Ouachita -__ 2,070,000 

Total outstanding debt $ 152,903,556 $ 142,099.024 

Total outstanding debt mcreased by $ 10,804,532 during the fiscal year as a result of the sale of $19.3 million in 
general obligation bonds during tiie year in the East Ouachita district to finance construction projects. The certificates 
of indebtedness were paid oif completely during the year 

The total amount of principal that will mature in less than one year for all debt instruments is $7,030,000 
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The state limits the amount of general obligation debt that school boards can issue to 35% of the assessed value of all 
taxable property within the school board's corporate limits. At June 30.2012. Bast Ouachita Bond District's maximum 
legal debt limit was $92,529,133. The East Ouachita District's outstanding general obligation bonded debt of 
$83,950,000 is bdow the maximum debt limit 

The Ouachita Parish School Board contiimes to receive high ratings fit>m Standard & Poor's on all of its outstanding 
debt* 

Debt Issues Rating Most Recent Ratings Issued 

General obligation bonds - East Ouachita AA- May 26.2011 
Revenue bonds - West Ouachita AA- November 29,2011 

Other long-term obligations of the School Board include accrued vacation pay and sick leave and other post-
employment beneflts. We present more detailed mformation about our long-term obligations in Note l.N. and Note 12 
in th& Notes to the Basic Financial Statements section of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

Below are several factors that will alter the origmal budget for fiscal year 2012-13 afier its adoption: 

« The property values for the 2012 tax roll were reassessed. Current information fiom the Ouachita Parish Tax 
Assessor shows the assessed values of property will increase 4.6% from $714.4 million in 2011 to $747.8 million 
in 2012. which is higher than the 1.2% increase originally budgeted. Total ad valorem collections fiom 
reassessment are expected to increase budgeted General Fund revenues by approximately $750,000. 

« State MFP fimding is expected to increase approximately $3.1 million. The decrease of 49 students estimated by 
tbe state did not materialize. Instead, actual student enrollment for 2012-13 has increased in excess of 350 
students over the previous year based on the current year's October 1, 2012 CTrolhnent count and beyond the 50 
students lost to the state non-public voucher prograrxL 

• Due to the increase m student earolhnent. additional classroom teachers were hued and will required increases m 
salaries and benefits by approximately by approximately $720,000. 

« The School Board has approved an additional $300,000 m additional plant e3q>enditures to repair playground 
equipment fiill zones at elementary schools. 

General Fund 
Summary of Original Budget 

Fiscal year 2012-13 

Revenues $ 135,187,152 
Expenditures (134,980,221) 
Other Sources (Uses) of Funds C789,606) 
Net Changes in Fund Balance (582.675) 

Beginnmg Fund Balance 14.852>588 

Ending Fund Balance $ 14.269.913 
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The estimated endmg fiind balance at June 30, 2013 is 10.57% of total General Fund expenditures which is within the 
range of the School Board *s current fiind balance maintenance policy which is 10-15 % of expenditures. The main 
reasons for the budgeted reduction in fund balance are the continued increase m our fixed costs and a projected 
decrease in student enrollment. A deficit of $8.5 million was anticipated for the 2012-13 fiscal year. Administration 
began the process early in 2011-12 to plan the necessary budget measures needed to reduce the looming deficit The 
deficit is the result of overall revenues expected to decrease $1.3 million mainly due to reductions m state MFP 
fimding for lower student enrollment, and expenditures increasing by approximately $6.3 million. 

These are some of the major expenditures attributing to this deficit. Employe state retirement rates are again 
mcreasing more than 4% (or $818,000) which is down from the 17% increase in 20ll"12; and $2.8 million in 
retir^nent expenditures funded through Education Jobs Bill fimding is being transferred back to the General Fund as 
this federal stimulus fimding expired June 30,2012. [The decreasing severity of retirement rate increases over the past 
couple of years has now ended as we have just received preliminary estimates of an 11% mcrease in the state plan rates 
for the 2013-14 fiscal year, compared to the 4% increase in 2012-13.] Normal annual salary step raises will increase 
salaries and benefits by approximately $1 million, and fiiel costs are expected to increase approximately 12% or 
$150,000. 

The Office of Group Benefits (0GB). the administrator of our agent multi-employer sponsored plan for active and 
retnee participants' health and life insurance benefits, approved a 4% premium decrease effective August 2012. When 
combined with the 5-7% premium increase m the middle of the previous fiscal year, fiiis this will reduce annual group 
insurance costs only by approximately $110,000. 

In anticipation of the 2012-13 fiscal cli^, the School Board approved administration's recommendation to* implement a 
partial lijring fieeze early in January 2012 which set guidelines for temporary rqplacement of classroom teachers and 
froze replacement of vacated support positions and adnunistrative/certified-eontract positions. For the 20112-13 budget, 
approximately 135 permanent position were eliminated through attrition for a reduction $6 3 million in salaries and 
tenefits. Other recommendations made by administration that were approved by the School Board far' the 2012-13 
fiscal year included reducing textbook purdiases and suspending out of state travel, school matching fiinds program 
and extending band uniform purchasing cycle to save an additional $1.2 million. With the implementation of these 
recommendations, the budgeted deficit has been reduced to $582,675. 

In regards to the impact of the local economy on the finances of the School Board, our local economy is the stability 
and strength of our financial success. Our local tax base has shown slow steady growth and has been resilient to the 
national economic decline. The prospect for increased employment in the region is certain with the recent expansion 
of CenturyLink facilities and plans to add 800 jobs to tiieir payrolls over the next 5-10 years. The CenturyLink 
expansion also impacts the local housing market. Most of the direct jobs added will be from in-migration of 
employees. This will increase new home construction and existing home purchases over the next several years. Also, 
in June. 2012, Graphic Paokagmg International announced the completion of the $8.6 million expansion of its 
consumer carton facility in West Monroe; this expansion created 47 new jobs for the community. 

Our uncertamty comes with our state MFP fiinding. We are currently in the fourth year of level fimdilng undo: the 
MFP, meaning the increase in fiinding for the annual 2.75% inflationary factor has been waived. We have been 
fortunate that during this time our student enrollment has continued to increase. As a result, the Ouachita Parish 
School Board has not had a reduction in MFP fiinding for many years. We do anticipate fiiture student growth fiom the 
mcrease in jobs in our area and ongoing economic development in the region, MFP fimding is awarded to school 
districts as a block grant where the School Board has the flexibility to make spending decisions. However with the 
changes made in the 2012 Legislative Session, more of this block grant fimding received through the MFP. includmg 
local tax fimds collected by the School Board, is being redirected to educational providers who operate outside of the 
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governing authority of the Ouachita Parish School Board and to fiind new education programs initiated by the State 
Department of Education As the state continues to &ce budget shortfiills and as the new education refonn initiatives 
recentiy passed by the State Legislature this last session become fiiUy implemented, it is undetermined at this time how 
diese changes will impact the fiiture sustainabihty of the School Board's current operations m the fiiture through the 
MFP fiinding formula. 

Contacting the School Board's Financial Management 

This financial r^ort is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of 
the School Board's financial condition and to show the School Board's accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information contact Juanita H. Duke, CPA. Director of 
Business, Ouachita Parish School Board. P. O. Box 1642, Monroe, LA 71210-1642 or call at (318) 432-5000 or email 
to idukefSioDsb net. 
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Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 
Investments (Note 4) 
Receivables (Note 6): 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Federal grants 
Other 

Prepaid items (Note 1.H.) 
Inventory (Note IH . ) 
Bond issuance costs, net (Note 1J.) 
Capital assets, net (Note 7): 

Land 
l_and improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Intangible assets, net (Note 7) 
Total assets 

Uabilltles: 
Accounts payable 
Salaries and wages payable 
Deposit fjabfltties 
Unearned revenues 
Interest payable - bonds 
Long-tenn liabilities: 

Due within one year (Note 12) 
Due in more than one year (Notes 9 and 12) 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: (Note O) 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 

Debt service 
Salaries and benefits 
Worlcers compensation surety 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

47.183,386 
41.677,311 

82.182 
6,925.631 
3.734.630 

770,530 
1.384 

320.558 
814,934 

6.160,668 
2,614,136 

205.654,064 
8.797.276 
7.614,996 
1,267.737 

333,619,323 

2.263.452 
22.668,521 

274,126 
586,238 

1.895,938 

14,260,857 
201.285,390 
243,134,522 

93.275,754 

12,466.180 
6.040,261 

626.000 
(21,922,394) 

$ 90,484.801 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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PROGRAM REVENUES 

EXPENSES 

OPERATING CAPITAL 
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND 

SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS 

NET (EXPENSE) 
REVENUE AND 

CHANGES IN 
NET ASSETS 

Functions/programs: 
Instructional services: 

Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Vocational programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 
Adult/contfnuing education 

Support services. 
Pupil support services 
Instructional staff support services 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Noninstructional services: 
Food service operations 
Community service programs 

Long^erm obligations: 
Interest on long-term obligations 

Total Govemmental Activities 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 
Ad valorem taxes levied for. 

General purposes 
Debt seivice purposes 

Sales taxes levied for 
General purposes 
Salaries and related benefits 

Grants and contributions not 
restricted to specific programs: 
Minimum Foundation Program 
State revenue sharing 

Interest and Investment earnings 
Other 

Total general revenues 
Changes In net assets 
Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

$ 85,247,32/ 
19,081.018 
2,060,638 
8,433,690 
4,748,497 
1,307.125 

12,064.420 
15.249.486 
2.117,165 

12.936.711 
3,096.381 

20.558,751 
11,091.742 
3,319.011 

12,247,610 
77.809 

5.702,780 
$ 219,340.161 

$ 5,962 
-
-

184.312 
-

90.391 

122.618 
-
-
-

6,620 
2.279 

-
7,813 

1.919,605 
38,339 

„ 

$ 2.377,939 

$ 3.704.059 
947,425 
281,313 

1.594,149 
4.038.083 
1,198.261 

2,571,264 
5,917.862 

34,336 
578,040 
912,690 
988,884 
438,304 

64.839 

7.274.932 
13.695 

„ 

$ 30.576.016 

$ 

13.748 

13,990 

27.738 

(81,537.306) 
(18,133,593) 
(1,779.325) 
(6.655,229) 

(696,686) 
(20.473) 

(9,356,548) 
(9.331,624) 
(2,082,829) 

(12,358.671) 
(2.177,171) 

(19,567,589) 
(10,653,438) 

(3.226.360) 

(3.053,073) 
(25.775) 

(6.702.780) 
(186,358,468) 

16.180,595 
6,195,095 

16,957.573 
22.445.192 

117,404.761 
823.218 
436,428 
936.978 

181.379,840 
(4.978,628) 
95.463.429 
90,484.801 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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(With Comparative Totals For June 30.2011) 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 
InvestmsntB (Note 4) 
Receivables (Note 6) 

Ad valorem taxes 
Sates and use ta)CE!s 
Federal grants 
Other 

Due from other fur^ds (Note 13) 
lnventory(Note1H) 
Prepa'd items 
Total assets 

Liabil i t ies and fund balances 
UabUities: 

Accounts payable 
Salaries and wages payable 
Deposits payable 
Relainages payable 
Unearned revenues 
Due to other fUnds (Note 13) 

Total RabSities 

Fund balances; 
Nonspendable: (Note 14) 
Inventory 

Restricted for (Note 14) 
Protested taxes 
Preechotil tnstnjcOon 
Wortere compensation surety 
Salaries and benefits 
Student health senrices 
Food services 
Debt service 
Construction and operations 
Capital projects 

Committed for. (Note 14) 
M a ^ equipment repairs 
Instructional programs 
Salaries end benefits 
Capitat Improvements 
Mandated costs 

Assigned fon(Notft 14) 
Drivers education 
Instructional programs 
Salaries and benefits 
Scholarships 
Student health/supporl services 

Unassigned (Note 14) 
Total fund balances 

Total Itatnufles and fund balances 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$ 14,509,538 
16,746.299 

64,346 

-
70,243 

144,008 
2,397.274 

-
-

$ 33,931.705 

$ 1.014,022 
16,028.767 

-
-
-
-

19.042.789 

-

-
-

625,000 

-
-
-
-
-
-

715,351 

-
-
-
-

167,460 
251.108 

-
4,836 

-
13.125381 
14.888.916 

$ 33.931.705 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

FUND-
DISTRICTS! 
SALES TAX 

$ 4,997.155 
9,018,120 

-
1.129.562 

-
-
-
-
-

$ 15.144.837 

$ 3B.550 
628,840 

-
-
-
-

667.390 

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
3,782.044 
4,583.008 
2,709,004 
3,403,391 

-
-
-
-
-
-

14.477.447 

$ 15,144337 

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS-

EASTOUACKITA 
2011-2012 

CONSTRUCTION 

$ 13.670,993 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 13,570,993 

$ 847378 

-
-

2 4 0 ^ 1 

-
-

1.088,109 

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-

12,482.884 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

12.482.884 

$ 13.670,993 

OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

$ 12^45393 
11,030,687 

17,836 
5,705.989 
3.664,387 

626,522 

-
320,fi5R 

1,384 
S 35.302,918 

$ 362,502 
3,910.914 

-
33,895 

688,238 
2,397,274 
7.290,823 

148.911 

-
1,903 

-
6 . 0 4 0 ^ 1 
1349333 
1,231375 

12.466,180 
5,141.743 
1,214,979 

-
-
-
-
-

-
12,564 
7.850 

-
396,694 

-
28,012,093 

$ 35.302316 

TOTAL 

2012 

$ 48.023,279 
37.695383 

82,182 
6325331 
3»734.e30 

77033O 
2397,274 

32035S 
1384 

$ 97350/151 

$ 2.262332 
22,568321 

-
274,126 
588,238 

2,397.274 
28389.111 

148.911 

-
1303 

625304 
6340,261 
1349,533 
1,231,575 

12^66,180 
5,141,743 

13,697,863 

71S,36;i 
3.782344 
4383,008 
2,709,004 
3.403,391 

167,460 
263,672 

7,650 
4336 

398394 

13,125361 
69361340 

$ 

T 

$ 

2011 

34.703307 
36.037,103 

72,674 
6.471388 
8.998,314 

695349 
14,235373 

371323 
1.417 

101,487348 

2.0253t»3 
22.432.632 

98.OU0 
783363 
526,854 

14.235.973 
40,103,216 

114.280 

355,450 
2.244 

825.000 
5360.192 
1.177.327 
1,186,675 

11332,367 
4,572,463 
5.694,513 

500.000 
3,635.229 
4,614,732 
1398.462 
5,181,285 

150.299 
131.438 

26,241 
9.260 

348339 
14.168.947 
61,384.433 

$ 97350.451 $ 101,487.646 

See accornpenylng notes to the ba^o flnant^al ate/emenfs 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds ' 
Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2012 

Total fund balances - governmental funds $69,861,340 

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture and equipment) and 
intangible assets (software) purchased or constructed is reported as an 
expenditure in Governmental Funds. The Statement of Net Assets includes 
those capita] assets and intangible assets among the assets of the School 
Board as a whole. The cost of those capital and intangible assets is albcated 
over their estimated use&l lives (as depreciation expense for coital assets 
and amortization expense for intangible assets) to the various programs 
reported as Govemmental Activities in the Statement of Activities. Because 
neither depreciation nor amortization expenses affect foiancial resources, 
they are not reported in the Govemmental Funds. 

Cost of capital assets $365,131,960 
Accumulated depreciation (134,290,820) 
Cost of intangible assets 2,339,691 
Accumulated amortization fL07I.954^ 

232,108,877 

The costs associated with issuing bonds are reported as expenditures in the 
Govemmental Funds. The issuance costs are not considered financial 
resources in the Stat^nent of Net Assets; therefore, the costs are reported 
on the Statement of Net Assets as an asset net of accumulated amortization. 

Bond issuance cost 2,087,550 
Accumulated amortization (1.272.6151 

Elimination of interfund assets and liabiUties. 
Interfund assets (2,397,274) 
Interfund liabilities 2.397.274 

814,934 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds ' 
Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Assets (continued) 

June 30,2012 

Long term habilities applicable to the School Board's govemmental 
activities are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are 
not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities - both current and long term 
- are reported in the Statement of Net Assets. Post-employment benefits in 
the Govemmental Funds are recorded as expenditures when paid. The 
\mfunded aimual required contribution in the Statement of Net Assets is 
recognized as a liability as it accrues. 

Balances at June 30,2012 are; 
Long-term liabilities: 

Compensated absences payable ($6,711,277) 
General obligation bonds payable (83,950,000) 
Revenue bonds payable (69,510,000) 
Deferred amount on refunding - Rev. bonds 556,444 
Bond premium (442,364) 
Other post-Qtnployment benefits (54.387.168) 

(214,444,365) 

Interest on outstanding bonds in the Govemmental Funds is recorded as an 
e3q)end£ture when paid. Bond interest in the Statement of Net Assets is 
recognized as an expense as it accrues. 

Accrued interest on outstanding bonds (1,895,938) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

ReconciiSation of the Governmental Funds' 
Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Assets (concluded) 

June 30,2012 

The School Board self-insures for general liability and workers' 
compensation* Funds to meet these liabilities are dq)Osited in an Internal 
Service Fimd. The Internal Service Fund is not reported with the 
Govemmental Funds. The Internal Service Fund is reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets. The Int^nal Service Fund's net assets at June 30, 
2012, are as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,160,107 
Investments 3,982,228 
Accounts payable (5 00) 
Claims liability (1.101.882;̂  

4.039.953 

Net Assets $90.484.801 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements (concluded) 
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Ouachita Par^h 8choof Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

GOVERNMEtfTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

(With Comparaiivo Totals For Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011) 

REVENUES 
Local sources; 

Ad valorem taxes (Note 5} i 
1% ad valorem tsK - tax collector 
Sales and use t9ces 
Eemfngs (tosses) on Investments 
Cash payments for meals 
other 

State sources-
State equalization 
Revenue sharing 
Professional Improvement Program 
Stale contribution for tea&her Fetirement (Note 8 
Restricted grants-In-aW 

Federal sources: 
Federal piogmms 
other tederat support 

Total revenues _ 

EXPENprrURES 
Current: 

Instnjcllonal services: 
Regular programs 
Special education programs 
VocaBonal programs 
Other Instructional programs 
Special programs 
Adull/continutng education 

Support seivlDes: 
PupB support services 
instruclionat staff support services 
Generd admlnlstrBuon 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant sendees 
Student transportation eervlcos 
Central services 

NoninstnJcUond senrlces 
Food senrtce operations 
Community seMce programs 
FaenOy acqulsilion and construction 

Debt service (Note 12)-
Prtndpat 
Interest and other charges 
Bond Issuance costs 

Total expenditures 
Excess (datlctency) of revenues over expenditure" 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds firom sale of assets 
Bond issuance 
Issuance of refunding detit 
Premium on refunding debt 
Premium on bond sedes 
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent-prbcit 
Payment to reftmded det>t escrow agent-interet 
Transfers In (Note 16) 
Transfers out (Note 16) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Nat change In hmd balances 

Fond bafances al begFnn&rg of year 
Fund balances at end of year 

GENERAL 
FUND 

; 16.180.595 
542,707 

-
269,608 

-
2,623,575 

116,986,079 
823,218 
213,608 

45.574 
46.444 

182.979 

-
136,692.385 

58.388,358 
14.874,804 
1.422.393 
4,617.962 

432.996 
35,890 

7,208,201 
7,313,807 
1,389,380 

10,717,818 
1,898,078 

17,048.249 
6,644,983 
2,805.815 

760,353 
27,366 
51.374 

-
1,800 

-
137,386,677 

(493.192) 

42,785 

. 
-
-
. 
-
-
-

480,000) 
437.215) 

(930,407) 

15.8ia323 
S 14,668,916 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

FUND-
D1STRICT#1 
SALESTAX 

$ 
-

6.429,472 
(12.210) 

-
348,407 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

6,765.669 

1,388,873 
452,939 
113,722 

1.660,686 
32.464 

-
915,790 
502.894 

45.062 
221.314 

19,486 
1.271.334 

934.508 
16.820 

145.730 

-
128.698 

-
-
-

7.850.520 
(1.084.651) 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

132,800 

132.600 

(952.261) 

16,429,698 
$ 14.477.447 

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS* 

EAST OUACHITA 
2011/2012 

CONSTRUCTION 

$ 
-
-

17,343 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

^7.343-

1.161,141 
2.111 
1/155 
2,111 

-
-

-
6332 

-
. 
-

138.091 
6.349 

-
-
-

5.445.244 

-
. 

- e ^ -
(6,817.116) 

-
19,300,000 

-
• 

. 
-
• 
-
. 

19,300.000 

12,482.884 

. 
$ 12.462^4 

OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL 

$ 6.195.096 $ 

. 
32.973,293 

161.687 
1,919,805 
1.471,546 

1,439,682 

-
. 
-

1,616.012 

24,245,913 
447.821 

70.470;754 

14.989,284 
3.485,527 

486,555 
2.037,263 
4,065,927 
1.268.544 

3.721,149 
6,668.664 

453,024 
1.798,614 
1.060.607 
1,799.318 
1.164,949 

210.214 

11.210.577 
50,460 

4.189.40S 

8,546,000 
5.652.333 

_ 
72.763^94 
(2,292,640) 

. 
-
-
-

169.222 

-
-

8.719,437 
(8.719.437) 

1 6 9 ^ 

(2.123,318) 

30.136.412 
$ 28012^94 $ 

TOTAL 

2012 

22,375,690 $ 
542,707 

39^02,765 
436^28 

1.919.605 
4,443.528 

117,404.76'« 
823.218 
213.60B 
46,674 

1.661 v45B 

24,428^92 

• • -2U l46 . i6 f l 

75,907,636 
18.615,381 
2,033.725 
8,318,212 
4.631.387 
1.304/J34 

11,843,140 
14.489,597 
1.867/446 

12.735.746 
2.978,171 

20.255,992 
10,750,765 
3.032.849 

12,108,680 
77,826 

9.814,721 

fi.S45.00O 
5,554.133 

(I0,687,699r 

42,786 
19,300.0010 

. 
-

169,222 

» 
-

8,852,037 
. (9,199,437) 

19,184,607 

8,476,9»8 

. 6V84,433 
69.861,34-1 $ 

2011 

21,274,012 
532,767 

37.614.130 
463.259 

1391.058 
4.013323 

112.675.404 
825,408 
287315 
50.835 

1,697,665 

28,686,287 
373.111 

210.465.394 

71,302.195 
20,848376 
2,719.411 
8,870,.'*n5 
5,517,414 
1,282,272 

11,615.744 
12,827388 
1.797301 

11,862360 
3,072.795 

22,411344 
10,267336 
2376.100 

11.110353 
75334 

17.419393 

7,800300 
5.696,407 

165312 
229389330 

{ i?^4^ 

9368 

_ 
8345.000 

225.466 

, 
(8,110300) 

(684.091) 
8,812,447 

(8,817/447) 
(19.037) 

(16.043.473) 

60327306 
61.364,433 

See aocotr^anylrtg nobe to tho bgsh rmencfal fifafs/nenfs, 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconcih'ation of the Governmental Funds' 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities (continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Total net change in fond balances - Govemmental Funds $8,476,907 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because: 

Elimination of transfers in and out: 
Transfers in ($9,199,437) 
Transfers out 9,199,437 

Capital outlays and intangible assets are reported in Govermnental Funds 
as expenditures. However, m the Statement of Activities, the cost of 
these assets is albcated ov^ tibeir estimated use&l̂  lives as dqjreciation 
expense for the capital assets and amortization expense for the intangible 
assets. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceed depreciation 
and amortization in the period: 

Capital Outlays 10,723,515 
Depredation (9,295,827) 
Intangible Assets 117,517 
Amortization (223.875'> 

1,321,330 

Capital Assets nor depreciation are reported in the Govemmental Funds. 
Capital assets and accumulated depreciation are reported in the Statement 
of Net Assets. When an asset is disposed of that is not fully depreciated it 
results in a loss on the disposal of the asset m the Statement of Activities 
unless sales proceeds are received which are in excess of carrying value. 
During the current fiscal year the School Board had a loss on disposal of 
capital assets of $166,637. (166,637) 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the Governmental 
Funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of 
Net Assets. 8,545,000 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds ' 
Statement of Revenues^ Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities (continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

The costs associated with issuing bonds are reported as expenditures in the 
Govemmental Funds. The issuance costs do not require the use of current 
financial resources; therefore, the costs are amortized over the life of the 
bond issue m the Statement ofNet Activities. For the year ended Jime 30, 
2012, bond issuance costs exceeded current year amortizatbn of bond 
issuance costs as folbws: 

pond issuance costs $71,025 
Current year amortization of bond issuance costs (59S6Z) 

11,057 

The School Board self-insures for general liability and workers' 
cx>nq)ensation. Funds to meet these liabilities are deposited in an Internal 
Service Fund. The Internal Service Fund is not reported with the 
Govemmental Fimds; however, it is reported in the Statement of Net 
Assets. The net assets in the Internal Service Fund decreased from 
$4,367,944 at June 30,2011 to $4,039,953 at June 30,2012 for 
a net decrease of $327,991. (327,991) 

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses-cotnpensated 
absences (vacations and sick leave) - are measured by the amounts earned 
during the year In the Govemmental Funds; however, esjpenditures for 
these items are measured by the amoimt of financial resources used 
(essentially, the amounts actually paid). This year, vacation and sick time 
earned ($427,426) was less than the amount used ($499,567) by $72,141. 72,141 

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements, (contiaued) 

44 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds' 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities (continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Interest on bng-teim debt in the Statement of Activities differs fiom the 
amount reported in the Governmental Funds because accrued interest 
received from bond sales is recognized as Other Financing Sources when 
received and interest on outstanding bonds is recognized as an expenditure 
in the Govemmental Funds when it is due, which requires the use of 
current financial resources. In the Statement of Activities; however, 
interest expenses are recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when 
it is due. Interest expense payable at year end decreased from the previous 
year as follows: 

Interest expense payable at June 30,2012 ($ 1,895,938) 
Interest expense payable at June 30,2011 1.824.585 

(71,353) 

Bond premium from bond sales is reported in the Govermnental Funds as 
Other Finandng Sotirces when received. Bond premium is reported in the 
Government-wide Financial Statements as a liability and amortized over 
the life of the bonds 

T> A • (169.222) 
Bond premium 32 206 
Current year amortization expense (137,016) 

Payments to an escrow agent to refund bonded debt are reported in the 
Govemmental Funds as Other Fmancing Sources. The amount paid to the 
esCTOW agent for principal is removed from the long-term bonded debt in 
the Statement of Net Assets. The deferred part of the payment paid to the 
escrow agait is shown as a reduction of long-term debt in the Statement of 
Net Assets. The deferred amount is amortized over the lesser of the life of 
the original bonds or the life of the refunding bonds. 

Current year amortization (49,532) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds' 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities (concluded) 
For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Other post-employment benefits are reported in the Govemmental Funds 
as expenditures when paid. The un&nded annual contnbution is reported 
in the Statement of Activities as it accrues. ' (3,352,534) 

General obligation bonds issued m 2011-12 are included in the 
Govemmental Funds as Other Financing Sources. Bond issues are not 
reported on the Statement of Activities but are reported as fong-term 
liabilities on the Statement of Net Assets. 

G«ieral obhgation bonds ri9.300.000) 

Change in net assets of govemmental activities ($4.978.628) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (concluded) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund 
Comparative Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2012 and 2011 

Total 

Assets: 
Current assets: 
Gash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 
Investments (Note 4) 

Total assets 

Liabilitles: 
Gun-ent liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Claims liability - due within one year (Note 1 .Q.) 
Total current liabilities 

Noncunrent liabilities: 
Claims liability (Note I.Q.) 

Total liabilities 

Unrestricted net assets 

$ 

$ 

2012 

1,160,107 
3,982,228 

5,142,335 

500 
568,571 
569,071 

533,311 

1,102,382 

4,039,953 

$ 

$ 

2011 

1,306,301 
3.997,382 

5,30i3,683 

10.568 
480,961 
491,627 

444,212 

935,739 

4,367,944 

See accompanying notes to tiie basic finanolal statements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund" internal Service Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

and Changes in Net Assets 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2012 and 2011 

Total 

Operating revenues 
Reimbursements from insurers 

Operating expenses 
Self-insurance claims and 
insurance premiums 

Operating Income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues 

Earnings on investments 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers in 

Change in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 
Net assets at end of year 

2012 20-01 

$ 209,601 $ 330,993 

890,774 

(681,173) 

5,782 

1,143,735 

(812J42) 

9,949 

(675,391) 

347^00 

(327,991) 

4,367,944 
$ 4,039^53 

(802.793) 

. 

(802,793) 

5,170,737 
$ 4,367,944 

See accompanying notes to fhe basic financial statements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
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Ouacliita Parisli Sciiool Board 
{\Aonroe, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2012 and 2011 

Total 

Cash flows from (used by) operating activities: 
Reimbursements from insurers 
Claims and premiums paid 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Transfer from General Fund 

Cash fiows from (used by) investing activities: 
Sale (purchase) of investments, net 
Earnings on Investments 
Net cash provicied (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2012 

$ 209,601 
(724,131) 
(514,530) 

347,400 

15,154 
5,782 

20,936 

(146,194) 

1,306,301 
$ 1,160,107 

2011 

$ 331,084 
(1,167,807) 

(836,723) 

-

<1,173,344) 
9.949 

<1.163,395) 

<2.000.118) 

3,306,419 
$ 1,306.301 

Reconciliation of Operating income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in receivables 
Increase (decrease) in payables 
Increase (decrease) in claims liability 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Noncash investing activities: 
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 

$ (681,173) $ (812,742) 

$ 

_ $ _ 

(10,066) 
176,709 

(514,530) 

(15,154) 

$ 

$ 

91 
10,566 

(34,638) 

(836.723) 

1,173,344 

See accompanying notes to ffte basic financial statements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
IVIonroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Ffduciary Fund - Agency Funds 
Comparative Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Total 

2012 2011 

Assets: 
Gash and cash equivalents $ 3,823,378 $ 3,778,365 

Liabilities: 
Amounts held for others $ 3,823,378 $ 3,778.365 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Our Mission: 
Through collaboration 

among all stakeholders, the 
Ouachita Parish School System 

will ensure that all students attain 
the knowledge and skills needed 

to he productive citizens. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

INDEX 

NOTE 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 57 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 57 
B. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 57 

Govemment-wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 57 
Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 58 

C. Fund Accounting 59 
Govemmrartal Funds 59 
Major Funds 60 
Nonmajor Funds 61 
Proprietary Funds 61 
Fiduciary Funds 61 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 61 
E. InvestmKits 62 
F. Short-Term Intearfond Receivables/Payables 62 
G. Elimination and Reclassificatbn 62 
H. Inventory and Prqpaid Items 62 
I. Bond Issuance Costs 63 
J. Capital Assets 63 
K. Unearned Revenues 64 
L. Interfiind Activity 64 
M. Compensated Absences 64 
N. Long-Term Liabilities 65 
O. Equity 65 
P. Sales and Use Tax 67 
Q. Self-Insuraace 68 
R. Use of Estimates 69 

NOTE 2 - Expenditures - Budget and Actual 70 
NOTE 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 70 
NOTE 4-Investments 71 
N0TE5-AdVabreniTaxes 72 
NOTE 6-Receivables 74 
NOTE 7-Capital Assets 75 
NOTE 8 - Retirement Systems 77 

A. Teachers'Retirement System of Loiusiana(TRSL) 77 
B. Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) 78 

NOTE 9-Other Post-Employment Benefits 79 
NOTE 10-Deferred Compensation Plan 84 

55 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying fuiancial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) have been 
prepared m conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to govemmental 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing govemmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

A. Finandal Reporting Entity 

GASB Statement No. 14 established criteria for determining the govemmental reportmg entity and 
component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Because the School Board has a 
separately elected governing body and is legally separate and fiscally independent, the Sdiool Board is a 
separate govemmental reporting entity. For financial reporting purposes, the School Board's financial 
statements include all fonds, schools, agencies and committees h t which the School Board is fnanctally 
accountable. The Sdiool Board is not aware of any oth&c entities that should be included -within the 
financial statements. 

Certain units of local government, such as other independently elected officials, the parish police jury and 
municipalities, are excluded &om the accompanying fuiancial statements. These units have their own 
elected governing authorities and are not financially accoimtable to the School Board. 

B. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 

Government^wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the reporting 
government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in the GWFS. Fiduciary fimds are reported 
only m the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities at the fi:nd financial statement leveL The 
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities wwe prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 

Revenues, expenses, gains, bsses, assets and liabilities resulting firom exchange and exchange-like 
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Non-exchange transactions are recognized 
when the School Board has an enforceable legal claim to the revenues, e3q)enses, gains, losses, assets and 
liabilities. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Program revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly fix)m the program itself or fi*om 
parties outside the School Board's taxpayers or citizenry, as a wlwle; program revenues reduce the cost of 
the fiinction to be financed from the School Board's genoral revenues. 

General Revenues 

General revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly fiom local propaty and sales 
taxes and fiom unrestricted state and bcal grants. General revenues finance the remaming balance of a 
fiinction not covered by program revenues. 

Allocation of indirect expenses 

The School Board reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct exposes 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other fimctions are not 
allocated to those fimctions but are reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation 
ê qjense is specifically identified by fimction and is included in the direct expense of each fimction. 
Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indurect expense and is reported separately on the 
Statement of Activities. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

Govemmental Funds 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a iimd is determined by its measurement 
focus. All govemmental fimds reported in the fund financial statements are accounted for usuiig a current 
financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current 
liabilities are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., 
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (Le., expenditures and other financing uses) in net 
current assets. 

The Proprietary Fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fiind are induded on 
the balance sheet. The Proprietary Fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Operating revenues are charges to the General Fund for insurance related costs such as claims liability and 
insurance premiums. Non-operating revenues are revenues that are not derived fix>m charges to the 
General Fund such as earnings on investments. Proprietary Fund Type operating statements present 
increases (eg., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in total net assets. Operating expenses are 
general liability and worker's compensation claims and worker's compensation insurance premiums. 

Govemmental funds reported in the fimd financial statements are accoimted for on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Govemmental fund revenues are recognized in the accounting period in v̂ rhich they 
become susceptible to accmal—that is, when they become both measurable and available to pay current 
period liabilities. Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined and available means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The 
School Board considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after the fiscal year end. 
Sudi revenue items are ad valorem, sales and use taxes and federal and state ^ititlements. Ad valorem 
taxes are considered measurable and are recognized in the calendar year of the tax levy. Sales and use 
taxes are considered measurable and available when collected by the vendors. Revenue fionn state and 
federal grants are recorded whoa the reimbursable expenditures have been incurred Expenditures are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are 
recorded as fimd liabilities when due or whKi amounts have been accumulated in the Debt Service Funds 
for payments to be made early in the followmg year. Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) are 
recorded in the Govemment-wide Financial Statements as expenditures and as a liability when incurred. 

C. Fund Accounting 

The financial transactions of the School Board are recorded in individual fimds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity and are reported in the Fund Financial Statements. The operations 
of each fiind are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that include its assets, 
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and e^qpenditures, or expenses as appropriate. Fund accounting 
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in denoonstrating 
compliance with finance related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of fimds is 
maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. 

The School Board uses the following fimd categories and fund types. 

Governmental Funds: Gov^nmental fimds account for the Sdiool Board's general govermnent 
activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the 
acquisition or constructbn of coital assets, and the servicing of general long-tenn debt. 
Govemmental fimds are divided into major and nonmajor funds. Major fimds are funds that meet 
certain dollar tests of 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

their assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures/expenses Major fimds are larger, more significant 
fiinds. Nonmajor fiinds are the Govemmental Funds that do not meet the dollar tests for major fiinds. 
The major and nonmajor funds are described below: 

Major Funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fiind of the School Board. It 
accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fimd 
and is always a major fund. The sources of major operating revenue in the General Fund are 
fiom state equalization fimding distributed through the Mmimum Foundation Program and a 
24.5 mill ad valorem tax that is renewable every 10 years. This tax was renewed by voters in 
April 2011 for another 10-year period. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds account for and report the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources (other than special assessments) that are legally restricted or 
committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 
The term '*proceeds of specific revenue sources" establishes that one or more specific restricted 
or committed revenues should be the foimdation for a special revenue fund. The District #1 
Sales Tax is the only major Special Revenue Fund. It collects, records and disburses fiinds 
related to a 0 5% 10-year renewable tax approved by voters and conmiitted by the School 
Board for classroom instructbn (36%), capital improvements (23%), fecility and equipment 
support (15%), mandated costs (14%), and salary restoration (12%). This tax was renewed by 
voters in April 2011 for another 10-year period. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds accoimt for and report the financial resource:s that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expaiditures for principal and interest. There are no Debt 
Service Funds classified as major funds at year end. For a more detailed description of the 
Debt Service Funds, see the Required Supplemental Information - Part B, Debt Service Funds. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds account for and report financial resources that 
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the 
acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds 
exclude those types of capital related outflows financed by proprietary fiinds or for assets that 
will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The East 
Ouachita 2011-2012 Construction Capital Projects Fund is the only major Capital Projects 
Fund. The projects in this fund are funded by $19.3 million in general obligation bonds 
authorized by voters in April 2011. These bonds were soM in two phases: $9.8 miUion in July 
2011 and $9.5 in March 2012 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Nonmajor Funds: 

The School Board has 10 nonmajor Special Revenue Funds, 2 nonmajor Debt Service Funds, 
and 3 nonmajor Capital Projects Funds. For a descrq)tion of these fimds see the Noiunajor 
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Funds sections of the report. 

Proprietary Funds: 

Internal Service Fund-The Internal Service Fund accounts for the financing of services provided by 
one fimd to other funds of the School Board. The Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund provides for 
insurance policies and accounts for third-party administrative costs and claims for liabilities of the 
school district. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

Agency Funds - Agency Funds account for assets held by the School Board in a trustee capacity or as 
an agent for individuals, private or school organizations, other govemmental units and/or other fimds. 
The School Activity Funds and State Equalization Local Funding Transfers to Other Educational 
Providers are r^orted as Agency Funds. 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in interest-bearing demand deposits, bank certificates of 
deposit, as well as short-term investments with a n:iaturity date within three months of the date 
acquired. Bank certificates of deposit are stated at cost, which approximates feir value. Sliort-term 
investments are stated at cost, which approximates feir value. 

Cash balances of all of the School Board's funds, except for the Payroll Account and the Self 
Insurance Internal Service Account, are pooled into one master bank account with the School Board's 
fiscal agent bank. The Payroll Account and the Self Insurance Internal Service Account are maintained 
in separate accounts. 

Interest earned on balances maintained in the pooled bank accoimt was distributed to the individual 
fimds based on the cash balance maintained by the unrestricted participating fund during the year. 

The School Board maintains separate '*book*' cash accoimts for each fund that is pooled within the 
master bank account. Negative book cash balances appear in the financial statements as a liability, 
'T)ue to Other Funds." The balance of these amounts will be paid primarily through collections of 
grants reimbursement claims ftovx Federal and State grant awarding agencies. 
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1. Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

E. Investments 

Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S. 33:2955) and the Board's investment policy govern the investment 
policies of the School Board. The Ouachita Parish School Board is authorized to invest m U. S. 
Treasury obligations, U.S, Government instrumetitalities, A-1, P-1 commercial pap«:, and other 
allowable short-term obligations includmg repurchase agreements. These are classified as investments 
if they have a maturity date of 90 days or more fiom the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at 
fair value. 

Cash management and investment activities shall be conducted in a maimer consistent with the 
•*prudent investor" mle which states, "Investments shall be made with judgment and care under 
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of pmd^ce, discretion and mtelligence exercise m the 
management of their own afiairs, not for speculation but for investment considering the probable 
safety of their capital as well as the probable income to he derived." 

F. Short-Term Interfund Receivahles and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual fimds for services 
rendered These receivables and payables are classified as due from other fimds or due to other fimds 
on the fimd financial statements balance sheet 

G. Eliminations and Reclassifications 

In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, 
some amounts reported as interfimd activity and balances in the fimds were eliminated or reclassified. 
Int«*fimd receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and 
liabilities within the govemmental activities column. Interfiind services provided and used by the 
varbus Govemmental Funds have not been eliminated in the process of aggregatmg data. 

H. Inventory and Prepaid Items 

Inventory is accounted for using the consumption method, where expenditures are recognized as 
expenses when consumed on the Govemment-wide Financial Statements and a portion are recognized 
as expenditures w h ^ consumed and a portion are recognized as expenditures when purchased on the 
Fund Financial Statements. Inventory is stated at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. 
Inventory consists primarily of commodities and purchased food held for consumption. Purchased food 
inventory in the govemmental fimds is equally o^et by a fimd balance reserve which sshows this 
inventory does not constitute ''available spendable resources" even though it is a component of total 
assets. Commodities inventory of $171,647 is reported as tmeamed revenue, leaving a nonspendable 
fund balance of $148,911 for purchased food. 
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1. Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies (contmued) 

Certain payments to vendors for travel expenditures reflect costs applicable to fiiture accountmg 
periods are recorded as prepaid items in both the govemment-wide and fimd financial statOTients. 
Prepaid items are also accounted for using the consumption method where expenditures are recognized 
as tie prepaid item expires with the passage of time. 

L Bond Issuance Costs 

Costs (bond rating fees, attorney fees, printing, etc.) associated with issuing bonds are capitalized and 
amortized over the life of the bond issue in the Govemment-wide Financial Statements. The bond 
issuance costs are reported as expenditures in the Fund Financial Statements. The foltowmg is a 
summary of governmental activities bond issuance cost transactions for the year ended June 30,2012: 

Bond Issuance Accumulated 
Costs Amortization 

Balance June 30,2011 $ 2,016,525 $ 1,212,648 
Additions 71.025 59.968 
Balance June 30,2012 __$ 2.087.550 $ 1.272.616 

J. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, intangibles, 
and construction-in-progress are reported as govemmental funds in the Govemment-wMe Financial 
Statements. The School Board considers assets, other than intangibles, with an initial individual cost 
of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of 2 years or more as a capital asset. Intangibles, such 
as sofiware, with an initial individual cost of $25,000 or more and an estimated usefiil life of 2 years or 
more are considered a capital asset. 

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at their estimated feir value at the date of donation. Estimated useful life is 
management's best esthnate of how long the asset is expected to meet service demands. Capital assets 
have not been assigned a salvage value because management feels that the salvage value is imtmateriaL 

Straight-line depreciation is used based on the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 40 years 
Land improvements 20 years 
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years 
Intangibles 10-20 years 
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Public domain (infirastructure) capital assets (e.g. parking lots, sidewalks, and other assets that are 
immovable and of value only to the government) were capitalized as part of the constructron cost of 
the buildings. Subsequent infi*astructure improvements are capitalized as land improvements. 

K. Unearned Revenues 

The School Board reports unearned revenues on its Statement of Net Assets and on the Fund Financial 
Statements' balance sheet. Unearned revenues arise when the School Board receives resources before 
it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occiirrence of q.ualifying 
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the resources, the 
liability for unearned revenue is removed from the Governmental Fund's Fund Fmancial Statements* 
balance sheet and tb& revenue is recognized. 

L. Interfund Activity 

Interfimd activity is reported as loans, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as interfiind 
receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimmation upon consolidation. 
Reimbursements are wh^i one fimd incurs a cost, charges fiie appropriate benefiting fund and reduces 
its related cost as a rennbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers 
made between govemmental and propriety funds are eliminated as part of the reconciliation to the 
Govemment-wide Financial Statements 

M. Compensated Absences 

All 12-month employees earn fixjm 10 to 15 days of annual leave each year depending on length of 
service with the School Board. Annual leave is credited at the beginning of each fiscal year and a 
maximum of five days can be accumulated and carried forward into a new fiscal yeaor. Upon 
taminatfon of en^loyment, unused annual leave up to 20 days is paid to en^loyees at employees' 
current rates of pay. 

All school employees earn ten days of sick leave each year. Sick leave may be accumulated without 
limitations. Upon retirement or an en]j)foyee*s death, unused accumulated sick leave of up to 25 days is 
paid to employees at the employees' current rates of pay. The accmal recorded for earned sick leave is 
based on a 25-day maximum per empfoyee. Sick leave is not payable upon discharge or termination. 
Upon retirement, unused accumulated sick leave is used in the computation of eamed years of service 
credit for determining employee retirement benefits. 
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Sick and vacation leave are reported in the Statement of Net Assets as a bng-term liability and 
expensed in the Statement of Activities. Sick and vacation leave accmed in the Statement of Net 
Assets as of the end of the fiscal year are valued at employees' current rates of pay* Neithw the School 
Board nor the employees are required to contribute to the retirement system for sick and annual leave 
payments. Accmed sick and vacation leave will be paid fix)m fiiture years' resources. No allowance is 
made for the immaterial amounts of sick leave forfeited when employees resign or retire. A current 
liability for sick and armual leave is reported in the Govemmental Funds only if it is due and payable 
as of yeat-end as the result of an employee's retirement during the fiscal year. 

N. Long-Term Liabilities 

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the fund financial 
statements in the period the bonds are issued. Bond proceeds are reported as an Other Financing 
Source. Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net pmceeds received, are reported as debt 
service expenditures. 

In the Govemment-wide Financial Statements bond premiums and issuance costs are reported on the 
balance sheet net of amortization and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bond discounts have been 
reported in the Govemment-wide Financial Statements as a reduction of long-term liabilities, net of 
accumulated amortization- Bond proceeds have been reported in the Government-wide Financial 
Statements as a long-t^m Hability. 

The current cost of other post-enqployment benefits is recognized in the fimd financial statements in 
the year eamed. Other post-empfoyment Jjenefits eamed as of July 1, 2007, prior to the 
implementatbn of Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 - Accounting and 
Financud Reporting of Other Post Employment Benefits, are recognized at a rate of 3% per year for 
fiscal years ending June 30,2008 - 2037 

O. Equity Classifications 

Government-wide Fbiancial Statements 

Equity is classified as Net Assets in the Govemment-wide Financial Statements. Net assets is shown 
in three classifications* 

9 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets, including restricted 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced generally by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets 
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« Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use whether by (I) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

In the Statement of Net Assets the following net assets are considered restricted: 

o Debt service resources fix>m sales and use taxes and ad valorem taxes levied specifically 
to meet the principal and interest payments of varbus general obligation and revenue 
bond issues approved by the vote of the people and in accordance with state law and 
bond covenants. 

o The unspent proceeds from bonded debt, net of remaining balance of bonded debt 
incuned for constraction projects not yet completed, when bonds were approved by 
voters for capital constmction and renovation projects. 

o Available resources ^ m sales taxes specifically dedicated by taxing propositions 
£^proved by voters for the payment of siq)plemental salaries and benefits to ennployees. 

o Investments held by the Louisiana Workforce Commission as surety for payment of 
workers compensatfon claims of self-msured enqjbyers, as promulgated under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 23:1168. 

o Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"investment in capital assets, net of related debt". 

Fund Financial Statements 

In the fiind financial statements, equity is classified as fimd balance. Fund balance is classified 
according to its useful purpose or fonction of restriction at year-end in one or more of the fblbwing 
categories, as defined by GASB Statement 54: 

» Nonspendable fund balance represents resources that cannot be physically used to settle 
obligations of the school system, such as food inventory. 

o Restricted fimd balance represent resources restricted by tax ordinances or by local, state or 
Federal grant regulations for foture use and are, therefore, not available for future ^propriation 
or expenditure. 

® Committed fund balance indicates the School Board's tentative plans for the use of financial 
resources in a future period. Fund balance commitments are made by Board approved 
resolutbns. 
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o Assigned fimd balances are those determined by the Superintendent and Director of Business^ 
under authority given under a resolution of the Board, as needed for the payment of future 
commitments. 

The Board has not established a formal policy regarding ord^ of spending fund balances that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned. The School Board's informal policy for the spending 
prioritizatbn of fund balances is that restricted would receive top priority, followed by committed. 
Assigned would receive the least prbrity and would be authorized to be spent only if adequate 
funds were available. If expenditures incurred exceed the amounts that have been committed or 
assigned to a specific purpose, amounts unassigned would be reduced to eliminate the deficit. See 
Note 14 for more detail of fund balance nonspendable, restrictions, designatbns, and assignments. 

The School Board has established through board resolution unassigned fund balance requirements. 
The General Fund unassigned fund balance should be maintained between 10 and 15 percent of 
G«ieral Fund expenditures. If the unassigned fimd balance decreases below the 10 percent 
minimum balance, expenditures should be made only for non-reoccurring items. 

P. Sales and Use Taxes 

The voters of Ouachita Parish have authorized the collectbn of four sales and use taxes for the benefit 
ofthe School Board, 

Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax' (0.5%^ -̂  This half-cent parishwide sales and use tax is levied and 
collected jointly by the City of Monroe School Board and the Ouachita Parish School Board. The net 
proceeds ofthe tax are to be albcated and prorated between the two school boards armually on the 
basis of average daily enrollment for the preceding school year The tax revenue is restricted to 
supplement other revenues available to the School Board for the folbwmg purposes in accordance 
with the taxing proposition: 

• Eighty-eight pe rc^ ofthe revenues received by the School Board are to be used for the 
payment of die salaries of teachers, as defined by the Louisiana State Department of 
Educatbn. 

® Twelve percent of the revenues received by the Sdbool Board are to be used for the 
payment of salaries to designated personnel, other than teachers. 

Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax (1.0%) - This one-cent parishwide sales and use tax is levied and 
collected by the School Board only, and is restricted to supplement other revenue available to the 
School Board for the exclusive purpose of providing teacher and school employees' salaries and 
benefits in accordance with the taxing proposition, 
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District #1 Sales Tax (O.SVo) - This half̂ cent parishwide sales and use tax is levied and collected by 
the School Board only. The tax revenue is committed to supplement other revenues available to the 
School Board for the following purposes: 

© Thirty-sbc percent (36%) for classroom instmction, 

o Twenty-three percent (23%) for capital improvements, 

• Fifteen percent (15%) for facility and equipment support, 

o Fourteen percent (14%) for the payment of mandated costs, and 

o Twelve percent (12%) to restore salary reductions. 

West Ouachita Sales Tax ri.0%') - This one-cent sales and use tax is a district tax levied and collected 
by the West Ouachita Parish School Bond District for a period of 27 years and expires ini the year 
2025, The tax proceeds are used for constructing, acquiring, improving, equipping, fiirnishmg, 
maintaining, and/or opiating schools and school related fecilities in the district, with the proceeds of 
the tax being subject to fiinding into bonds for coital improvements. 

Q. Self-Insurance 

The School Board is ê qposed to certain risks associated with damage to its property resulting fix>m 
p^ils or theft, empbyee liahilities for benefits, earnings or work injury, general liabilities to third 
parties, and other risks related to professional errors and omissbns. The School Board is covered 
through insurance policies for these risks. The School Board is also at risk firom injuries to students, 
empbyees, and citizens incurred on our fecilities through negligence and to empbyees being injured 
on the job. The School Board is partially self-insured for workers' compensation and general liability 
insurance coverage, and mamtains policies with large deductibles for property and fleet vehicle 
insurance. The School Board has an excess insurance policy which covers individual workers' 
compensatbn claims and occurrences when an individual claim exceeds $600,000. The School Board 
self-insures, or is responsible for the costs, of a claim up to this retention amount. 
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Revenues that finance the operatbns of the Self-Insurance Int^nal Service Fund are considered 
operating revenues and include charges for services and insurance proceeds fiom losses. Revenues 
that are not derived directly fix)m the operations of the self-insurance program are considered non-
operating revenues and include earnings on mvestments. The School Board has increased the net 
assets in the Internal Service Fund over the years with transfers fiom the General Fund in years 
surpluses were available to cover future catastrophic losses. 

Expenses related to these insurance programs are recognized in the self-insurance fund as c3aims are 
incurred. A liability for unpaid and incuned-but-not-reported claims is based on the School Board's 
Icnown claims and its previous experience. A third-paity administrator, who processes and investigates 
claims, pays valid claims and estimates the liabilities for unpaid claims, manages the workers* 
compCTtsation and general liability insurance program for the School Board. School Board personnel 
manage all other insurance programs. 

During the fiscal year, total e^enses for claims and insurance premiums related to the self-insurance 
programs were $890,774. The School Board's activity in claims liability for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 
was: 

2012 2011 

Claims liability at beginning ofthe year $ 925,173 $ 959,811 
Incurred claims and provision for incurred but not reported 868,740 651,674 
Claims payments (692.031) (68:6,312) 
Claims liability at the end ofthe year j I |QJ gg2 j 925 173 

Claims liability due within one year $ 568,571 $ 480,961 

In 2011-12 the reserve for incurred claims and incurred claims but not reported is on the rise due to 
increase ia claims activity for both general liability and workers oonipensatbn self-insured programs. 
During the fiscal year, one claim for a work injury that occurred in 2008 was settled during the 2011-
12 fiscal year for cumulative costs that exceeded the School Board's $550,000 self-insured r^ention 
for that coverage year. 

R. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements m conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptbns that affoct the r^>orted amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statement and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
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2« Expenditures - Budget and Actual 

The folbwmg nonmajor Govemmental Funds had actual expenditures exceed total budgeted 
expenditures for the year ended June 30,2012. 

Variance 
with Final 

Fund Budget Actual Ffaial Budget 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Education Jobs Funds-Stimulus $2,838,381 $2,855,790 ($17,409') 
Titb I Programs $5,974,543 $6,081,855 ($107,312) 

It should be noted that even though the above fimds experienced an overrun in budgeted expenditures, 
none of the overruns represent a legal violation in excess of 5% of total expenditures in accordance 
with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act. A supplemental grant award in the amoumt ofthe 
overage for the Educatbn Jobs Fund was received late in the fiscal year and a budget adjustment was 
not made. Then there were purchases made late in the year under the Title I program in preparation of 
summer instmctbnal programs; further, sufEicient fiinds were available to cover the additional 
expenditures, as 100% ofthe fimds awarded by the grantor were not budgeted during the fiscal year as 
the grant award period extends beyond the fiscal year period. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Custodial credit risk-deposits. At year-end, as reported on die Statement of Net Assets and the Agency 
Funds' Comparative Statement of Assets and Liabilities, the book balances of the School Board's 
deposits (mcluding hank c^ificates of deposit) were $47,183,386 and $3,823,378, respectively. The 
School Board had bank balances totaling $55,302,855 at June 30, 2012 of which $2,257,420 were 
covered by federal depository insurance and $53,045,435 were covered by collateral held by the trust 
department of agents of the pledging financial institutions in the School Board's name. Securities that 
may be pledged as collatexal axe obligatbns of the United States Govermnent and its agertdes, and 
obligatbns of the State of Louisiana and its municipalities and school districts. Even though the 
pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisbns of GASB 
Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank 
to adv«tise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the district that the fiscal 
agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 

Individual funds with significant book cash deficit balances at June 30, 2012 were as folbws: 

Fund Cash Deficit 
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds: 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Title I Programs 
Special Educatbn IDEA-B 

Odier Federal Programs 

Total 

These cash deficits stem fiom expenditure reimbursement-type grant awards where grant fimds are 
received after claims are filed with grantor agencies after expenditures have been incurred. Therefore, 
these deficit balances represent outstanding claim reimbursements at year end. 

4. Investments 

The School Board's formal mvestment policy allows fimds which are available for investment and 
above immediate cash requirements to be invested in accordance with the folbwmg: (a) firsit prbrity 
shall be to secure safety of principle, (b) the second priority shall be to ensure liquidity of fimds to 
meet the obligations ofthe School Board, and (c) the third prbrity shall be the yield of investnnents. 

As of June 30, 2012 the School Board's investments of $41,677,311 consisted of 100% U. S. 
Government Instrumentalities and were carried at feir value. Fair value was determined by obtaining 
year-end marlcet prices. 

Credit risk. The School Board's investment policy's objective is to mitigate credit risk. Credit risk is 
extremely low because the Louisiana state statues limit investments of its political subdivisions to 
U. S. Government instmmentalities. Investment grade (A-l/P-1) commercial paper of domestic United 
States corporations, and other allowable short-term obligatbns including repurchase agreements. AU 
of the School Board's investments are to be invested in Government Securities which have credit 
ratings of AAA according to Standard & Poor's and are nnplicitly guaranteed by the U. S. 
Government, No broker/dealer or bank shall hold over twenty-five percent ofthe School Board's total 
portfolio to decrease credit risk. 
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4. Investments (continued) 

Interest rate risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the School Board manages its exposure to 
declines m fair values Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of the securities in the 
portfolio will fiiU due to the changes in general interest rates. Interest rate risk may be mitigated by: 

• Strocturing the investment portfolb so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for 
anticipated demands, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior 
to maturity, and 

© By investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities of one year or less. 
Longer terms may be used for bond issue fimds held for constmction purposes. 

Of the amount invested in U. S. Government instrumentalities, $28,360,480 matures in less than 
twelve months. The remaining $13,316,831 ofthe total portfolb's maturity dates are more than 12 
months. A laddering strategy which spreads maturity dates is used to meet liquidity requirements and 
to decrease interest rate risk. 

A bss on investment is reported in the Gov«nmental Funds-Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances for the Special Revenue Fund - District #1 Sales Tax, a major fiind, in the 
amount of $12,210. This bss does not represent a realized loss on mvestments, but reflects the change 
in market value of agency discount notes held at year-end. The actual earnings on investments held in 
this major Special Revenue Fund during the fiscal year were $26,144, which is offeet by the 
adjustment to market value bss of $38,358 at year-aid in accordance with GASB Statemertt 31. As 
our investment policy is described above, the mterest-rate risk associated with these agency discount 
notes will be averted as management plans to hold these investments \mtil maturity in the next fiscal 
period. 

5» Ad Valorem Taxes 

All taxable property in Louisiana is required by law to be assessed annually at a percentage of its feir 
market vahie by the parish assessor, except for public utility property, which is assessed by the 
Louisiana Tax Commission. The 1974 Louisiana Constitution provides that land and residential 
property are to be assessed at 10% of feir market value; however, agricultural, horticultural, marsh 
lands, timber lands, and certain historic buildings are to be assessed at 15% of feir market value. Fair 
market values are determined by the elected assessor ofthe parish and are subject to review and final 
certification by the Louisiana Tax Commission. The assessor is required to reappraise all property 
every four years. Based on the reappraised value, the assessor will '*roll forward" or "roll back" the tax 
millage to equal the prior year taxable amount. If the assessor **rolls back" the tax millage, the School 
Board has the option to **roll forward" the 
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5. Ad Valorem Taxes (continued) 

millage rate back to the prior year's rate. The School Board opted to "roll forward" the 2008-09 
millage rate back to the 2007-08 rate for the current reassessment perbd. The next reassessment will 
be held in fiscal year 2012-13. 

The School Board is permitted by constitutbnal and statutory authority ofthe State to levy taxes up to 
29.33 mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation for operations other than for the payment of prmcipal and 
interest on bng-tam debt. This is the amount which was levied for calendar year 2011. The School 
Board was authorized by the citizens ofthe East Ouachita Bond District to levy taxes sufficient to pay 
the principal and interest that matures annually on the outstanding general obligatbn bonds sold by the 
Borid District. The School Board bvied 30 mills on the 2011 tax roll for the East Ouachita Bond 
District. The SherifFof Ouachita Parish, as provided by State law, is the official tax collector of general 
property taxes bvied by the School Board. 

The 2011 property tax calendar was as folbws: 

Millage rates adopted July 21,2011 
Tax levy date November 15,2011 
Tax bills mailed November 21,2011 
Tax due date December 31,2011 
Tax lien date January 1,2012 

State law requires the Sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the assessment is 
made. Property taxes become delinquent January 1 of the folbwing year If taxes are not paid by the 
due date, taxes bear interest at the rate of 1.25% per month until the taxes are paid. Afier notice is 
given to the delinquent taxpayers, the Sheriff is required by the Constitution ofthe State of Louisiana 
to sell the least quantity of property necessary to settle the taxes and interest owed. 

All property taxes are recorded in the General Fund and in the East Ouachita Bond Debt Service Fund 
on the basis explained in Note 1 .C Rev^ues in such fimds are recognized in the accounting period in 
which they become measurable and available. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar 
year of the tax levy. Delinquent taxes considered to be uncollectible are not recorded as revenues. 
Property taxes receivable are considered available because they are substantially collected within 60 
days subsequent to year-end. 
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6. Receivables 

The receivables of $11,512,873 at June 30, 2012, as reported m the Govemmental Funds are as 
follows* 

General Fund 

Special Revenue-
District #1 
Sales Tax 

Noiunajor 
Funds-Other 
Govemmental Total 

Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
Federal grants 
Other 

Total 

$ 

$ 

64,346 

70,243 
144,008 
278,597 

$ 

$ 

1,129,562 

1,129,562 

$ 17,836 
5,795,969 
3,664,387 

626,522 
$ 10,104,714 

$ 82,182 
6,925,531 
3,734,630 

770,530 
$ 11,512,873 

All receivables are expected to be collected within the next fiscal year. 
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7. Capital Assets 

The changes in capital assets during the fiscal year were as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets, not beuig 

depreciated: 
Land 
Construction-iti-progress 

Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 

Capital assets, being 
depreciated: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Total capital assets. 
being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Land nnprovements 
Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and equipment 

Total accumulated 
depreciatbn 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 

Balance 
June 30,2011 

$ 6,148,660 
19.048.762 

25,197,422 

2,302,020 
290,194,301 
37.955.376 

330.451.697 

(33,923) 
(97,744,761) 
r28.290.34^^ 

(126,069,030) 

204.382.667 

Additions 

$ 12,008 
7.405.124 

7,417432 

606,894 
19,851,531 

1,686,848 

^^-^^^-^'^^ 

(260,855) 
(6,647,007) 
f2J87.965) 

(9,295,827) 

12.849.446 

Deletions 

$ 
(18,838,890) 

(J8,838,890) 

-
-

fl.240.674> 

ri.240.674) 

-
-

1,074,037 

1.074,037 

(160,037) 

Balance 
June 30,2012 

$ 6,160,668 
7,614,996 

13.775.664 

2,908,914 
310,045,832 
38,401,550 

351,356,296 

(294,778) 
(104,391,768) 
(29,604,274) 

f 134.290.820^ 

217,065,470 

Capital assets, being amortized: 
Iritangibles 

Less accumulated amortization: 
Intangibles 

Total capital assets, being 
amortized, net 

Total governmental activities, 
capital assets, net 

2,222,174 

r848.079) 

1.374.095 

117,517 

(223.875^ 

(106.358) 

2,339,691 

rn.071.954) 

1.267.737 

$20.160.220 r$19.Q05.527> $232.108.877 
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7. Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to govemmental activities as folbws: 

Instructional services: 
Regular programs 
Special educatbn programs 
Vocational programs 
Other instmctional programs 
Special programs 
Adult/continumg education 

Support services: 
Pupil support services 
Instructional staff support services 
Geueral administration 
School administratbn 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Non-instmctbnal sendees: 

Food service operatbns 

Total depreciatbn and amortizatbn expense 

Depreciatbn 
Expense 

$ 7,272,664 
65,875 
33,346 
91,105 
33,196 

124 

26,762 
97,409 
10,208 

490 
37,931 

609,989 
677,001 
232,074 

107.653 

$ 9,295,827 

Amortizatbn 
Exp 

$ 

$ 

snse 

107,432 
34,472 
3,265 
2,050 

14,530 
543 

_ 

13,114 
-
-

17,015 
1.980 

-
28,574 

900 

223,875 

During the 2011-12 year, the School Board entered into new contracts totaling $11,758,958, and in the 
13 previous years the School Board entered into contracts totaling $202,248,470 to construct 8 schools, 
2 vocational centers, 5 turf athletic fields, and 11 multipurpose buildings and to make additions and 
renovations to 28 schools and district &cilities. These constmctbn contracts are estimated to be 
completed within the next fiscal year. Work already started but not completed during the 2011-12 
fiscal year on contracts totaling $7,614,996 was capitalized as constmction-in-progress. 

At June 30, 2012, the School Board had $274,125 in contract retainages related to construction-in-
progress. These retainages will be paid at the completion of outstanding construction contracts in the 
2012-13 year. 

At June 30, 2012, these contracts have $5,191,756 remaining in work to be completed within the next 
year. The contracts will be paid by the Capital Project Funds and the West Ouachita Sales Tax Special 
Revenue Fund. 
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8. Retirement Systems 

In 1996, the School Board adopted Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, 
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Govemmental Employers. The School Board had no 
pension hahility or asset at the effective date ofthe transitbn. 

Substantially all empbyees ofthe School Board are members of two statewide retirement systems. In 
general, professbnal employees (such as teachas and administrative support stafQ and lunchroom 
workers are members of the Teachers* Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL). Other empbyees 
working in custodial services or student transportation are members of the Louisiana School 
Employees' Retirement System (LSERS). These systems are state established cost sharing, multiple-
empbyer defined benefit pensbn plans administered by separate boards of tmstees. Pertinent 
information relative to each plan follows: 

A. Teachers* Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) 

Plan Description. The TRSL consists of four membership plans: Regular Plan, Plan A, Plan B, and 
Optbnal Retirement Plan (ORP). The School Board participates in three ofthe membership plans — 
the Regular Plan, Plan A, and ORP. The TRSL provides retirement benefits as well as disability and 
survivor benefits. Five years of service credit are required to become vested for retirement, disability 
and survivor henefiits in all plans Benefits are established by State statute 

TRSL issues a financial report that includes financial statements and required suppDementary 
information. This report is available to the puhlic and can be ohtained by visiting the TRSL website at 
www.trslorg. by submitting a written request to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana, Post 
Office Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123, or by calhng TRSL directly at (225) 925-
6446. 

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute the following percentage of theiir cov^ed 
salary to the plan through payroll deduction: 

Regular Plan members 8.0% 
Plan A members (lunchroom workers) 9.1 % 

! Optbnal Retirement Plan members 7.9% 

i The School Board is also required to contribute to the plan an actuarially determined percentage of 
I plan memba:s covered salary. The rates and contributions paid by the School Board for the last three 
I fiscal years for all three retirement plans were: 

i 2009-10 15.5% $15,132,590 
2010-11 20.2% $20,186,512 
2011-12 23.7% $23,589,870 
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8. Retirement Systems (continued) 

Membo: contributions and employer contributions for the TRSL are established by state law and rates 
are established by the Public Retirement Systems* Actuarial Committee. The School Board's employer 
contribution to TRSL, as provided by state law, is fiinded primarily by contributbns by the School 
Board and then fix>m appropriatbns fiom the State, and with a 1% statutory deductbn fixim ad valorem 
tax collections of bcal taxing bodies statewide. 

B. Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) 

Plan Description. The LSERS provides retirement benefits as well as disabihty and survivor benefits. 
The vesting periods for members are as follows: 

Regular retirement 
Members enrolled before July 1, 2010 10 Years 
Members enrolled on or after July 1, 2010 5 Years 

Disability retirement 
Members enrolled before July 1,2006 5 Years 
Members enrolled on or after July 1,2006 10 Years 

Benefits are established and amended by state statute. The LSERS issues a financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the LSERS. This report is 
available to the public and may be obtained by visiting their website at www. lsers.state;.la.us. by 
writmg to the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 44516, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70804, or by calling (225) 925-6484. 

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute the folbwing percentage of their covered 
salary to the plan through payroll deduction effective July 1,2010: 

Plan menabers enrolled prior to July 1,2010 7.5% 
New plan members enrolled on or after July 1,2010 8.0% 

The School Board is also required to contribute to the plan an actuarially determined percentage of 
plan members covered salary The rates and contributions paid by the School Board for the bst three 
fiscal years were: 

2009-10 17.6% $1,987,619 
2010-11 24.3% $2,744,814 
2011-12 28.6% $3,184,058 
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Member contributioiis and employer contributbns for the LSERS are established by state law and rates 
are established by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee annually. The School Board's 
employer contribution for the LSERS, as provided by state law, is fiinded by appropriations made by 
the State and remittances fiom the School Board 

9. Other Post Employment Benefits 

Plan Description. The Ouachita Parish School Board compensates its empbyees in a variety of ways 
in exchange for their services. In addition to a salary many employees are provided benefits over their 
years of service that will not be received until their empbyment with the School Board ends. The 
most common type of postemployment benefit is a praision. Other postempbyment benefits (OPEB) 
provided are healthcare and life insurance benefits. As permitted by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-
R.S.) 17:1223, the School Board provides continuing healthcare and life insurance benefits for certain 
retired empbyees through its participatbn in a fiiUy insured health insurance and life insurance 
program administered by the Office of Group Benefits (OGB). Benefit provisions are established or 
may be amended under the authority of LRS 42:802 by the Commissbner of Administratioa All 
benefits and premium stractures aro reviewed by the OGB Policy and Planning Board, OGB does not 
issue a stand alone financial report on the OPEB plan; however, the financial information is included 
in the State of Louisiana's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found at their 
website at www.doaJa.gov/OSRAP/CAFR-2.htm. 

Medical benefits are provided through the Louisiana Office of Group Benefits (OGB) and involve 
several statewide networks and oiie HMO with a premium structure by region. The plan provisions are 
contained in the official plan documents of the OGB, available at www.groupbeneflts.org - "Quick 
Linlcs" - "Health Plans" The OGB plan is a multiple-employer arrangement and has been deemed to 
be an agent multiple-employer plan (within the meaning of paragraph 22 of GASB 45) for financial 
reporting purposes and for this valuation. This valuation has been performed using the standard OGB 
rate stmcture. In addition, the OGB "Medicare Advantage" plan has been assumed as an alternative to 
those employees after Medicare eligibility, and we have assumed that 25% of post-Medicare ehgibility 
retirees elect that plan for this altemative calculation. Medical benefits are provided to empbyees upon 
actual retirement. Empbyees have been assumed to be covered by the Teachers* Retirement System of 
Louisiana (TRSL), whose retirement and deferred retirement eligibility provisions are as fo Ibws: 30 
years of service at any age, age 55 and 25 years of service, or age 65 and 20 years of service. 

Life insurance coverage under the OGB program b available to retirees by election and the blended 
rate (active and retired) is $0.96 per $1,000 of insurance (not including AD&D). In addition, optbnal 
coverage is available under a Humana Life Insurance product where the blended rate (active and 
retired) is $.25 per $1,000 (not including AD&D). The employer pays 50% ofthe "cost" of t2ie retiree 
life insurance, but based on the blended rates Since GASB 45 requires the use of "unblended" rates, 
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9. Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

we have used the 94GAR mortality table desa*ibed above to "unblend" the rates so as to reproduce the 
conqiosite blended rate overall as the rate stmcture to calculate the actuarial valuation results for life 
insurance. All ofthe assumptbns used for the valuation ofthe medical benefits have been used except 
for the trend assumptbn, zero tread was used for life insurance. Insurance coverage amounts are 
reduced at age 65 and again at age 70 according to the OGB plan provisions. 

Contribution Rates. Enq)byees do not contribute to their post-employment benefits costs until they 
become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribution rates are 
contained in the official plan documents. 

Fund Policy. Until 2007, the Ouachita Parish School Board recognized the cost of providing post-
ernployment medical and life benefits (the Ouachita Parish School Board's portion of the retiree 
premiums) as an expense when the benefit premiums were due and thus fmanced the cost ofthe post-
empbymait benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Effective July 1, 2007, the Ouachita Parish School Board implemented Government Accounting 
Standards Board Statement Number 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-
Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45). The fimding policy is not to fiind the ARC 
except to the extent ofthe current year's retiree insurance costs. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Ouachita Parish School Board's portion of retiree health 
care and life insurance premiums totaled $6,295,554. These amounts were applied toward the Net 
OPEB Benefit Obligatbn as shown in the folbwing table. 

Annual Required Contribution. The Ouachita Parish School Board's Axvnual Required Contributbn 
(ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45. The Annual Required 
Contributbn is the sum of the Normal Cost plus the contributbn to amortize the Actuarial Accmed 
Liability (AAL). A level dollar, open amortization period of 30 years (the maximum amortization 
period allowed by GASB 43/45) has been used for the post-erapbyment benefits. The actuarially 
computed ARC is as folbws for fiscal years beginning July U 2011, and 2010: 

Normal Cost 
30-year UAL amortizatbn amount 

Aimual Required Contributbft (ARC) 

Fiscal year ended June 30 
2012 

$ 2,962,065 
7,595,976 

$ 10,558,041 

2011 
$ 3,051,593 

8,78U547 

$11,833^140 
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9. Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

Net Post-Employment Benefit Obligation. The table bebw shows the change in the School Board's 
Net Other Post-en^byment Benefit (OPEB) Obligatbn during the fiscal years ended 2011 and 2012: 

Fiscal year ended June 30 
2012 2011 

Beginning Net OPEB Obligatbn $51,034,634 $45,782,177 

Annual Required Contributbn 10,558,041 11,833 ,̂140 
Interest on net OPEB Obligation 2,041,385 1,831,287 
ARC Adjustment (2,951,338) (2,647,588) 
OPEB Cost 9,648,088 11,016,839 

Contnbution 0 0 
Current year retiree premium (6,295,554) (5,764,382) 

Change in Net OPEB Obligation 3,352,534 5,252,457 

Ending Net OPEB Obligatbn $54,387,168 $51,034,634 

The folbwing tabb shows the Ouachita Parish School Board's annual post-employment benefits 
(FEB) cost, percentage ofthe annual cost contributed, and the net unfimded post-en^jbymemt benefits 
(PEB) liability for the current fiscal year and with comparative data for previous fiscal year: 

Post- Fiscal Year Percentage of 
Employment Ended Annual Armual Cost Net OPEB 

Benefit June 30 OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation 
Medical and Life 2012 $9,648,088 60.18% $54,387,.168 
Medical and Life 2011 $11,016,839 52.30% $51,034,634 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. In the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 and 2011, the 
Ouachita Parish School Board made no contributions to its post-employment benefits plan. The plan is 
not fiinded, has no assets, and hence has a fiinded ratio of zero. Based on the July 1, 2011 actuarial 
valuation, the most recent valuation, the Actuarial Accraed Liability (AAL) was $131,349,620, which 
is defined as that portion, as determined under the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method, ofthe; actuarial 
present value of post-empbyraent plan benefits and expenses which is not provided by normal cost. 
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9. Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

The fimded status ofthe plan, as determined by an actuary as of July 1** of fiscal years 2012 and 2011 
is as follows: 

2012 
$131,349,620 

0 
$131,349,620 

0% 

$116,041,953 
113 19% 

2011 
$157,926,070 

0 
$157,926,070 

0% 

$117,265,436 
134.67% 

Fiscal year ended June 30 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 
Actuarial value of plan assets (AVP) 
Uniunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) 

Funded ratio 

Covered payroll (active plan members) 
UAAL as a pwjentage of Covered Payroll 

The Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributbns required supplemental 
mformation follows the notes. The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend 
informatbn about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits over time. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations involve estimates ofthe value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events fiir into the future. The actuarial valuatbn for 
post-crrqployment benefits includes estimates and assumptbns regarding (1) turnover rate; (2) 
retirement rate; (3) health care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate (investment return 
assun^ion); and (6) the perbd to which the costs apply ^ast, current, or fiiture years of sservice by 
empbyees). Actuarially determiaed amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
conipared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the fiiture. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the temns of the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the Ouachita Parish School Board and its employee plan 
members) at the time ofthe vahiatbn and on the pattern of sharing costs between die Ouachita Parish 
School Board and its plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting 
purposes does not explicitly mcorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations 
on the pattern of cost sharing between the Ouachita Parish School Board and plan members in the 
fiiture. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods and 
assumptions used mclude tediniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 
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9. Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

Actuarial Cost Method. The ARC is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. The 
employer portbn ofthe cost for retiree medical care in each fiiture year is determined by projecting the 
current cost levels usiag the healthcare cost trend rate and discountmg this projected amount to the 
valuatbn date using the other described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment 
return assumption (discount rate), mortality, and turnover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets. Since the OPEB obligation has not as yet been fonded, there are not 
any assets. It is anticipated that in fiiture valuatbns, should fimding t̂ dce place, a smoothed market 
value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board Actuarial Standards of Practice Number 6 (ASOP 6), 
as provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Statement 45 will be used. 

Turnover Rate. An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience as described by 
administrative staff has been used. The rates, when applied to the active employee census, produce an 
annual tumover of approximately 10%. 

Post-employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements. It is assumed that entitlement to benefits 
will commence five years after earliest eligibility to enter the Deferred Retirement Opttbn Plan 
(D.R.O.P.) offered by the state retirement systons. This consists of a three-year D.R.O.P, period plus 
two additional years. Medical benefits are provided to empbyees upon actual retirement. Ewipbyees 
have been assumed to be covered by the Teachers* Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL), whose 
retirement eligibility (D.RO P. entry) provisbns are as folbws: 30 years of service at any age, age 55 
and 25 years of service, or age 65 and 20 years of service. Entitlement to benefits continues through 
Medicare to death. 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate). GASB Statement 45 states that the imvestment 
return assumption should be the estimated bng-term mvestment yield on the investments that are 
expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits. Since the ARC is not currently beinig fiinded 
and not expected to be fiinded in the near fiiture, we have performed this valuatbn using a 4% annual 
investment return assumptbrt 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate. The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on projections 
performed by the Office ofthe Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services as published 
in National Health Care Expenditures Projectbns: 2003 to 2013, Table 3: Natbnal Health 
Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita Amounts, Percent Distribution and Average Annual Percent 
Change by Source of Funds: Selected Calendar Years 1990-2013, released m January, 2004 by the 
Health Care Financing Administration (www.cms.hhs»gov). "State and Local" rates for 2010 throu^ 
2013 from this report were used, with rates beyond 2013 ^^uated down to an ultnnate armuial rate of 
5.0% for 2016 and later. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

9. Other Post-Empbyment Benefits (continued) 

MortaUty Rate. The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a 
fixed blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortality rate and 50% of die unloaded female mortality 
rates, was used. This is a published mortality table which was designed to be used in determining the 
value of accrued benefits in defmed benefit pensbn plans. 

Method of Determining Value of Benefits. The "value of benefits** has been assumed to be the 
portion ofthe premium after retirement date e7q)ected to be paid by the empbyer for each retiree and 
has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be paid. The 
"State Share" premiums in the OGB medical rate schedule provided are "unblended" rates for active 
and retired as required by GASB 45 and have been used for vahiation purposes. 

Inflation Rate. Included in both die Investment Return Assumption and the Healthcare Cost Trend 
rates above is an implicit inflatbn assumption of 2.5% annually. 

Projected Salary Increases. This assumption is not applicable since neither the benefit structure nor 
the valuatbn methodobgy involves salary as a determining fiictor, 

Post-retirement Benefit Increases. The plan benefit provision in effect for retirees as ofthe valuatbn 
date have been used and it has been assumed for valuation purposes that there will not be any changes 
in the future. 

10. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The School Board ofi^s a deferred con^ensatbn plan for employees under the provisions of Internal 
Revenue Service Code 457 (Deferred Compensation Plan). Part-time, seasonal and substitute 
employees are required to contribute 7.5% of their compensation to the Deferred Compensation Plan in 
lieu of social security, as the School Board does not participate in social security under a Section 218 
Agreement for these empbyee classes. Full-time empbyees may also voluntarily make contributions 
to the Deferred Compensation Plan. The School Board does not contribute or match employee 
contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plan. At June 30, 2012, the Plan had assets with an 
approximate market value of $2,952,018. The assets in the Plan are held in trust solely for the benefit 
of participants and their beneficiaries. Therefore, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 32 the Plan 
is not reported in the School Board's financial statements. 

I I 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

11. Agency Fund Deposits Due Others (FFS level only) 

A summary of changes in agency fund deposits due others follows' 

Balance Balance 
July 1,2011 Additions Deletions June 30,2012 

Agency Funds: 
School Activity Funds $3,778,365 $11,347,276 ($11,302,263) $3,823,378 
State Equalization Local 
Funding Transfers to 
Other Educatbnal 
Providers l_ 99,467 (99,467) -

Total $3,778,365 $11,446,743 ($11,401,730) $3,823,378 

12. General Long-Term Obligations 

The general obligation bonds are obligations of East Ouachita Bond District, with maturities fix)m 
2012 to 2034 and int^est rates fi:om 1.0% to 5.625%. General obligatbn bonds' principal and interest 
requirements are fiinded in accordance with Louisiana law by the armual ad valorem tax levy on 
taxable property within the respective taxing districts. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 
39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring bng-term general obligation bonded debt 
in excess of 35% ofthe total assessed value of all property in the taxing distrbt. At June 30, 2012, the 
statutory linut and debt margins are as follows: 

East 
Ouachita 

Bond 

Assessed Value 

35% of assessed value 

Less: Outstanding general 
obligation bonds 

Debt Margin 

$ 

$ 

264,368,951 

92,529,133 

(83,950,000) 

8,579,133 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

12. General Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

The folbwing shows the changes in general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and hmited tax 
certificates of indebtedness: 

Interest 
Rate 

Outstanding Outstanding On Total 
Julyl, New June 30, Unpaid Foitare 

Original Issne 2011 Issuance Payments 2012 Debt Interest 
General obligation 
bonds; 
3.0%-4.5% issued 
4726/05, 
due 2012-2025 

3.625r<r4.750% issued 
3/14/06; due 2012-
2024 
3.75%-6-0% issued 
10/1/07; 
due 2012-2032 

4 0%.6.0% issued 
1/1/08; 

due 2012-2032 
4.0%-5.0% issued 
1/1/09; 
due 2012-2033 

2.75%^4.375% issued 
1/11/IO; due 2012-
2034 
Z0%-4.0% issued 
7/1/11; 
due 2012-2031 
1.0%-3 5% issued 
3/1/12; 
due 2013-2032 

Total general 
obligation bonds 

$11,520,000 

19,395.000 

9.075,000 

9.305.000 

9,345.000 

9.010.000 

H 

$67,650,000 

$ 

9.800,000 

9.500.000 

($625,000) 

(1,130.000) 

(250,000) 

(255,000) 

(240.000) 

(200.000) 

(300,000) 

$19*300,000 ($3,000,000) 

$10,895,000 

18.265.000 

8,825.000 

9,050,000 

9.105.000 

8,810.000 

9,500.000 

9.500.000 

$83,950,000 

3.50%-
4.50% 

3.625%-
4.75% 

3.75%-
5.00% 

4.00%-
5.625% 

4.00%-
5 00% 

2.750%-
4 375% 

Z0%-
4.0% 

I.0%-
3.5% 

$3,552,635 

5.449.215 

4,348.536 

4,547.460 

5,515.394 

4,949.219 

3,560,394 

3.229.188 

$35,152,041 

(contmued) 
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12. General Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Original Issue 

Outstanding 
J u l y l , 
2011 

New 
Issuance Payn 

Outstanding 
June 30, 

lents 2012 

Interest 
Rate On 
Unpaid 
Debt 

Total 
Future 
Interest 

Revenue bonds: 

4.25 %-7.0% issued 9/1/98; 
due 2011-2011 

4.5 %-6.0% issued 4/1/99. 
due 2011-2011 

4.1%-7 0% issued 3/1/01; 
due 2011-2024 

5.25%.7 0% issued 3/01/02; 
due 2012-2024 

3.75%4.15% issued 
3/14/06; 
due 2012-2024 

4.0%-6.0% issnwi 10/01/07; 
due 2012-2024 

3.25%-4.25% issued 
10/11/08 
due 2012-2024 

3.00%-4.25% issued 3/30/09 
due 2012-2023 

1% Taxable QSCB issued 
11/09/2010 due 2011-2024 
2.00%4.00% issued 
12/09/10 
due 2012-2024 

Deferred amount of 
refunding 

Total revenue bonds 

$ 935.000 $ 

790.000 

280.000 

UO.OOO 

8,045.000 

10,505,000 

4.560.000 

29.215.000 

10,000,000 

S,545,0Q0 

(605.976) 

$72379,024 

($ 935,000) 

(790,000) 

(280.000) 

(55.000) 

(390.000) 

(535,000) 

(235.000) 

(180.000) 

(75.000) 

49.532 

- ($3,425,468) 

$ 

55,000 

7.655,000 

9.970,000 

4,325.000 

29.035.000 

10,000,000 

8.470.000 

(556,444) 

$68,953,556 

5 25%-
7.0% 

3.75%-
4.15% 

4.0%-
4.15% 

3.25%. 
4.25% 

3.00%-
4.50% 

0.6% 

2.00%-
4.00% 

$ 

1.925 

2.333.479 

2.896.809 

1.247.362 

7.552.919 

780.000 

2.632.644 

$17,445,138 

(contmued) 
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12. General Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Orig^al Issue 

Outstanding 
Julyl, 
2011 

New 
Issuance Payments 

Interest 
Outstanding Rate on Total 

June 30, Unpaid IFutore 
2012 0ebt Interest 

Limited Tax 
Certificates of 
Indebtedness: 
3.5%-4.4% issued 
3-1^2; 
Due 2011-2012 $ 860,000 $ ($ 860.000) $ 
3 0%-3.7% issued 
3-28-03; Due 2011-
2012 1.210.000 (1,210.000) 
Total Omlted tax 
certificates of 
indebtedness 2,070,000 (2,070.000) 

Total bonds and 
limited tax 
certificates of 
Indebtedness $142,099>024 $19,300,000 $52,597,179 

(concluded) 

Principal and interest are due in total, to maturity, as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

2018-2022 
2023-2027 
2028-2032 
2033-2034 

Total 

Principal 
Payments 
$ 7,030,000 

7,330,000 
7,625,000 
7,960,000 
8,295,000 

47,230,000 
48,045,000 
17,955,000 
1.990,000 

$153,460,000 

Interest 
Payments 
$ 5,569,316 

5,324,285 
5,056,998 
4.777,754 
4,482,716 

17,251,332 
7,322,524 
2,691,598 

120,656 
$52,597,179 

Total 
$ 12,599,316 

12.654,285 
12,681,998 
12,737,754 
12,777,716 
64,481,332 
55,367,524 
20,646,598 
2,110,656 

$206,057,179 
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12. General Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

The folbwing is a summary of gov^iimental activities bng-term obligation transactbns for the year 
ended June 30,2012: 

Long-term 
Obligations 

Claims liability 
Compensated 
absences 

OPEB 
Long-teraidebt 
Other 

Total 

Balance 
June 30," 

2011 
$ 925.173 

6,783,418 
51.034,634 

142,099,024 
L089.211 

$W1.?31.4W 

Additions 
$ 868,740 

427,426 
9,648,088 

19,300,000 
169.222 

$30,413,476 

Deductions 
($ 692,031) 

(499,567) 
(6,295.554) 
(8,495,468) 

($16,069) 
(m.mM9) 

Balance 
June 30, 

2012 
$ 1,101,882 

6,711,277 
54,387,168 

152,903,556 
442,364 

$^1?,546.247 

Due 
Within One 

Year 
$ 568,571 

418,351 
6,261,261 
6,980,468 

32.206 
$14,260,857 

Other long-tenn obligations at June 30, 2012, consist of bond premiums of $442,364. 

During the fiscal year, the Ouachita Parish School Board issued $19,300,000 in general obligation 
bonds in the East Ouachita Bond District for the purpose of constructing new facilities aad making 
improvements to school fiicilities, as authorized by voteis in the district on April 30, 201 L These 
bonds were sold in two issues. On July 7, 2011, $9,800,000 in bonds were sold at a premium of 
$13,473 and accrued interest of $5,243 fi'om the July 1, 2011 issuance date, with maturities over a 
period of 20 years and interest rates ranging fix)m 2.0% to 4.0% A second issue of $9,500,000 was 
sold on March 8, 2012 at a premium of $155,749 and accrued interest of $4,733 from the March 1, 
2012 issuance date, with maturities over a perbd of 20 years with interest rates ranging fix)m 1.0% to 
3.5%. These bonds were assigned a rating of "AA-" by Standard &. Poor*s Public Finance Rating. 

Payments on the general obligation bonds payable that pertain to the School Board's govemmental 
activities are made by the East Ouachita Bond Debt Service Fund. Payments on the revenue bonds 
payable and the tax liability certificates of indebtedness that pertain to the School Board's 
govemmental activities are fiinded by transfers from the West Ouachita Sales Tax Special Revenue 
Fund to the West Ouachita Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund. The compensated absences liability 
attributable to the govemmental activities will be liquidated by the School Board's G^eral Fund. 

The School Board does not have plans to place funds in an irrevocable trust to liquidate the other post­
empbyment benefits liability. It is the School Board's plan to continue on a pay-as-you go basis for 
OPEB benefits. As a result, this liability will continue to increase over time. 
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13. Interfund Assets/LiabiMes (FFS level only) 

Individual balances due to/fix)m other fiinds at June 30,2012 were as follows: 

Major Funds: 
General Fund: 

Deficit cash balances 
Indirect cost 

Total General Fund 
Nonmajor Funds: 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Title 1 Programs: 
Deficit cash balances 
Indirect cost 

Total Title I Programs 
Special Education IDEA B: 

Deficit cash balances 
Indirect cost 

Total Special Educatbn IDEA-B 
Other Federal Programs: 

Deficit cash balance 
Indirect cost 

Total Other Federal Programs 
Total 

Due To 
Other Funds 

$ 
-
-

612,618 
62,444 

675.062 

622,685 
53,034 

675,719 

959,988 
86,505 

1,046,493 
$ 2,397,274 

Due From 
Other Funds 

$ 2,195,291 
201,983 

2,397,274 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
.. 

$ 2,397,274 

The balances due for cash deficits are due to timing differences in receiving reimbursements from 
grantors for expenditure reimbursem^t grants after the fiscal year ended and for fiinds held in 
investments at year end that were not available to pay currwit obligations. The General Fund pays the 
obligations of expenditure reimbursement grants untfl a claim is filed and payment is received. 
Indirect cost balances represent the outstanding indirect cost payments due to the General Fund for the 
expenditures on outstanding grant reinibursement requests filed but not yet received fi-om grantors by 
year end. Ail mterfund transactions at year end will be completed during the 2012-13 fiscal year. 
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14. Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, and Assigned Fund Balances (FFS level only) 

The folbwing Governmental Funds' fund balances are nonspendable, bgally restricted. Board 
committed, or assigned for the following purposes: 

Fund 
Nonmajor Funds: 

Special Revenue Funds: 
School Food Service 

Total Nonspendable Fund Balance 

Fund 
Major Funds: 

General Fund 

Coital Project Funds. 
East Onachita 2011-2012 Construction 

Total Major Funds 

Nonmajor Funds: 
Special Revenue Funds. 

Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - 1 % 
Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax- .5% 
West Ouachita Sales Tax 
Sdiool Food Service 
Other Federal Programs 
State Grants 

Total Nonmajor Special Revenue 

Debt Service Funds. 
East Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond No. 2 
Total Nonmajor Debt Service 

Capital Projects Funds. 
East Ouadiita 2009 Construction 
West Ouachita 2009 Construction 
West Ouachita 2008 Construction 

Total Nonmajor Capital Projects 

Total Restricted Fund Balances 

Nonspendable Amoumt 

Food inventory 

Restricted 

Workers Compensation Surety 

Capital projects 

Salaries and related benefits 
Salaries 
Construction and operations 
Food services 
Preschool instruction 
Student health services 

Bonded Debt 
Debt sCTvice 

Capital project-s 
Capital projects 
Capital projects 

$ 148,911 
$ 148,911 

Amount 

$ 625.000 

12,482,884 
13,107,884 

4,395.590 
1,644,671 
5,141,743 
1,231,575 

1,903 
1,349,533 

13,765,015 

4,865,456 
7,600,724 

12,466,180 

520,199 
601,990 
92,790 

1,214,979 

$40,554,058 
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14. Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, and Assigned Fund Balances (FFS level only) 
(continued) 

The School Board has committed the folbwing Govemmental Funds fimd balances for these specific 
purposes: 

Fund Committed Amount 
Major Funds: 

General Fund 

Special Revenue Funds: 
District #1 Sales Tax 
District #1 Sales Tax 
District #1 Sales Tax 
District #1 Sales Tax 

Total Major Special Revenue Funds 

Total Committed Fund Balances 

Major equipment repairs 

Instmctbnal programs 
Capital improvements 
Mandated costs 
Salaries and benefits 

$ 715,351 

3.782,044 
2,709,004 
3,403,391 
4,583,008 

14,477.447 

$15,192,798 

The Sdiool Board has assigned the following Govemmental Funds fund balances for these specific 
purposes: 

Fund 
Major Funds: 
General Fund 
General Fund 
G&aoral Fund 

Total General Fund 

Nonmajor Funds: 
State Grants 
Local Grants 
Local Grants 
Local Grants 

Total Nonmajor Special Revenue 

Total Assigned Fund Balances 

Assigned Amount 

Drivers education 
Instructbnal programs 
Scholarships 

Student health/support services 
Instructional programs 
Student health/support services 
Scholarships 

$ 

$ 

167,460 
251,108 

4,636 
423,204 

389,670 
12,564 
6,924 
7,850 

417,008 

840,212 
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15. Litigation and Contingencies 

The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits. Management for the School Board belî eves that 
the potential claims against the School Board not covered by insurance have been adequately accrued 
at June 30, 2012. As more fully described m Note LQ., the School Board is exposed to various risks 
through its self-insurance plan for damage to property fi-om natural disasters, fire and errors and 
omissions. 

As with the majority of all other school boards within the state, the Ouachita Parish School Board is 
substantially dependent upon federal, state and bcal funding. The loss or reduction of these funding 
sources would have a significant impact on its op^ations. 

16* Interfund Transfers (FFS level only) 

Transfers to/fiom other Govemmental Funds for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as folbws: 

Transfers Transfers 
In Out 

Major Funds: 
General Fund $ - $ 480,000 
Special Revenue Funds: 
District #1 Sales Tax 132,600 

Nonmajor Funds: 
Special Revenue Funds: 

West Ouadiita Sales Tax - 8,719,437 
Debt Service Funds: 

West Ouachita Bond No. 2 8,719.437 
Proprietary Fund: 

Internal Service Fund 347,400 
Total $ 9,199,437 $ 9,199,437 

A transfer of $132,600 was made from the General Fund to the District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue 
fund for Maintenance and Operatbn e?q)enditures. A transfer was made fi-om the General Pond to the 
Internal Service Fund for $347,400 for Workers' Compensation claims. Transfers totaling $8,719,437 
were made firom the West Ouadiita Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund to the West Ouadiita Bond No. 2 
Debt Service Fund as principal and interest payments became due. 
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to Acsdemic Esceiiesscs' 
for A l l Sttt^snts! 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (concluded) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

17. Subsequent Events 

MFPFupdifig 
The October 1, 2012 student count indicates an increase of approximately 350 students over the 
previous year, which will result in over $2 million in additional state funds received through the 
MFP fimding formula for the 2012-13 fiscal year. 

1968 Sales Tax Issue 
On Deceniber 4, 2012, the Monroe City School Board received the spedal report fi-om its 
mdependent auditor dated November 12, 2012, on the calculatbn and distribution ofthe 13*** 
Sales Tax Supplement chedcs. One ofthe sales taxes reviewed in the report is the 1968 Sales 
Tax (Supplemental Salaries - .5% Sales Tax Fund) which the Ouachita Parish School Board 
shares collections on a prorata basis with the Monroe City School Board based on the average 
annual enrollment of students between the two systems, in accordance with the taxmg 
propositbn. The conclusbns made in this report regarding the classification of employees who 
participate m the distribution of supplements paid fix>m the 1968 Sales Tax can also be 
constructively applied to the practices of the Ouachita Parish School Board. The conclusbns 
reached by the CPA firm are different in some respects to the way School Board management 
has interpreted these classifications since the inception ofthe 1968 Sales Tax salary supplement 
distributbns. However, management and legal counsel are ofthe opinion the School Board has 
classified its employees properly for the 1968 Sales Tax issue based on subsequent court 
decisbns and definitbns made by the Department of Educatbn over the years. 

Education Reform 
On November 30, 2012, the 19*** Judicial District Court of the State of Louisiana issued 
declaratory judgements that Act No. 2 and Senate Concurrent Resolution (SCR) No. 99 ofthe 
2012 Legislative Session unconstitutbnally divert MFP funds that are constitutionally mandated 
to be allocated to public elementary and secondary schools to nonpublic entities in vblation of 
Article Vin, Sectbn 13(B) ofthe Louisiana Constitution of 1974. and also unconstitutbnally 
d iv^ bcal funds mchided in the MFP that are constitutionally mandated to be albcated to 
public elementary and secondary schools to non-publio entities in violation of Article VIII, 
Sectbn 13(C) ofthe Louisiana Constitution of 1974, as implemented by LSA-R.S. 47:338,84. 
These rulings are subject to the appeals process and, depending on the outcome of any ^peals, 
may have an impact on the future constructbn ofthe state MFP funding formula. The various 
educatbn reform and funding provisbns in Act 2 and SCR 99 mostly became effective in fiscal 
year 2012-13, with some not becoming effective until the 2013-14 fiscal year. 
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Our Mission: 
Through collaboration 

among all stakeholders, the 
Ouachita Parish School System 

will ensure that all students attain 
the knowledge and skills needed 

to be productive citizens. 

1 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

General Fund and Major Spedal Revenue Funds with Legally Adopted Budgets 

General Fund 

The General Fund accounts for all activities of the School Board except for those that are 
accoxmted for in other fiinds. The major source of revenues for the General Fund are state 
equalization funding through the Minimum Foundation Program formula and a 24.5-nnill ad 
valorem tax that was renewed in April 2011 for 10 years. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources (oth^ 
than spedal assessments) that are legally restricted or committed to exp^ditures for specified 
purposes other than dd>t service or capital projects. The term "jproceeds of specific revenue 
sources" establishes that one or more spedfic restricted or committed revenues should he the 
foundatbn for a special revenue fimd. These funds, for the most part, are established for specific 
educational purposes and fimded through the U. S. Department of Education or the Louisiana 
State Department of Educatbn. The Sdiool Board is centrally located m Northeast Louisiana and 
acts as a regbnal fiscal agent for the State Department of Educatbn for many educational 
programs. 

District No* 1 Maintenance and Operations Sales Tax Fund 

The District No. I Maintenance and Operations Sates Tax Fund collects, records and 
disburses funds related to the .5% sales tax r^ewed in April 2011 for 10 years to provide 
additbnal stqiport for the school system. The School Board committed the tax classroom 
instruction—36%, capital iniprovements—^23%, fadlity and equipment support—15%. 
mandated costs—14%, and salary restoration—12%. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

GENERAL FUND 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basts) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

BudgetaTy fund balance at 
beginning of year 

Resources (Inflows) 
Local sources-

Ad valorem taxes 
1% ad valorem tax - (ax coUector 
Earnings on inveslmerrts 
E-rate 
Other 

Total local sources 
State sources-

State equatlzatton 
Revenue sharing 
Professional Improvement Program 
Restricted grants-in-aid 
Unrestricted grants-in-aid 

Total state sources 
Federal sources 
other federal support 

Total Federal sources 

Other financing sources 
Sale of assets 

Amounts available for appropriations 

Budgeeed 
Original 
Budget 

$ 16,114.005 

15,943.000 
650.000 
150,000 
585,000 

1.581.065 
18.809.065 

116,369,458 
326.000 
250.000 
38,666 
44.500 

116.528.824 

210.811 
210.811 

-

160,662.505 

Amounts 
Final 

Budget 

$ 15.819.323 

15.900,000 
550,000 
125,000 
691,200 

1.506.315 
18.77a515 

115,965.079 
825.366 
225,000 
53,456 

-
117,068,921 

180.000 
180,000 

38.000 

151.878.759 

Actual 

$ 15.819.323 

16.180.595 
542,707 
269.608 
723,388 

1.900.187 
19.616.485 

115.985,079 
823,218 
213.606 
91,018 

-
117,092.921 

182.979 
182,970 

42.786 

152,754.493 

Over 
(Under) 

$ 

280,595 
(7,293) 

144,608 
32.188 

393,872 
843.970 

-
(2.168) 

(11.304) 
37,562 

. 
24.000 

^979 
Z979 

4.785 

875,734 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
Current. 

Instructional services. 
Regular programs 
Spedal education programs 
Vocational programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 
AduU/contfnuing educatbn 

Support services' 
PupB support services 
Instmctional staff support services 
Qenersl admlnlstralion 
SchocS admlrdstratlon 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation ser\dce3 
Central sendees 

Noninstructional services. 
Food serw» operations 
Commimlly service programs 
Facility Acqutsillon & construction 

Deibt service: 
Interest and other ct̂ arges 

other financing uses 
Tiransfers out 

Total charges to approprfattons 

60,503,469 
15,291,487 
1,826,730 
4,449,480 

277.904 
25.619 

7,082r995 
5.963,831 
1,340,905 

10,508,830 
1,911,648 

18,306,532 
7.4H373 
2.688,097 

752,676 
23.581 
2,900 

60,348,136 
16.090.307 
1,411,676 
4,333,658 

522,431 
30,413 

7.064.701 
7.325,296 
1.317,799 

10.812,987 
1.882,776 

17,064,149 
8.192,002 
2.906.736 

807.882 
27,098 
44,232 

58,368,358 
14,674.804 
1,422,393 
4,617.952 

432,996 
35.890 

7.208.201 
7,313.807 
1,369,380 

10,717.818 
1.898,078 

17,046.249 
8,644>963 
2,805,816 

750,353 
27,388 
51.374 

(1.979,778) 
(415.603) 

10,717 
284,294 
(«9,435) 

5»477 

141,500 
(11.489) 
51,661 
(S5.169) 
16,303 

(17.900) 
462,961 

(1(00.921) 

(57.629) 
270 

7.142 

900 

2S0.0OQ 

138.599.847 

1,800 

3QZ383 

1.800 

480.000 177.617 

139.486,459 137.865,577 (1.620.882) 

Budgetary fund balance 
at end of year $ 12.06^658 $ 12,392,300 $ 14.888,916 $ Z496.618 

See accompanying notes to the budgetary comparison schedules. 
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Ouachtta Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund -
District #1 Sales Tax 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budgetary fund balance at 
beginning of year 

Resources (inflows) 
Local sources: 
Sales and use taxes 
Earnings (losses) on investments 
Other 

Total local sources 

Other financing sources 
Transfers In 

Amounts available for appropriations 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
Cunent: 

Instmctional services: 
Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Vocatior^l programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 

Support services: 
Pupil support sen^ices 
Instmctional staff support services 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Noninstmctlonat services: 
Food service operations 
Facility acquisition and constmction 

Total charges to appropriations 

Budgetary fund balance 
at end of year 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 
Budget 

$15,408,759 

6,271,250 
37.500 

6,308.750 

250,000 

21,967,509 

Ftnat 
Budget 

$ 16,429,698 

6.271^50 
50,000 

337,159 
6,658,409 

400.000 

22.488,107 

Actual 

$15,429,698 

6.429,472 
(12,210) 
348,407 

6.765,669 

132.600 

22,327,967 

Over 
(Under) 

$ 

158.222 
(52,210) 
11.248 

107,260 

(267.400) 

(160.140) 

1,380,790 
376.713 

88.711 
1,805,666 

7.575 

875,661 
516.899 

619 
140,427 
20,292 

1.740.997 
1.940.562 

14,987 

136.927 
900.000 

9.747,826 

$12,219,683 

1.444,279 
488.807 
121.132 

1,876,852 
32,301 

947,375 
541,317 

44,018 
305,826 

19,538 
2.087.606 
1,430,505 

17,234 

146.257 
206,907 

9.709.954 

$ 12,778,153 

1,388.873 
452,939 
113.722 

1,660.886 
32,464 

915,790 
502,894 

45,082 
221.314 

19,486 
1,271.334 

934,508 
16,820 

146,730 
128,698 

7.850.520 

$ 14,477.447 

(55,406) 
(35,868) 
(7,410) 

(215,966) 
163 

(31.585) 
(38.423) 

1.044 
(84,512) 

(52) 
(816,272) 
(495,997) 

(414) 

(527) 
(78,209) 

(1,859,434) 

$ 1.699.294 

See accompanying notes to the budgetary comparison schedules. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

ibjr AM &tSBfSeats! 
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Ouachita Farish School Board 
Monroe, Loaisiaioia 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The School Board utilizes the following procedures m establishing the budgetary data reflected 
in the financial statements: 

In Septeniber, the Director of Business submits to tlie School Board proposed aimual 
appropriated budgets for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds for the fiscal year com­
mencing the prior July 1. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to 
September 15, the School Board legally enacts the budget through adoption. The only legal 
requirement is that the School Board adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues 
and other financing sources (including fiind balance) must equal or exceed total budgeted 
expenditures and other financing uses. The budget is revised periodically througjiout the school 
year, when deemed appropriate, but a balanced budget is always approved. 

The General Fund budget is adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Unencumbered 
appropriatbns in the General Fund lapse at the end of the fiscal year, whereas, encunobered 
appropriations are carried forward to the followmg year. Budgeted amounts are as originally 
adopted or as amended by the School Board. 

The Special Revenue Funds' budgets have annual impropriated budgets adopted on a basis 
consistent with GAAP. Except for grant-oriented fonds, unencumbered appropriations lapse at 
the end of the fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations are utilized when goods or services are 
received. Grant-oriented fond budgets are adopted at the time the grant applications are approved 
by the grantor. Separate aimual budgets are adopted for unencunibered appropriations of grant-
oriented Special Revenue Funds at the beginmng ofthe following fiscal year. 

Fonnal budgetary integration is empbyed as a management control device during the year for 
the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. All budgets are operatbnal at the departmemtal or 
project level. The Superintendent and Director of Business ofthe School Board are authorized to 
transfer budget amounts between line item activity and between any fonctbns of an individual 
fimd; however, any supplemental appropriatbns that amend the total expenditures of any fond 
require School Board resohitbn. The effects of budget revisbns passed during the year were 
insignificant to the budgets as originally approved. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

t o . 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

The School Board's Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan is administered by the Oifice 
of Group Benefits (OGB) as an agent multiple-empbyer defined benefit OPEB plan. It provides 
health and life insurance coverage to eligfole members. The following schedules present the 
actuarially determined fonding progress and required contributions for the School Board's 
participation in the OGB OPEB Plan using the projected imit oredit cost method. 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan - Health & Life Insurance 

Year 
Ended June 

30 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

(2) 

(5) 

Annual OPEB 
Cost 

$25,522,412 

$25.522»412 

$10,661,929 

$11,016,839 

$9,648,088 

Contributions 
Made 

$5,216,924 

$5,230,663 

$5,476,989 

$5,764,382 

$6,295,554 

Percentage 
Contributed 

20.40% 

20.50% 

51.37% 

52.30% 

65 25% 

Net OPEB 
Obligation 

$20,305,488 

$40,597,237 

$45,782,177 

$51,034,634 

$54,387,168 

Schedule of Fundfaig Progress 
Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan - Health & Life Insurance 

Year 

Bnded 

June 30 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

Actuanal 

Valuation Date 

imnmi 
imrmi 
imnxm 
7/01/2009 

7/01/2011 

(a) 

Actuarial Accrued 

Liability (AAL) 

$231,448,794 

$226»2]8.131 

$151,851,990(2) 

SI 57,926.070 

$131,349,620(5) 

0>) 

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 

(a-b) 

Unfimded kAh 

(UAAL) 

$231,448,794 

$226,218,131 

$151,851,990 

$157,926,070 

$131,349,620 

(Wa) 

Funded 

Ratio 

0% 

0% 

D% 
0% 
0% 

(c) 

Covered Payroll 

$112,573,045 

$117354.515(1) 

$116,424,720(3) 

$117,265,436 

$116,041,953(4) 

Ca"by(c) 

UAAL as a 

Percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll 

205.60% 

192.76% 

130.43% 

13467% 

113.19% 

Notes: 
(1) The increase in covered payrolls in 2009 is due to implementing state mandated and locally fimded pay increases for 

all salaried employees. 
(2) The School Board changed actuanal firms and obtamed a new valuation resulted in a reduction ofthe Annual OPEB 

Cost and Hie AAL. 
(3) A decrease in covered payrolls is the result of a reduction in sales tax supplements paid to employees in November 

and June of this year. The decrease in salary supplement payments was due to a reduction in sales tax collections 
stemming from a decline in tibe local economy. Sales tax collections rebounded &e following year. 

(4) A decrease m covered payrolls is the result of a partial hiring freeze put m place during the 2011 -12 fiscal year 
(5) The decrease in Annual OPEB C^t and the AAL is due to the Office of Group Benefits implementing lower health 

msurance premium rate increases than the anticipated trend rates smce the last actuanal valuation. 
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(A pROFESSiONAi, ACCOUNTING CORPORATION) 

CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

John Herman, CPA 
Lynn Andrtes, CPA 
Esther Atteberry. CPA. 
Lori Woodard. MBA. CPA 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCLVL REPORTING AND 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

We have audited the financial statements ofthe govemmental activities, each major fimd and the 
aggregate remaining fimd information ofthe Ouachita Parish School Board (the School Board) 
35 of and for the year ended June 30,2012, which collectively comprise the School Board'.s basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 20,2012. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to jEinancial audits contained m Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management ofthe School Board is responsible for establishing and mamtajning effective internal 
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School 
Board's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedutres for 
the purpose of ejqpressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for tiie purpose of 
expressing an opinion on tiiie effectiveness of the School Board's internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's 
internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfoxming their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement ofthe entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis 

Our consideration of mtemal control over financial reporting was for the limited pnrpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in mtemal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's financial statemaits 
are firee of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with v^ch could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, provid ing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards, 

We noted certam other matters that we reported to management ofthe School Board in a separate 
letter dated December 20,2012. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management ofthe School Board, others 
within the enti^, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and other entities granting funds 
to the School Board and tiie Legislative Auditor for ftie State of Louisiana and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, imder Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as apublic document 

/ ? i w « « ^ ^ ^ ® ^ ^ / &^>»a4^ 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

December 20,2012 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COtJLD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the Ouachita Parish School Board's (the School Board) compliance wilth the 
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement 
that could have a durect and material effect on each of the major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30,2012. The School Board's m^or federal programs are identified in the Summary 
of Auditor's Results section ofthe accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of 
its major federal programs is the responsibility of the School Board's management Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the School Board's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained m 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations 
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit mcludes examinmg, on a test basis, evidence about the School Board's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit 
does not provide a legal determination on the School Board's compliance with those 
requirements. 

hi our opinion, ̂ o School Board complied, m all matenal respects, with the requirements referred 
to above that couldhave a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30,2012 

1100 North 18lh Street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and mamtaining effective Internal 
control over compliance with the requnements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular 
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on die effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe School Board's 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
complumce is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requSrement 
of a federal program will not be prevented or detected and conected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of iutemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose descnbed in £he first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material wea&nesses 
as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management ofthe School Board, others within 
the entity, federal awarding s^encies and pass-through entities, and olher entities granting funds to &e: School 
Board £tnd the Legislative Auditor for the State of Louisi&ia and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

I 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

December 20,2012 
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OUACHrTA PARiSH S C H O O L B O A W ) 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

S a i E D U L E O F EXPEN01TORES O F FEDERAL AWARDS 
AS O F AND FOR T H E YEAR ENDED TUNE 30,201Z 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
FuTia PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 

Number PROGRAM TTTLE 
C F D A . 

NUMBER 

FEDERAL 
GRANT 

NUMBER 

PASS-
TBRODGH 
NUMBER 

PROGRAM 
DISBUBSEMErnrS 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

CASH F I E D E R A L AWARDS 

Passed fbrougli Louisiana Department of Edacatnn' 
300 SdMMlBreakfaA Program 
300 Kaftonal School Lunch Program 
301 Summer Food Service Prograni fbr Children 

10553A 
lOSSSA 
10 SS9A 

NotAvailabla 
Not Available 
Not Available 

LEA No 037 
L£ANo037 
LEA No 037 

1,650,308 
4,397,015 

159.653 

302 f m h Fruit and VegclaUe Program 

TOTAL U ^ DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTORE 

10 5S2B Not Available LEA No 037 484.736 

6.69L7I2 

VJS. DEPARTMENT OP DEFENSE 

Dtrtd Programs: 
100 Air Force Junior RescrveOfficerllrainingCorps 
100 Annyitiffior Reserve OiBcerlVBining Corps 
100 Naval Junior Reserve Officer Tiaining Corps 
100 Naval Junior Reserve Officer Traming Coips 

Not Available 
Not Available 
Not Available 
Not Available 

LA050061 
LA331676 
N4982310MmTC 
N 9 $ 3 7 7 1 C M I R K : 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
WA 

S2.728 
55,232 

0 
75.020 

TOTAL VS. DEPARTMENT OF DEHSNSE 

US. DEPARTMENT OF JOSTICB 

Faastd &Tough Ouachita Parish Sberiffa OfSce: 
584 Public Safety PartDeiship and Commuiuty Pohdog Qnmts 

Methamphe&nnine Inilutive 

TOTAL VS. DEPARTMENT OF jnOSTICE 

I6710B 
2007CICWX0284 60,212 

iam. 

U. S. DEPARTMENT OP NATIONAL AEBONAlTnCS & SPACE 
ADMINISnCATlON • NASA 

Direct Programs: 
Passed through Lmcohi Parish School System: 

595 NASA-Threads 

TOTAL VS. DEPARTMENT OF NASA 

43008 
80-0128-0-1-252 None 4J94 

4,394 

a s DEPARTMENT OP EDUCATION 

S8S 

648 

664 

Direct Programs: 
Safb and Drug-Free Schools and CommuniUes-National Programs: 

' Management Systems (REMS) 

Funds for Improvement of Gducalioa. 
Carol M White - Ouachita Pansh PEP 

Funds for the Improvemeni of Educatfon-FrogruAS of 
National SigmCcasce 

Adult and Family Literscy Services 

84 184E 

84.2iSF 

84JJ15IC 

QI84EIOO0S2 

Q215F110437 

U215K1U0003 

None 

None 

None 

116.725 

206,294 

22^57 
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OUACHITA PAIUSH SCHOOL BOARD 
M O N R O E , L O U I S U N A 

SCHEDULE O F 2 X P E N D I T 0 R E S O F FEDERAL AWARDS 
AS O F AND F O R T H E VEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
Fund PASS-TBROUCH GRANrOR/ 

Number PROGRAM TITLE 
CFD.A. 

NUMBER 

FEDERAL 
GRANT 

NUMBER 

PASS-
THROUGH 
NUMBER 

PROGRAM 
DISBURSEMENTS 

601 
601 
631 
641 

656 

U S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (continued) 

PaiEcd through LoQisiana Department of Edutatton* 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Tifle I Part A Basic (2010-U) 
Title I Part A Basic (201M 2) 
T^tle I School Improvemeot (201M2) 
riUel School Improvement (7013-13) 

Migrant Educalion-State Giant fiosfsia 
MIgrani Educati on (2011-13) 

84 010A 

84 0 n A 

S010AI00018 
SOIOAUOOIS 
SOIOA100018 
S010A110018 

SOI lAl 10018 

28I1T1-37 
2812T1-37 
28nTA-37 
2812TA-37 

2812M1-37 

1,492,073 
3,980,719 

1]3;Z58 
13.712 

5,599,762 

109,540 

Spedal Edttcalion-Gnans to Slates: 
530 I D B A Patt B (2010-11) Reallocatioo 
530 IDEA PaitB (2011-12) 
550 STEM Co>Teaching Teams 

Vocational Bducaiton-Basjc Grants to States 
510 CarlD PeTlansCBieer&Technical2010-n Reallocation 
510 CariD PeriansCaieer&Tecbnlc8lEducationC2010-ll) 

fecial EdacaiionrPreschool Grants 
532 Preschool C20I0-11) Reallocatton 
532 Preschool aOlO-11) 

Safe sod Dnig-Fne Schools and Comnranitie»-St8te Qneir. 
604 Titie fV (2009-10) canyover 

Education for Homeless Children and Yoath. 
6S4 Homeless CZ01M2) 
675 Homeless ^ tO>I I) canyovei 
674 Homeless (2010-11) 

Even Start-Stale Educational AgeDCies 
650 EveDStart(20lO-ll)c&iiyoTOr 
651 Even StanLeadeishipC2011-12) 
670 Even Stan (2010-11) 

646 Advanced Placement Test Pee Program 

Eaelisb Langua^ Acquisition Grants 
603 Titie ni(2010-11) reallocation 
603 Title m (2011-12) 

Mathematics and Scaence Partnerships 
65Z Kfelh and Saence Partnerships (2011-12) 
612 Math and Science Partnerships (2010-11) 

84 027A 

84 048A 

84173A 

84186A 

84 196A 

84 213C 

84J30B 

84 36SA 

84366B 

H027A100033 
H027A110033 
H027A100033 

V048A100018A 
V048AII0018A 

H173A100082 
HI 73AI10082 

Q186A0900I9 

S196A1I00J9 
S196A090019 
S196A100019 

82130)90019 
S2I3C0900I9 
S213C100019 

S330B110032 

S365A1O00I8 
S365AU0018 

3366BI00019 
S366B090019 

2SUB1-37 
2812BI-37 
281132-37 

281102-37 
281202-37 

28nPI-37 
28I2PI-37 

281070-37 

2812HI-37 
2810H1-37 
2811H1-37 

2810F1-37 
28I1F4-37 
281IF1-37 

281126-37 

281160-37 
281260-37 

281IMP-37 
2810MP-37 

422.838 
3.429.109 

7.647 
3359,594 

12,839 
244,637 
257,466 

52,615 
J 9.245 
71360 

671 

18,051 
17,760 
9343 

45,154 

125,286 
4,000 

31.028 
160314 

4.611 

9,612 
19,759 
29371 

230.177 
7^85 

237,463 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 112 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
M O N R O E , L O U I S U N A 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES O F FEDERAL AWARDS 
AS O F AND F O R T H E VEAR ENDED -lUNE 30,2012 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
Fund PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 

Number PROGRAM TITLE 

U S DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION teonllnued) 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Education 

Improving Teacher Quali^ State Giants 
602 TillenPartA(2010>ll)iealloc8lion 
602 TilIenPartA(201I-]2) 

Sll Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies - Recovery Act 

531 Special Education - Grants to States • Recovery Act 

320 Edocation Jobs Fund (2011-2012) 

Educstioti Jobs Fund Suj^lemenlal (2011-2012) 

Passed through Lomsuna C^ommooity Tedinical College System: 
Adult Education-State Grant Progtam 

540 AdultEducatioa-Federal Funds (2010-11) 
560 Adult EduoBhon - Federal Funds (2011-12) 
543 AduHEducalum-FederalSupplanenta] (^10-11) 
562 AduUEducsUon - Federal Supplemental QiOl 1-12) 
544 AdunEducation -FamflyLiteracyC2010-ll) 
568 AdultEducatun-Family Literacy (2011-12) 
526 AduItEducatian-OReStDpCenten(20]]-12) 
557 AduItBdiic8tlon-EUavicsBdueation(20lO-ll) 
S24 AduUEducabon-EL/CivIcsEducation (2011-12) 
567 AduUBducation.ABBPnot(2011.12) 

Passed through UnEvenlty of Lonishnu at Monroe. 
S66 Migrant Education - High School EqmvalBDcy Program 

647 Passqd tfarongh Louisiana Endowment for the Ebimantties. 
Funds Jbr the ImprovemoA of Education-Amencan History 

and Civics Edticatiim Act 
Korlh Louisiana Exploring Ihe American Bcperieace 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

CFJJA. 
NUMBER 

FEDERAL 
GRANT 

NUItlBBR 

PASS-
THROUGH 
NUMBER 

PROGRAM 
DISBURSEMENTS 

84 367A 

84 389A 

84J91A 

84 410A 

S367A100017 
S3ff7AU0017 

S389A090O18A 

H391A090033A 

S41OA100O19 
S410A100019 

281150-37 
281250-37 

2809A1-37 

2809AI-37 

28nEK-37 
28Iia-37 

213.073 
723.850 
936,923 

212,238 

14,576 

2,780,176 
75.614 

84 002A 

84 14 LA 

84.21S)C 

U215X090098 None 

2355,790 

V002AI00018 
V002A100018 
VO02A10OO18 
VO02A10OO18 
V002AI00018 
V002A100018 
V002A100018 
VO02At0O0JS 
V002A100018 
V002A100018 

S141A1D040 

482110 
211102 
482130 
211203 
482120 
21I1S2 
311303 
482140 
211252 
n/a 

PO0005207 

34,108 
605,987 

10.982 
60.000 

671 
21,536 
4.112 
5,718 

21,267 
94000 

858,581 

323.920 

10.513 

15,933,722 

513 
570 

543 

U ^ DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Education 
Temporaiy Assistance for Needy Families. 93 5S8B 

Jobs for America's Oraduates • TANF (1) Emphv pOU-l2) 
The Cecil J Ptcan! LA-4 Pre-Kindefgarten Programs 

Passed through LCTCS: 
Temporary Assistance fbr Needy Families 93 5S8B 

Strategic ^ Empower People - STEP Program (2010-11) 

GU02LATANP 2812JS-37 
G6U02LATANF 281236-37 

O1I02LATANF 210652 

50,000 

I.44S.672 

1,496,672 

45.819 

Passed through Loulsbna School Board Assodation. 
593 Schools Putting Prevention to Work - Recovery Act 

93724 
3USSDP001970-01S2 688976 13.382 

TOTAL U S. DEPA RTMBNT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVXCBS 

TOTAL EXPENDtrURES OF CASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

1,555373 

24.428.893 

See N o ^ to Schedule of Expeadituies of Federal Awards 113 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
AS O F AND FOR T H E YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
Fund PASS-TBROUGH GRANTOR/ 

Number PROGRAM TTTLE 

NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

CJP-DJV. 

NUMBER 

FEDERAL 
GRANT 

NUMBER 

PASS-
THROUGH 
NUMBER 

PROGRAM 
DISBURSEMENTS 

Passed Through Louisiana Dqiartment of Agrleultitre: 

300 Food Donation (Commodilies) 10 555 SCH07S LEA No 037 $ 447.921 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS 447.921 

TOTALEXPENDrrURBS OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 24376.814 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards -1-14 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

JUNE 30,2012 

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 

The accompanymg Schedule of Expeaditures of Federal Awards includes all Federal 
grant activity of the Ouachita Parish School Board (the School Board) for the year 
ended June 30, 2012 and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues when they become 
both measurable and available to pay current period liabilities and expenditures when 
the related liability is incurred. 

Note 2 - Relationship of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to the Financial 
Statements 

The following reconciliation is provided to help the reader of the School Board's 
financial statements and supplementary information relate such information to the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the year ended June 30» 2012: 

Federal 
Programs 

Rjevenues. 
General Fund $ 182,979 $ 
State Fiscal Stabili2Btion Funds-Stimulus 2,855,790 
School Food Services 6,691,712 
Title I 6.081,855 
IDEAB 3,946,030 
Other Federal 4.670,526 

Total Govemmental Funds Revenues $ 24,428,892 

Other 
Federal 
Support 

-
-

447,921 
-
-
-

$447,921 

Total 

$ 182,979 
2.855,790 
7,139,633 
6,081,855 
3,946,030 
4,670,526 

$24,876*813 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unqualified 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Materia] Weakness(es) identified? . _ Yes _X_ No 
Significant Deficiency(s) identified not considered to be material 
weaknesses? Yes X None Reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Ŷes JL_No 

Federal Awards 
Internal Control Over Major Programs 

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified not considered to be material 
weakness(es)? Yes X None Reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 
Circular A-133, Section 510(a)? _ Y e s X Mo 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs 
$746,304 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No 

116 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

Identification of Major Programs 

CFDA# PROGRAM TITLE 
10.553A 
10.555A 
10.559A 
10.582B 
84.002A 
84.027A 
84J73A 
84.391A 
93 558B 

School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 

Summer Food Service Program for Children 
Frest Fruit and Vegetable Program 

Adult Education - State Grant Program 
Vocational Education-Basic Grants to States 

Special Education-Preschool Grants 
ARRA-Special Education-Grants to States 
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 

Section IE: Findings and questioned costs for Federal Awards, including those specified by 
OMB Circular A-133. 

None 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISLVNA 

SUMMARY STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

The following is a summary ofthe status ofthe prior year findmgs included in Luffey Huffeaan, 
Ragsdale & Soignier (APAC) audit report dated December 30,2011, in connection with the audit 
of the financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (the School Board) as of and for 
the year ended June 30,2011. 

11-01 Bank Reconciliations (First reported in. 2009) 

Finding 
The bank reconciliation for the master bank accounts was not finalized until early December 
2011. Additionally, since 2009, there have been unreconciled differences m the bank 
reconciliation of $13,913 at June 30, 2009, 323,348 at June 30, 2010 and $16,833 at June 30, 
20 n . These bank accounts (there are three bank accounts at two banks that make up the master 
bank accounts) handle afl accounts payable and payroll activities, as well as significant r-evenue 
transactions The bank statements not being reconciled soon after month end could cause 
material misstatements in the general ledger and ultimately the financial statements. 

Status 
Management has established and communicated a firm deadUne to the accounting staff for bank 
reconciliations to be completed by the close ofthe month following the month of reconciliation, 
and that a fiill reconciliation is expected. A more thorough investigation of all unreconciled 
balances has been performed and adjustments made to correct these amounts. Management has 
enforced the timely reconciliation of all School Board bank accounts. Fully reconciled bank 
reconciliations are being submitted to the Busmess Manager for review and approval by 
subsequent month-end. 

11-02 Internal Controls over Investments (First reported im 2011) 

Finding 
During the course of our audit, we noted that the general ledger accountant has the authority to 
initiate all investment transactions as well as has access to accounting and record keeping 
responsibilities for the investments and cash accounts. 

The School Board's investment policy states that, **the Business Manager shall be responsible for 
all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of 
subordinate officials and his designees " 

Status 
Tlie Business Manager has been set up with the School Board's fiscal agent bank to receive 
electronic notifications for all outgoing wire transfers fix>m School Board bank accounts and with 
investment firms to receive electronic notifications for all outgoing wire transfers from School 
Board investment accounts in their custody. Further, the general ledger accountant, also 
designated as the mvestment manager, has been providing documentation of all transfers to the 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

Business Manager for signed approval either prior to or within 24 hours of when fund transfers 
are made In instances where the electromc notifications described above are not available to the 
School Board, the general ledger accountant has obtained approval fi'om the Business MLanager 
prior to imtiating the transfer of funds. 

As an additional internal control, the general ledger accountant is preparing and maintaining on a 
monthly basis a schedule of all mvestments of the School Board for all funds as of the end of 
each month. The information presented in the investment schedule has been determined by the 
Business Manager. The investment schedule is being submitted to the Business Manager for 
review and approval no later than 45 days following the month-end date ofthe report. 

Management Letter 
Documentation of Internal Control (First reported in 2007) 
Finding 
The School Board did not have adequate documentation of intemal control over financial 
reporting using the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) framework so that the 
School Board could more easily discharge its responsibility to design and implement controls 
and monitor those controls for effectiveness over time. 

Status 
The School Board engaged a CPA to assist in documenting and compiling accounting and 
intemal control procedures into a written document The preliminary document has been 
prepared by the CPA and received by Management for review. Management is cuirently 
reviewing tihese procedures and will work with the CPA in making additional changes, updates 
or amendments to the document prior to submittmg the docxmient for final approval by the 
School Board. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data 
School Board Members* Compensation 

June 30,2012 

The schedule of compensation paid to School Board members was prepared in compliance with 
House Concurrent Resolution No 54 ofthe 1979 session of tihie Louisiana Legislature. 

The compensation of the School Board members is included in the general administration 
expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the 
School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Under this 
method, the members of the School Board received $800 per month. Additionally, the president 
received $100 per month fbr exercising the duties of his office. 

Board Member District Amoimt 

Judge William Norris 
Mr. Scott Robinson 
Mr. A. R. "Red" Sims 
Mr. Jerry R. Hicks, President 
Rev. John R Russell 
Mr. Carey Walker 
Ms Susan Spence 

Total 

A 
B 
C 
D 
E 
F 
G 

$ 9,600 
9,600 
9,600 

10,800 
9,600 
9,600 
9,600 

$ 68,400 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

In plaiming and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Ouachita Parish 
School Board (the School Board) for the year ended June 30,2012, we considered its intemal 
control structure in order to determine our auditing procedures for purposes of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the intemal control 
stmcture or overall compliance with laws and regulations 

However, dunng our audit we became aware of certain matters that are opportunities for 
strengthening intemal controls and the overall environment for compliance with laws and 
regulations. This letter will summarize our comments and suggestions regardmg those 
matters. This letter does not affect our report dated December 20, 2012 on the financial 
statements ofthe School Board. 

Pocumentation of Intemal Control 

Finding: 

Management of the School Board is charged with establishing and maintaining mtemal 
control and to assess intemal control for effectiveness in design and operation. Those 
components are outlined in the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission Report (commonly referred to as the COSO Report, or COSO) and consist of the 
Control Environment; Risk Assessment; Control Activities; Information and Commumcation; 
and Monitoring. 

While certam elements of the components of internal control exist and certain aspects of the 
control activities have been documented, the School Board does not possess the vmtten 
documentation of all components of mtemal control over School Board operations. 

For management and those charged with governance to properly discharge their responsibility 
to establish and maintain intemal control, there must exist a level of docmnentation of mtemal 
control sufficient to allow them to assess operating effectiveness and design, not just at a 
pomt in time, but over a period of time As circumstances change, controls should be re­
evaluated for ongoing effectiveness. 

1100 North 18th Street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Tel (318)387-2672 • Fax (318)322-8866 • Webstte www afullservlcecpafirm com 
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Recommendation: 

We recommend that management of the School Board finalize the intemal control document 
over financial reporting usmg the COSO fi-amework whereby they define each of the five 
elements in order that they may more easily discharge their responsibility to design and 
implement controls and monitor those controls for effectiveness over time. As part of this 
review and documentation, the School Board should utilize the Checklist of Best Practices m 
Government prepared by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's office 

Management's Corrective Action Plan: 

The School Board has engaged a CPA to assist in documenting mtemal control procedures over 
the accounting and financial reporting process and compile these procedures into a more formal 
written document. The preliminary document has been prepared by the CPA and received by 
Management for review. Management is currently reviewing these procedures for accuracy and 
completeness and to identify modifications needed to control any weaknesses noted When 
evaluating the established controls, we will take into consideration the COSO framework and the 
Checklist of Best Practices in Government prepared by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's 
office. Management will contmue to work under the consultation of the CPA to finalize these 
intemal control procedures prior to submitting the document for approval by the School Board. 

Interna! Audit Findings and Missing Funds 

Finding: 

The School Board conducted an intemal audit at Swayze Elementary School for the six months 
ended December 31, 2011 as a follow-up to a previous audit for the year ended June 30, 2010 
which refiected 24 findings involving improper and/or inadequate accounting controls and 
procedures. The result of the current year analysis revealed that 16 of the previously cited 24 
findmgs had not been resolved and an additional 7 new findings were cited. As part of the 23 
findings, approximately $480 in cash was missing firom the time it was receipted by the 
bookkeeper and when deposits were made at the bank. It also appears that $1,302 was logged on 
teacher receipt rosters which was not accounted for in the office receipt books and subsequentiy 
not deposited at the bank. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the School Board continue to monitor the school activity accounts on an 
ongoing basis. The school activity accounts accounted for approximately $11,300,000 in 
receipts and disbursements in the current year and had an ending balance at June 30, 2012 of 
approximately $3,800,000. These accounts, which are spread out at the 35 schools, have a 
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significant amount of cash activity which lends itself to the close scmtiny that the School Board 
is already providing 

Management's Corrective Action Plan: 

The School Board has already taken appropriate action in dealing with the personnel involved 
who are no longer employed at Swayze Elementary The issue was reported to the local district 
attomey and to the Office of the Legislative Auditor as required The Intemal Audit Staff have 
been training and working individually with the new staff assigned with bookkeeping and 
oversight and management of funds at Swayze Elementary to ensure that all required procedures 
are in place and are being followed at all levels to ensure an adequate internal control system is 
in place. We believe the staff of the Intemal Audit department has been vigilant in overseeing 

le school activity accounts in the past and commend them for the work they continue to do. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

December 20,2012 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS* REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

We have performed the procedures included in the Louisiana Govemmental Audit (juide and 
enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of Ouachita Parish School 
Board (the School Board) and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist 
users in evaluating management's assertions about the performance and statistical data 
accompanying the annual financial statements of the School Board and to determine whether 
th^ specified schedules are free of obvious errors and omissions as provided by the Board of 
Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE). Management of the School Boiard is 
responsible for its performance and statistical data. This agreed-upon procedures engagement 
was performed in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. 
The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this 
report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures 
described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or fbr any 
other purpose. 

Our procedures and findmgs relate to the accompanying schedules of supplemental 
information and are as follows: 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 
(Schedule I) 

I, We selected a random sample of 25 transactions and reviewed supporting documentation 
to deterrmne if the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are re:ported 
in the proper amounts for each ofthe follovwng amounts reported on the schedule. 

» Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures, 
• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures, 
» Total Local Taxation Revenue, 
• Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property, 
» Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes, 
• Nonpublic Textbook Revenue, and 
• Nonpublic Transportation Revenue. 

1100 North 18th street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Education Levels of Public School Staff (Schedule 2) 

2. We reconciled the total number of full-tme classroom teachers per the schedule "Experience 
of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to 
the combined total number of full-time classroom teachers per this schedule and to school 
board supporting payroll records as of October 1*̂ , 2011 

3. We reconciled the combined total of principals and assistant principals per the schedule 
"Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers" 
(Schedule 4) to the combined total of principals and assistant principals per this schedule. 

4 We obtained a list of fuU-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classaiication 
as of October 1st and as reported on the schedule We traced a random sample of 25 teachers 
to the individual's personnel file and determined if the individual's education level was 
properly classified on the schedule. 

Number and Type of Public Schools (Schedule 3) 

5. We obtained a list of schools by type as reported on the schedule We compared the list to 
the schools and grade levels as reported on the Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
(CFDA 84.010) application and/or the National School Lunch Program (CFDA 10.555) 
application. 

Experience of Public Principals. Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers 
(Schedule 4) 

6 We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification 
as of October I**, 2011 and as reported on the schedule and traced the same sample used in 
procedure 4 to the individual's personnel file and determined if the individual's experience 
was properly classified on the schedule. 

Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries (Schedule 5) 

7 We obtained a list of all classroom teachers including their base salary, extra compemsation, 
and ROTC or rehired retiree status as well as full-time equivalent as reported on the schedule 
and traced a random sample of 25 teachers to the mdividuaPs persormel file and determined 
if the Individual's salary, extra compensation, and full-time equivalents were properly 
included on the schedule, 

8. We recalculated the average salaries and fiill-time equivalents reported in the schedule. 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 6) 

9 We obtained a list of classes by school, school type, and class si2:e as reported on the 
schedule and reconciled school type classifications to Schedule 3 data, as obtained m 
procedure 5. We then traced a random sample of 10 classes to the October 1st roll books for 
those classes and determined if the class was properly classified on the schedule. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) (Schedule 7) 

10. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported 
by the testing authority to scores reported m the schedule by the School Board. 

Graduation Exit Examination (Schedule 8) 

11. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported 
by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

iLEAP Tests {Schedule 9) 

12. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported 
by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

Our twelve procedures enumerated above did not disclose any exceptions. 

We were not engaged to perform, and did not perform, an audit, the objective of which would be 
the expression of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, we do not expres:s such 
an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you 

This report is intended solely for the use of management of the School Board, the Louisiana 
Department of Education, the Louisiana Legislature, and the Legislative Auditor, State of 
Louisiana, and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken 
responsibility for the sufficiency ofthe procedures for their purposes. Under Lomsiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

» 
9 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

December 20,2012 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedules Required by State Law 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

Schedule 1 - General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local 
Revenue Sources 

This schedule includes general fund instructional and equipment expenditures. It also contains 
local taxation revenue, earnings on investments in real property, revenue in lieu of taxes, and 
nonpublic textbook and transportation revenue. This data is used either in the Minimum 
Foundation Program (MFP) formula or is presented armually in the MFP 70% Expenditure 
Requirement Report. 

Schedule 2 - Education Levels of Public School Staff 

This schedule includes the certificated and uncertificated number and percentage of full-time 
classroom teachers, principals, and assistant principals with less than a Bachelor's; Bachelor's, 
Master's; Master's +30; Specialist in Education; and Ph. D or Ed. D. degrees This data is 
currentiy reported to the Legislature in the Annual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR) 

Schedule 3 - Number and Type of Public Schools 

This schedule includes the nmnber of elementary, middle, secondary, and combination schools m 
operation during the fiscal year. This data is currentiy reported to the Legislature in the AFSR. 

Schedule 4 - Experience of Public Prmcipals, Assistant Principals and Full-time Clasisroom 
Teachers 

This schedule includes the number of years of experience in teaching for assistant principals, 
principals, and full-time classroom teachers. This data is currentiy reported to the Legislature m 
tiieAFSR 

Schedule 5 - Public School StafiTData: Average Salaries 

This schedule includes average classroom teacher's salary using full-time equivalents, including 
and excluding ROTC and rehired retiree teachers. This data is currently reported to the 
Legislature in the AFSR. 

Schedule 6 - Class Size Characteristics 

This schedule includes the percent and number of classes with student enrollment m the 
following ranges- 1-20, 21-26, 27-33, and 34+ students. This data is currentiy reported to the 
Legislature in the Aimual School Report (ASR). 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedules Required by State Law 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

Schedule 7 - Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and mcludes summary scores by 
district for grades 4 and 8 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Mastery, 
Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data. 

Schedule S - Graduation Exit Exam (GEE) 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scoires by 
district for grades 10 and 11 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Mastery, 
Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data. 

Schedule 9 - iLEAP Tests 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes a summary score for 
grades 3, 5, 6, 7 and 9 for this district. The summary score reported is the National Percentile 
Raiak showing relative position or rank as compared to a large, representative sample of students 
in the same grade from the entire nation. This schedule includes three years of data. 

As of fiscal year 2011, 9 graders are not required to take iLeap, These students must now pass 
3 end-of-course tests. The Department of Education will be reviewing end-^f-course testing and 
its potential inclusion for assurance purposes in time for fiscal year 2013 assurance submissions. 



Schedule 1 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisfana 

General If und Instructional and Support Expenditures 
and Certain Local Revenue Sources 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

General Fund Instructional and Equipment Expenditures 
Genera] Fund Instmctional Expenditures: 
Teadber and Student Interaction Activities: 

Classroom Teacher Salanes 
Other Instmctional Staif Activities 
Instructional Staff Employee Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Instructional Materials and Supplies 
Instructional Equipment 

Total Teacher and Student Interaction Activities 
Other Instructional Activities 
Pupil Support Activities 
Less: Equipment for Pupil Support Activities 

Net Pupil Support Activities 
Instructional Staff Services 

Less' Equipment for Ihstructional Staff Services 
Net Instructional Staif Services 

School Administration: 
Less; Equipment fbr Instructional Staff Services 
Net School Administration 

Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures 

Total Genera] Fnnd Equipment Expenditures 

Certain Local Revcane Sources 
Local Taxation Revenue: 

Constitutional Ad Valorem Taxes 
Rjcnewable Ad Valorem Tax 
Debt Service Ad Valorem Tax 
Up to 1% of Collections by the Sheriff 
on Taxes Other than School Taxes 

Sates and Use Taxes 
Total Local Taxation Revenue 

Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property: 
Eammgs fixmi 16th Section Property 
Earnings from Other Real Property 

Total Local Eammgs on Investment in Real Property 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes: 
Revenue Sharing - Constitutional Tax 
Revenue Sharing - Otiier Taxes 
Revenue Sharing - Excess Poztion 
Other Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 
Nonpublic TVansportation Revenue 

48,954.746 
4.199,121 

24,057,284 
37,140 

2,046,384 
23.481 

7,206,201 

7,313,807 

10,717.818 

S 

$ 
•ans 

s 

*z 
$ 

$ 

$ _ 

s 

79,31«,I56 
19^,347 

7.206.201 
1 

7.313.807 

10,717,818 

104,754,329 

465,195 

2.808,059 
13.372.537 
6.195,095 

542.707 
39,402,765 
62,321,163 

50,651 
50,651 

189.019 
634.199 

823,218 

65,403 



Schedule 2 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe. Louisiana 

Education Levels of Public School Staff 
As ofOctober 1,2011 

Full-time Classroom Teachers Principals & Assistant Principals 

Category 

Less than a Bachelor's Degree 
Bachelor's Degree 
Mastw's Degree 
Master's Degree+ 30 
Specialist m Education 
Ph. D. or Ed D 

Total 

Certificated 
Pfumber 

3 
721 
368 
203 

8 
7 

1,310 

Percent 

02% 
54.6% 
27.9% 
15.4% 
0 6% 
0.5% 

99.2% 

Uncertificated 
Number 

8 
1 
1 
-
-

10 

Fevcent 

00% 
06% 
0.1% 
0.1% 
00% 
00% 
0.8% 

Certificated 
Number 

•• 

19 
57 

1 
5 

82 

Percent 

0 0% 
0 0% 

23.2% 
69 5% 

1.2% 
6 1 % 

100.0% 

Un-ccrtificated 
Number Percent 

, 

. 
-
-
-
-
" , , 



Schedule 3 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Number and Type of Public Schools 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

Type Number 

Elementary 22 
Middle/Jr. High 8 
Secondary 5 
Combination 1 

Total 36 



Schedule 4 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals and Full-time Classroom Teacliers 
As ofOctober 1,2011 

Assistant Principals 
Principals 
Classroom Teachers 

Total 

0-1 Yr. 
-
d 

97 
97 

2-3 Yrs. 
-
-

104 
104 

4-10 Yrs. 
3 
-

390 
393 

11-14 Yrs. 
3 
1 

147 
151 

15-19 Yrs. 
7 
6 

189 
202 

' • • — ' 

20-24 Yrs. 

9 
8 

147 
164 

25+Yrs. 
25 
20 

246 
2^1 

Total 

47 
35 

1,320 
1,402 



Schedule 5 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

Classroom Teachers 
Excluding ROTC, 

All Classroom Rehired Retirees, and 
Teachers Flagged Salary Reductions 

Average Classroom 
Teachers' Salary 
Including Extra Compensation $48,749 $48,512 

Average Classroom 
Teachers' Salary 
Excluding Extra Compensation $47,791 $47,542 

Number of Teacher FuU-time 
Equivalents (FTEs) used in 
Computation of Average Salaries 1,307 1.284 

Note: Figures reported include all sources of funding (i.e., federal, state, and local) but exclude 
stipends and employee benefits. Generally, retired teachers rehired to teach receive less compensation 
than non-retired teachers; some teachers may have been flagged as receiving reduced salaries (e.g., 
extended medical leave); and ROTC teachers usually receive more compensation because of a federal 
supplement For these reasons, these teachers are excluded firom the computation in the last column. 
This schedule excludes day-to-day substitutes, temporary employees, and any teachers on sabbatical 
leave during any part ofthe school year. 

10 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Class Size Characteristics 
As ofOctober 1,2011 

Schedule 6 

School Type 
Elementary 
Elemenfaiy Activity Classes 
Midd!e/Jr. High 
Middle/Jr. High Activity Classes 
High 
High Activity Classes 
Combination 
Combination Activity Classes 
Total 

l-2( 
Percentage 

45 58% 
31 39% 
5299% 
79 04% 
58 12% 
87.71% 
91.45% 

10000% 

) 
Nmnber 

1.729 
232 
868 
377 

1.496 
464 
139 
14 

5,319 

Class Size Range 
21-26 

Percentage 
50.15% 
60 89% 
32.05% 
11 53% 
21.41% 

4.35% 
7.89% 
0.00% 

Number 
1.902 

450 
525 

55 
551 

23 
12 

-
3.518 

27-33 
Pm^enlage 

427% 
7.71% 

14.59% 
7.55% 

16.86% 
3 59% 
0.66% 
0.00% 

Number 
162 
57 

239 
36 

434 
19 

1 
-

948 

34+ 
Percemtage 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.37% 
1 89% 
3.61% 
4 35% 
0.00% 
0 00% 

Number 
-
-
6 
9 

93 
23 

-
-

131 

Note: The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific Imuts on the maximum size of classes at various 
grade levels The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and maximum enrollment m grades 4-12 is 33 students. 
These limits do not apply to activity classes such as ph3 îca] education, chorus, band, and odier classes without maximum 
enrollment standards Therefore, these classes are included only as separate line items 

II 



Schedule 7 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOAKD 
Monroe. Louisiana 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) 
Three Piscal Years Ended Jnne 30,2012 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Students 
Grade 4 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

Enelish Lansuage Arts 
2012 

Number 1 Ferccnt 

128 
469 
672 
167 
56 

... 
9 

31 
45 
11 
4 

1,492 

2on 
Numtwr] Fercent 

136 9 
421 29 
643 44 
206 14 
43 3 

U449 

2010 
Number 1 Ferccnt 

114 
333 
712 
209 
113 

8 
22 
48 
14 
8 

1,481 

Mathematics I 
2012 

Number | Fercent 

171 
396 
652 
195 
78 

U 
27 
44 
13 
5 

1,492 

2on 
Number] Percent 

132 9 
384 27 
675 47 
174 12 
84 6 

1,449 

2010 
Number | FCTcent 

109 7 
386 26 
676 46 
203 14 
107 7 

J,481 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Students 
Grade 4 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsaiisfectory 

Total 

Science 
2012 

Number | Ferccnt 

174 
396 
606 
257 
54 

12 
27 
41 
17 
4 

1,487 

2011 
Number) Ferccnt 

66 5 
333 23 
709 49 
290 20 

50 3 
1.448 

2010 
Number 1 Fercent 

66 
304 
739 
290 

83 

4 
21 
50 
20 

5 
1,482 

Social Studies | 
2012 

Number 1 Fercent 

68 
363 
774 
187 
95 

5 
24 
52 
13 
6 

1,487 

20U 
Number] Fercent 

94 6 
349 24 
790 55 
151 10 
64 4 

1,448 

2010 
NumbCT] Percent 

59 4 
320 22 
827 56 
174 12 
102 7 

1,482 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Students 
Grades 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number] Fercent 

97 
340 
651 
307 
37 

7 
24 
45 
21 
3 

1,432 

2011 
Number] Fercent 

95 7 
339 25 
604 44 
297 22 
40 3 

1,375 

2010 
Number] Fercent 

59 
277 
620 
319 
68 

4 
21 
46 
24 
5 

1.343 

Mathematics j 
2012 

Nimiber [ Ferccnt 

85 6 
98 7 

836 58 
319 22 

94 7 
1,432 " 

2011 
Number] Fercent 

56 4 
77 6 

833 61 
294 21 
115 8 

1,375 

2010 
Number) Percent 

76 6 
86 6 

785 58 
275 20 
122 9 

1344 

District Acfalevement 
Level Results 

Students 
Grades 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatiflfectory 

Total 

Science 
2012 

Number ] Percent 

94 
378 
533 
350 
69 

• • ' 

7 
27 
37 
25 
5 

1.424 

2011 
Number | Fercent 

31 2 
332 24 
557 41 
330 24 
124 9 

M74 

2010 
Number] Percent 

41 
273 
594 
319 
113 

3 
20 
44 
24 

8 
1.346 

Social Studies j 
2012 

Number ] Percent 

51 
313 
705 
254 
101 

4 
22 
50 
18 
7 

i,424' • 

2011 
Number | Percent 

45 3 
244 18 
672 49 
316 23 
96 7 

1.37i 

2010 
Number | Fercent 

32 2 
218 16 
69S 52 
246 18 
144 11 

i M 

12 



Schedule S 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Graduation Exit Exam 
Three Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2012 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Students 

Grade 10 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English I^angnage Arts 
2012 

Number ] Percent 

-

2011 
Number | Percent 

21 2 
173 15 
625 54 
254 22 

82 7 
1,155 

2010 
Number | Percent 

16 1 
181 16 
591 52 
252 22 
S9 8 

1,129 

Mathematics | 
2012 

Number | Fercent 

-

2011 
Number (Percent 

196 17 
222 19 
484 42 
148 13 
105 9 

1.155 

2010 
Number i*ercent 

132 12 
249 22 
483 43 
147 14 
120 II 

1.131 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Students 
G r « d e l l 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 
••••• Total 

Science 
2012 

Number ] Percent 

95 9 
249 23 
419 39 
211 19 
113 10 

1,0'87 

2011 
Number J Percent 

50 5 
235 22 
442 42 
212 20 
124 12 

1,063 

2010 
Number ] Percent 

51 5 
198 18 
484 45 
264 24 

82 8 
1,079 

Sodal Studies j 
2012 

Number ] Percent 

22 2 
141 13 
616 57 
206 19 
103 9 

1,088 

2011 
Number ] Fercenit 

9 I 
98 9 

601 57 
225 21 
130 12 

1.063 

2010 
Number ] Percent 

7 1 
125 12 
636 59 
224 21 

87 8 
2.079 

13 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
J L E A P Tesls 

Three Kwtal Years Ended June 30,2012 

Schedule 9 

iLEAP Tests 
District Achievement 

Level Results 

Grade 3 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approachmg Basic 
Unsatisfectory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2010 

Number 

83 
397 
665 
244 
134 

1523 

Percent 

5 
26 
44 
16 
9 

Mathematics 
2010 

Number 

105 
38S 
649 

^ 244 
137 

1523 

Percent 

7 
25 
43 
16 
9 

Science 
2010 

Number 

77 
287 
713 
348 
98 

1523 

Percent 

5 
19 
47 
23 
6 

Social Studies 
2010 

Number 

53 
305 
754 
265 
146 

1523 

Percent 

3 
20 
50 
17 
10 

District Achievement 
Level ResQils 

Grades 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatis&ctory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2010 

Number 

70 
362 
645 
263 
75 

1415 

Percent 

5 
26 
46 
19 
5 

Mathematics 
2010 

Number 

115 
241 
723 
198 
138 

1415 

Percent 

S 
17 
51 
14 
10 

Science 
2010 

Number 

67 
320 
628 
326 
74 

1415 

Percent 

5 
23 
44 
23 
5 

SocHal Studies 
2010 

Number 

119 
207 
685 
261 
142 

1414 

Fercent 

8 
15 
48 
18 
10 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 6 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basio 
Approaching Basic 
Unsabs&ctory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2010 

Number 

82 
377 
670 
196 
64 

1389 

Percent 

6 
27 
48 
14 
5 

Mathematics 
2010 

Number 

78 
232 
822 
161 
97 

1390 

Percent 

6 
17 
59 
12 
7 

Science 
2010 

Number 

62 
288 
644 
307 
88 

1389 

Percent 

4 
21 
46 
22 
6 

Social Studies 
2010 

Number 

120 
196 
645 
297 
131 

13S9 

Percent 

9 
14 
46 
21 
9 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade? 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfectory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2010 

Number 

IIS 
272 
699 
279 
59 

1424 

Percent 

8 
19 
49 
20 
4 

Mathematics 
2010 

Number 

92 
214 
801 
209 
107 

1423 

Percent 

6 
15 
56 
15 
8 

Science 
2010 

Number 

68 
331 
608 
312 
104 

1423 

Percent 

5 
23 
43 
22 
7 

Social Studies 
2010 

Number 

38 
266 
772 
199 
148 

1423 

percent 

3 
19 
54 
14 
10 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 9 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2010 

Number 

40 
231 
706 
248 
28 

1253 

Percent 

3 
18 
56 
20 
2 

Mathematics 
2010 

Number 

151 
177 
664 
153 
108 

1253 

Percent 

12 
14 
53 
12 
9 

Continued 

14 



OUAOUTA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
iLEAP Tests 

Three Fiscal Years Ended Jane 30,2012 

Schedules 

iLEAP Tests 
Dislrtct Achievement 

Level Results 

Grade 3 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisftctoiy 

Total 

English Language Arts 

2011 
Number 

109 
413 
697 
218 
112 
1549 

Percent 

7 
27 
45 
14 
7 

Mathematics 

2011 
Number 

141 
297 
733 
231 
147 

1549 

Percent 

9 
19 
47 
15 
9 

Science 

2011 
Number 

93 
343 
669 
328 
116 
1549 

Percent 

6 
22 
43 
21 
7 

Social Studies 

2011 
Number 

59 
293 
778 
266 
153 

1549 

Percent 

4 
19 
50 
17 
10 

District Achievement 

Level Results 

Grades 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approadiuig Basic 
Unsatisfectory 

Total 

English Language Arts 

2011 
Number 

102 
369 
664 
178 
72 

1385 

Percent 

7 
27 
48 
13 
5 

Mathematics 

2011 
Number 

152 
245 
670 
174 
144 
1385 

Percent 

U 
18 
48 
13 
10 

Science 

20U 
Number 

9? 
307 
619 
290 
72 

1385 

Percent 

7 
22 
45 
21 
5 

Social Studies 

:20n 
Number 

87 
296 
681 
189 
132 
1385 

Percent 

6 
21 
49 
14 
10 

District Achievement 

Level Results 

Grade 6 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 

201] 
Number 

71 
343 
751 
228 
57 

1450 

Percent 

5 
24 
52 
16 

4 

IVIathematics 

2011 
Number 

144 
191 
791 
200 
125 

1451 

Percent 

10 
13 
55 
14 
9 

Science 

2011 
Number 

88 
275 
738 
288 
€1 

1450 

Percent 

6 
19 
51 
20 
4 

Social Studies 

5011 
Number 

149 
210 
687 
272 
132 

1450 

Percent 

10 
14 
47 
19 
9 

District Achievement 

Level Results 

Grade? 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 

2011 
Number 

103 
346 
698 
243 
46 

1436 

Percent 

7 
24 
49 
17 
3 

Mathematics 

2011 
Number 

106 
173 
813 
253 
92 

1437 

Percent 

7 
12 
57 
18 
6 

Science 

2011 
Number 

49 
281 
699 
307 
99 

1435 

Percent 

3 
20 
49 
21 
7 

Social Studies 

2011 
Number 

57 
227 
714 
272 
166 
1436 

Percent 

4 
16 
50 
19 
12 

District Achievement 

Level Results 

Grade 9 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfectory 

Total 

English Language Arts 

2011 
Number 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

0 

Percent 

N/A 
N/A 
I^A 
N/A 
N/A 

IVIathematics 

2011 
Number 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

0 

Percent 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Contmued 

IS 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
iLEAP Tests 

Three Fiscal Years Ended June 30.2012 

Schedule 9 

iLEAP Tests 

Distnct Achievement 
Levet Results 

Grade 3 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approachmg Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

74 
411 
615 
202 
122 

1424 

Percent 

5 
29 
43 
14 
9 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

177 
360 
590 
188 
109 

1424 

Percent 

12 
25 
41 
13 
8 

Science 
2012 

Number 

84 
383 
597 
269 
91 

1424 

Percent 

6 
27 
42 
19 
6 

Social Studies 
2012 

Number 

• 5 

349 
676 
257 
137 

1424 

Percent 

0 
25 
47 
18 
JO 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grades 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approachmg Basic 
Unsatisfectory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

78 
381 
679 
197 
62 

1397 

Percent 

6 
27 
49 
14 
4 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

13? 
220 
745 
184 
111 

1397 

Percent 

10 
16 
53 
13 
8 

Science 
2012 

Number 

73 
355 
627 
265 
77 

1397 

Percent 

5 
25 
45 
19 
6 

Sociial Studies 
2012 

Number 

98 
299 
666 
229 
105 

1397 

Percent 

7 
21 
48 
16 
8 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 6 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approachmg Basic 
Unsatisfiu:tory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

86 
341 
718 
234 
62 

1441 

Percent 

6 
24 
50 
16 
4 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

133 
250 
753 
181 
123 

1440 

Percent 

9 
17 
52 
13 
9 

Science 
2012 

Number 

95 
350 
645 
270 
80 

1440 

percent 

7 
24 
45 
19 
6 

Social Studies 
2012 

Number 

143 
213 
682 
260 
142 

1440 

Percent 

10 
15 
47 
18 
10 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade? 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approachmg Basic 
Unsatisfectory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

120 
322 
723 
254 
59 

1478 

Percent 

8 
22 
49 
17 
4 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

123 
236 
73? 
259 
123 

1478 

Percent 

8 
16 
50 
18 
8 

Science 
2012 

Number 

84 
398 
582 
325 
86 

1475 

percent 

6 
27 
39 
22 
6 

Social Studies 
2012 

Number 

74 
289 
695 
271 
146 

1475 

Percent 

5 
20 
47 
18 
10 

Dbtrict Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 9 
Advanced 
Masteiy 
Basic 
Approachmg Basic 
Unsatisfectory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2012 

Number 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

0 

Percent 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Mathematics 
2012 

Number 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

0 

Percent 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Concluded 
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